
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  
  

      BBooaarrdd  ooff  CCoommmmiissssiioonneerrss  
MMeeeettiinngg  

JJuunnee  55,,  22002233  
  



 
June 2, 2023  6:58:00 PM 
 

 

 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
JUNE 5, 2023 

COMMISSIONERS’ ROOM, 116 ADAMS STREET, PLYMOUTH, NC 
LIVESTREAMED ON FACEBOOK 

 
 6:00 PM Call to Order—Chair Walker 
 6:01 PM Invocation / Pledge   
   Additions / Deletions 
   Approval of Meeting Agenda 
 
Item 1 6:05 PM Consent Agenda 

a) Approval of Minutes of May 1 & 15, 2023 
b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents  
c) JCPC Certification Standards 
d) Washington County JCPC Membership 
e) Riverlight Transit Title VI Policy 
f) Harvest Beams Letter of Support 
g) Roper Volunteer Fire Department’s Application for Renovation Funding Letter of 

Support 
h) Water System Engineering Agreement 
i) TTA Bylaws (re-stated) 

 
Item 2 6:10 PM Public Forum (3-minute limit per speaker) 
 
Item 3 6:20 PM Employee of the Quarter, Chair Walker 
 
Item 4 6:30 PM Board of Equalization & Review, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 
 
Item 5 6:40 PM Public Hearing on Eddie Smith Drainage District, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA &  
   Mr. Cameron Birtcher, LFNC 
 
Item 6 6:50 PM Public Hearing:  Washington County FY24 Recommended Budget, Mr. Curtis Potter, 
   CM/CA 

a) FY24 Budget Ordinance, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
  
Item 7 7:00 PM Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
    
 
 
 



 
June 2, 2023  6:58:00 PM 
 

Item 8 7:10 PM Finance Officer’s Report, Budget Amendments/Budget Transfers, Ms. Missy 
Dixon, Finance Officer 
a) RESO 2023-020 Removing Certain Obsolete General Fund Balance  

Designations 
 

Item 9 7:20 PM  Other Items by Chair, Commissioners, CM/CA, Finance Officer or Clerk 
a) Pre-K – 12 Building/Funding Agreement Update, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
b) Cancellation of July 3, 2023 Board of County Commissioners Meeting, Mr. Curtis 

Potter, CM/CA 
 

Item 10  7:30 PM  Closed Session has been scheduled according to NCGS§143-318.11(a)(3)  
(attorney-client privilege and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel) 

 
Recess/Adjourn 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
       ITEM NO:  1 
 
       DATE:  June 5, 2023 
 
ITEM:  Consent Agenda      
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a) Approval of Minutes of May 1 & 15, 2023 (located at the end of the package) See 
attached. 
 

b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents. See attached. 
 

c) JCPC Certification Standards. See attached. 
 

d) Washington County JCPC Membership. See attached. 
 

e) Riverlight Transit Title VI Policy.  
NCDOT requires DSS to update and provide a Title VI Policy every three years as we 
receive federal financial assistance though FTA’s formula grant program. See attached. 
 

f) Harvest Beams Letter of Support. See attached. 
 

g) Roper Volunteer Fire Department’s Application for Renovation Funding Letter of 
Support. See attached. 
 

h) Water System Engineering Agreement. See attached. 
 

i) TTA Bylaws (re-stated) See attached. 
 

 
 











JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL CERTIFICATION STANDARDS

Form JCPC/OP 002 (a) Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Certification Application
Form structure last revised August 2020
NC Department of Public Safety

G.S. 143B-853 allows for a 2-year funding cycle for programs that meet the requirements of the statute and have been 
awarded funds in a prior funding cycle. Indicate below if the JCPC plans to allow for a 1-year or 2-year funding cycle.

1-Year Funding: FY 2023-2024

Membership
A. Have the members of the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council been appointed by county commissioners? Yes
B. Are members appointed for two-year terms and are those terms staggered? Yes
C. Is membership reflective of social-economic and racial diversity of the community? Yes
D. Does the membership of the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council reflect the required positions as provided by    

N.C.G.S. §143B-846? Yes
If not, which positions are vacant and why?

The position of a Business Community member has been open and efforts are being made to fill that position. Also, 2 
persons under the age of 21 or 1 person under age 21 and 1 person from the public representing the interests of families 
of at-risk juveniles are currently open on the Board.  Those position are trying to be filled as well. The Juvenile Defense 
Attorney position has not been able to be filled in several years.

Organization
A. Does the JCPC have written Bylaws? Yes
B. Bylaws are On file
C. Bylaws contain Conflict of Interest section per JCPC policy and procedure. Yes
D. Does the JCPC have written policies and procedures for funding and review? Yes
E. These policies and procedures On file
F. Does the JCPC have officers and are they elected annually? Yes

Meetings
A. JCPC meetings are considered open and public notice of meetings is provided. Yes
B. Is a quorum defined as the majority of membership and required to be present in order to conduct business at 

JCPC meetings? Yes
C. Does the JCPC meet six (6) times a year at a minimum? Yes
D. Are minutes taken at all official meetings? Yes
E. Are minutes distributed prior to or during subsequent meetings? Yes

Planning
A. Does the JCPC conduct a biennial planning process which includes a needs assessment, monitoring of 

programs and funding allocation process? Yes
B. Is this Biennial Plan presented to the Board of County Commissioners and to DPS? Yes
C. Is the Funding Plan approved by the full council and submitted to Commissioners for their approval? Yes

Public Awareness
A. Does the JCPC communicate the availability of funds to all public and private non-profit agencies which serve 

children or their families and to other interested community members? Yes
RFP, Distribution List, and Advertisement attached

B. Does the JCPC complete a biennial needs assessment and make that information available to agencies which 
serve children or their families, and to interested community members? Yes

No Overdue Tax Debt



JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL CERTIFICATION STANDARDS

Form JCPC/OP 002 (a) Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Certification Application
Form structure last revised August 2020
NC Department of Public Safety

A. As recipient of the county DPS JCPC allocation, does the County certify that it has no overdue tax debts, as 
defined by N.C.G.S. §105-243.1, at the Federal, State, or local level? Yes

Briefly outline the plan for correcting any areas of standards non-compliance.
Working on filling vacant positions on JCPC membership.



JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL CERTIFICATION STANDARDS

Form JCPC/OP 002 (a) Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Certification Application
Form structure last revised August 2020
NC Department of Public Safety

Instructions: N.C.G.S. § 143B-846 specifies suggested members be appointed by county commissioners to serve on local 
Juvenile Crime Prevention Councils.  In certain categories, a designee may be appointed to serve.  Please indicate the 
person appointed to serve in each category and his/her title.  Indicate appointed members who are designees for named 
positions.  Indicate race and gender for all appointments.

Specified Members Name Title Designee Race Gender

1) School Superintendent or designee Linda Carr Superintendent White Female

2) Chief of Police or designee Willie Williams Chief of Police Black or African-
American

Male

3) Local Sheriff or designee Johnny Barnes Sheriff White Male

4) District Attorney or designee Seth Edwards District Attorney White Male

5) Chief Court Counselor or designee James Ward Chief Court Counselor White Male

6) Director, Local Management Entity/
Managed Care Organization (LME/MCO), or 
designee

Chinita Vaughn SOC-Coordinator for 
Trillium

Black or African-
American

Female

7) Director DSS or designee Clifton Hardison Director White Male

8) County Manager or designee Curtis Potter County Manager White Male

9) Substance Abuse Professional Tonya Johnson Substance Abuse-
Uplift

Black or African-
American

Female

10) Member of Faith Community Harry White Minister Black or African-
American

Male

11) County Commissioner Julius Walker Commissioner Black or African-
American

Male

12) A Person Under the Age of 21 Ni'chelle Caldwell Student Black or African-
American

Female

13) A Person Under the Age of 21, or a member 
of the public representing the interests of 
families of at-risk juveniles

    

14) Juvenile Defense Attorney     

15) Chief District Judge or designee Regina Parker Chief District Court 
Judge

Black or African-
American

Female

16) Member of Business Community     

17) Local Health Director or designee Wes Gray Director White Male

18) Rep. United Way/other non-profit Kay Overton Director-Partnership 
for Children

White Female

19) Representative/Parks and Rec Randy Fulford Parks and Recreation Black or African-
American

Male

20) County Commissioner appointee Dina Brown School Counselor Black or African-
American

Female

21) County Commissioner appointee Doretha Garrett Center for Family 
Violence

Black or African-
American

Female

22) County Commissioner appointee Lucas Denny Supervisor Juvenile 
Justice

Black or African-
American

Male

23) County Commissioner appointee Missy Dixon Fianance Director 
Washington County

White Female



JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL CERTIFICATION STANDARDS

Form JCPC/OP 002 (a) Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Certification Application
Form structure last revised August 2020
NC Department of Public Safety

Specified Members Name Title Designee Race Gender

24) County Commissioner appointee Stephanie Simpson Police Department Black or African-
American

Female

25) County Commissioner appointee

26) County Commissioner appointee

Julius Walker, Jr. Chair
Washington County Board of Commissioners

Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC
Clerk to the Board

ATTEST:  



 
 
 
 
 
  

WASHINGTON COUNTY 
RIVERLIGHT TRANSIT 

Title VI Program Plan 

nondiscrimination 

LEP  

buses 

1964  

 

equality  

civil rights 

  EJ race  gender  

disability  

rights  

fai
  

Title VI  
MPO 

national origin 

age  
  

public participation  

equal opportunity  

 

color  

Date Adopted 
Month/Day/Year 



2 
 
 

TITLE VI PLAN REVIEW AND ADOPTION 
 
On behalf of the Washington County Board of Commissioners, I hereby acknowledge receipt of the Title VI 
Nondiscrimination Plan. We, the Board, have reviewed and hereby adopt this Plan. We are committed to ensuring 
that all decisions are made in accordance with the nondiscrimination guidelines of this Plan, to the end the no person 
is excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise subjected to discrimination under any Washington 
County Riverlight Transit services and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, creed (religion), 
or disability, as protected by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the nondiscrimination provisions of the Federal 
Transit Administration. 
 
____________________________________________   ___________________________ 
Signature of Authorizing Official    DATE 
  



3 
 
 

Table of Contents 
Title VI Nondiscrimination Agreement ................................................................................................................ 5 

1.0  Introduction ................................................................................................................................................... 6 

2.0  Description of Programs and Services .......................................................................................................... 6 

2.1  Program(s) and Services Administered ...................................................................................................... 6 

2.2  Funding Sources / Tables ........................................................................................................................... 6 

2.3  Decision-Making Process ........................................................................................................................... 7 

2.4  Title VI Coordinator .................................................................................................................................... 7 

2.5  Change of Title VI Coordinator and/or Head of Decision-making Body .................................................... 8 

2.6  Organizational Chart .................................................................................................................................. 8 

2.7  Subrecipients ............................................................................................................................................. 8 

3.0  Title VI Nondiscrimination Policy Statement ............................................................................................... 9 

4.0  Notice of Nondiscrimination ....................................................................................................................... 10 

5.0  Procedures to Ensure Nondiscriminatory Administration of Programs and Services .............................. 11 

6.0  Contract Administration ............................................................................................................................. 12 

6.1  Contract Language ................................................................................................................................... 12 

6.2  Nondiscrimination Notice to Prospective Bidders ................................................................................... 14 

7.0  External Discrimination Complaint Procedures ......................................................................................... 15 

Discrimination Complaint Form ...................................................................................................................... 17 

Discrimination Complaints Log ....................................................................................................................... 19 

Investigative Guidance.................................................................................................................................... 20 

SAMPLE Investigative Report Template ......................................................................................................... 21 

8.0  Service Area Population Characteristics ..................................................................................................... 22 

8.1  Race and Ethnicity .................................................................................................................................... 22 

8.2  Age & Sex ................................................................................................................................................. 22 

8.3  Disability................................................................................................................................................... 23 

8.4  Poverty ..................................................................................................................................................... 24 

8.5  Household Income ................................................................................................................................... 25 

8.6  Limited English Proficiency Populations .................................................................................................. 25 

8.7  Population Locations................................................................................................................................ 25 

9.0  Title VI Equity Analyses (and Environmental Justice Assessments) .......................................................... 25 

10.0  Public Involvement .................................................................................................................................... 27 

10.1  Introduction ........................................................................................................................................... 27 

10.2  Public Notification .................................................................................................................................. 27 



4 
 
 

10.3  Dissemination of Information ................................................................................................................ 27 

10.4  Meetings and Outreach ......................................................................................................................... 27 

10.5  Limited English Proficiency .................................................................................................................... 29 

10.6  Demographic Requests .......................................................................................................................... 32 

10.7  Key Community Contacts ....................................................................................................................... 33 

10.8  Summary of Outreach Efforts Since the Last Title VI Program Submission ........................................... 34 

11.0  Staff Training ............................................................................................................................................. 34 

12.0  Nonelected Boards and Committees – By Race and Gender ................................................................... 34 

13.0  Record-Keeping and Reports .................................................................................................................... 35 

Appendices ......................................................................................................................................................... 36 

Appendix A – Applicable Nondiscrimination Authorities 

Appendix B – Organizational Chart 

Appendix C– NCDOT’s Transit Review Checklist 

Appendix D- Limited English Proficiency Populations 

Appendix E- Subrecipients 

  



5 
 
 

TITLE VI NONDISCRIMINATION AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
AND 

WASHINGTON COUNTY RIVERLIGHT TRANSIT 

In accordance with DOT Order 1050.2A, the Washington County Riverlight Transit assures the North Carolina Department 
of Transportation (NCDOT) that no person shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, creed, age, or 
disability, as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 and related 
nondiscrimination authorities, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to 
discrimination or retaliation under any program or activity undertaken by the Washington County Riverlight Transit.  

Further, the Washington County Riverlight Transit hereby agrees to: 

1. Designate a Title VI Coordinator that has a responsible position within the organization and easy access to the 
Director of the organization. 

2. Issue a policy statement, signed by the Director of the organization, which expresses a commitment to the 
nondiscrimination provisions of Title VI and related applicable statutes. The signed policy statement shall be posted 
and circulated throughout the organization and to the general public and published where appropriate in languages 
other than English. The policy statement will be re-signed when there is a change of Director. 

3. Insert the clauses of the contract language from Section 6.1 in every contract awarded by the organization. Ensure 
that every contract awarded by the organization’s contractors or consultants also includes the contract language. 

4. Process all and, when required, investigate complaints of discrimination consistent with the procedures contained 
within this Plan. Log all complaints for the administrative record.  

5. Collect statistical data (race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability) on participants in, and beneficiaries of, 
programs and activities carried out by the organization.  

6. Participate in training offered on Title VI and other nondiscrimination requirements. Conduct or request training for 
employees or the organization’s subrecipients. 

7. Take affirmative action, if reviewed or investigated by NCDOT, to correct any deficiencies found within a reasonable 
time period, not to exceed 90 calendar days, unless reasonable provisions are granted by NCDOT.  

8. Document all Title VI nondiscrimination-related activities as evidence of compliance. Submit information and 
reports to NCDOT on a schedule outlined by NCDOT.  

THIS AGREEMENT is given in consideration of, and for the purpose of obtaining, any and all federal funds, grants, loans, 
contracts, properties, discounts or other federal financial assistance under all programs and activities and is binding. 

 
Authorized Signature 

 
Date 

Clifton Hardison 
Director 

  



6 
 
 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. 2000d provides that: “No person in the United States shall, 
on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits 
of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.” 
The broader application of nondiscrimination law is found in other statutes, executive orders, and 
regulations, which provide additional protections based on age, sex, creed (religion), and disability, 
including the 1987 Civil Rights Restoration Act, which extended nondiscrimination coverage to all 
programs and activities of federal-aid recipients, subrecipients, and contractors, including those that are 
not federally-funded (see Appendix A – Applicable Nondiscrimination Authorities). 
 
The Washington County Riverlight Transit is a recipient of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funds 
from the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT). Washington County Riverlight Transit 
establishes this Title VI Nondiscrimination Plan for the purpose of complying with Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964, as required by FTA Circular 4702.1B, and related requirements outlined within the 
FTA Certifications & Assurances, “Nondiscrimination Assurance.” This document details the 
nondiscrimination program, policies, and practices administered by Washington County Riverlight Transit 
and will be updated periodically to incorporate changes and additional responsibilities as they are made. 
This Plan will be submitted to NCDOT or FTA, upon request.  
 
2.0 DESCRIPTION OF PROGRAMS AND SERVICES  

2.1 PROGRAM(S) AND SERVICES ADMINISTERED  

Riverlight Transit provides public transportation options to its customers within Plymouth city limits and 
Washington County, North Carolina. Our Services are offered at Demand Response. Customer must 
provide a 3-working day notice of services needed. 
 
Riverlight Transit does not operate on observed NC state holidays which include: New Year’s Day, Dr. 
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Veterans Day, 
Thanksgiving, and Christmas.  We also observe the Washington County adopted holiday of Juneteenth.  
 

Type of Service Days of week Times Fare (if applicable) 
Greenville- RGP Tuesdays and Thursdays Appointments must be 

made between 8:00 AM-
11:30 AM 

$15.00 

Williamston, Edenton, 
Columbia-RGP 

Mondays and Wednesdays Appointments must be 
made between 10:00-
Noon 

$10.00 
 

Washington, Elizabeth City- 
RGP  

Mondays and Wednesdays Appointments must be 
made between 10:00- 
Noon 

$15.00 

Within the County-RGP Monday-Friday Varies $5.00 
Plymouth City Limits-RGP Monday-Friday Varies $1.00 

2.2 FUNDING SOURCES / TABLES 

For the purpose of federally assisted programs, "federal assistance" shall include: 
1. grants and loans of Federal funds; 
2. the grant or donation of Federal property and interest in property; 
3. the detail of Federal personnel; 



7 
 
 

4. the sale and lease of, and the permission to use (on other than a casual or transient basis), 
Federal property or any interest in such property without consideration or at a nominal 
consideration, or at a consideration which is reduced for the purpose of assisting the recipient, or 
in recognition of the public interest to be served by such sale or lease to the recipient; and 

5. any Federal agreement, arrangement, or other contract which has, as one of its purposes, the 
provision of assistance. 

 
Each FTA Formula Grant received by our system FY 2023 and whether the funds were received through 
NCDOT or directly from FTA, is checked below.  

Grant Title NCDOT FTA Details 
(i.e., purpose, frequency, and duration of receipt) 

5311 (Formula Grants for Other than 
Urbanized Areas)    

5311 (b)(3) (Rural Transit Assistance)      

Other: ROAP    

2.3 DECISION-MAKING PROCESS 

The Washington County Board of Commissioners is the governing board for Riverlight Transit. All policies 
must be approved through the governing board. The Transit Advisory Board (TAB) provides guidance to the 
transit staff and recommendations to the Board of Commissioners. The TAB meets quarterly on the 3rd 
Wednesday of the month at the Washington County Center for Human Services building at 11: OO am. The 
Board of Commissioners meets monthly on the first Monday of the month at 6:00pm in an announced location. 
 
 

Board or Committee Name Appointed Elected # of Members 

Transit Advisory Board   12 

Board of Commissioners   5 

    

2.4 TITLE VI COORDINATOR 

The individual below has been designated as the Title VI Coordinator for Washington County Riverlight 
Transit, and is empowered with enough authority and responsibility to implement the Title VI 
Nondiscrimination Program: 

 
Name:  Clifton Hardison 
Official Title: Director 
Address:  PO Box 10, Plymouth, NC 27962 
Phone:  (252) 793-4041 
Email:  cliftonh@wcchs.org 

 
Key responsibilities of the Coordinator include:  

• Maintaining knowledge of Title VI and related requirements.  
• Attending civil rights training when offered by NCDOT or any other regulatory agency.  
• Administering the Title VI Nondiscrimination Program and coordinating implementation of this Plan.  
• Training internal staff and officials on their Title VI nondiscrimination obligations.  



8 
 
 

• Disseminating Title VI information internally and to the general public, including in languages other 
than English.  

• Presenting Title VI-related information to decision-making bodies for input and approval.  
• Ensuring Title VI-related posters are prominently and publicly displayed.  
• Developing a process to collect data related to race, national origin, sex, age, and disability to ensure 

minority, low-income, and other underserved groups are included and not discriminated against.  
• Ensuring that non-elected boards and committees reflect the service area and minorities are 

represented.  
• Implementing procedures for prompt processing (receiving, logging, investigating and/or forwarding) of 

discrimination complaints.  
• Coordinating with, and providing information to, NCDOT and other regulatory agencies during 

compliance reviews or complaint investigations.  
• Promptly resolving areas of deficiency to ensure compliance with Title VI nondiscrimination 

requirements.  

2.5 CHANGE OF TITLE VI COORDINATOR AND/OR DIRECTOR 

If Title VI Coordinator or Director changes, this document and all other documents that name the 
Coordinator, will immediately be updated, and an updated policy statement will be signed by the new 
Director.  

2.6 ORGANIZATIONAL CHART  

Washington County Riverlight Transit currently employs eight staff which consist of the following job 
categories: 

• Director 
• Transportation Supervisor 

• Transportation Coordinator 
• Drivers (5) 

An organizational chart showing the Title VI Coordinator’s place within the organization is in Appendix B. 

2.7 SUBRECIPIENTS 

Roanoke Developmental Center and Washington County Senior Center are subrecipients of ROAP 
funding. 
 
Please see Appendix E. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



9 
 
 

3.0         TITLE VI NONDISCRIMINATION POLICY STATEMENT 

It is the policy of Washington County Riverlight Transit as a federal-aid recipient, to 
ensure that no person shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, creed 
(religion), age or disability, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits 
of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any of our programs and 
activities, as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights 
Restoration Act of 1987, and all other related nondiscrimination laws and 
requirements. 

Clifton Hardison, Director 
 

Date  

 
 
 
 
Title VI and Related Authorities 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d) provides that, “No person in the United States 
shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, 
or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance.” The 1987 
Civil Rights Restoration Act (P.L. 100-259) clarified and restored the original intent of Title VI by expanding the 
definition of “programs and activities” to include all programs and activities of federal-aid recipients, 
subrecipients, and contractors, whether such programs and activities are federally assisted or not.   

Related nondiscrimination authorities include, but are not limited to: U.S. DOT regulation, 49 CFR part 21, 
“Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation–Effectuation of  Title 
VI of the Civil Rights Act”; 49 U.S.C. 5332, “Nondiscrimination (Public Transportation)”; FTA Circular 4702.1B 
- Title VI Requirements and Guidelines for Federal Transit Administration Recipients; DOT Order 5610.2a, 
“Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations”; FTA C 
4703.1 - Environmental Justice Policy Guidance For Federal Transit Administration Recipients; Policy Guidance 
Concerning (DOT) Recipient's Responsibilities to Limited English Proficient (LEP) Persons, 74 FR 74087; The 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, P.L. 101-336; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973, 29 U.S.C. 790; Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended 42 U.S.C. 6101; Title IX of the Education 
Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681; Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies 
Act of 1970, 42 U.S.C. 4601; Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. 794d  

Implementation 
• This statement will be signed by the Director of the Washington County Riverlight Transit and re-

signed whenever a new person assumes that position. 
• The signed statement will be posted on office bulletin boards, near the receptionist’s desk, in 

meeting rooms, inside vehicles, and disseminated within brochures and other written materials.  
• The core of the statement (signature excluded) will circulate internally within annual 

acknowledgement forms. 
• The statement will be posted or provided in languages other than English, when appropriate. 

  



10 
 
 

4.0   NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION 
 

 Riverlight Transit operates its programs and services without regard to race, color, national origin, 
sex, creed (religion), age, and disability in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act and related 
statutes. Any person who believes she or he has been aggrieved by any unlawful discriminatory 
practice may file a complaint with Riverlight Transit. 

 For more information on Washington County Riverlight Transit civil rights program, and the procedures 
to file a complaint, contact Clifton Hardison, Director, phone: 252-793-4041; email: cliftonh@wcchs.org 
or visit our administrative office at 209 East Main Street, Plymouth, NC 27962 or TDD/TTY: 800-735-
2962. 

 For more information, visit www.washconc.org and click on Washington County Riverlight Transit Title 
VI Policy Link. 

 If information is needed in another language, contact 252-793-4041. 
 A complainant may file a complaint directly with the North Carolina Department of Transportation by 

filing with the Office of Civil Rights, External Civil Rights Section, 1511 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, 
NC 27699-1511, Attention: Title VI Nondiscrimination Program; phone: 919-508-1808 or 800-522-0453, 
or TDD/TTY: 800-735-2962. 

 A complainant may file a complaint directly with the Federal Transit Administration by filing a complaint 
with the Office of Civil Rights, Attention: Title VI Program Coordinator, East Building, 5th Floor-TCR, 
1200 New Jersey Ave., SE, Washington, DC 20590.  

Implementation 
• The notice will be posted in its entirety on our website and in any documents and reports we 

distribute.  
• The notice will be posted in our offices and inside our vehicles. 
• Ads in newspapers and other publications shall include the following: “Washington County 

Riverlight Transit operates without regard to race, color, national origin, sex, creed (religion), 
age or disability. For more information on Washington County Riverlight Transit’s Title VI 
program or how to file a discrimination complaint, please contact Clifton Hardison, Director, 252-
793-4041; cliftonh@wcchs.org or TTF/TTY: 800-735-2962.  

• The statement will be posted or provided in languages other than English, when appropriate.  
  

mailto:cliftonh@wcchs.org
http://www.washconc.org/
mailto:cliftonh@wcchs.org


11 
 
 

5.0 PROCEDURES TO ENSURE NONDISCRIMINATORY ADMINISTRATION OF 
PROGRAMS AND SERVICES 

We are committed to nondiscriminatory administration of our programs and services, organization wide. 
Riverlight Transit will remind employees of Title VI nondiscrimination obligations through staff training and 
use of the Annual Education and Acknowledgment Form below. The Title VI Coordinator will 
periodically assess program operations to ensure this policy is being followed. 
 

Annual Education and Acknowledgement Form 
 

Title VI Nondiscrimination Policy 
(Title VI and related nondiscrimination authorities)  
 
No person shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, creed, or disability, be 
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any 
program or activity of a Federal-aid recipient.  
 
All employees and representatives of Washington County Riverlight Transit are expected to consider, 
respect, and observe this policy in their daily work and duties. If any person approaches you with a 
civil rights-related question or complaint, please direct him or her to Mr. Clifton Hardison, Director at 
252-793-4041.  
 
In all dealings with the public, use courtesy titles (e.g., Mr., Mrs., Miss, Dr.) to address or refer to them 
without regard to their race, color, national origin, sex, age or disability.  
 
 

Acknowledgement of Receipt of Title VI Program 
 

I hereby acknowledge receipt of Riverlight Transit’s Title VI Program and other nondiscrimination 
guidelines. I have read the Title VI Program and I am committed to ensuring that no person is excluded 
from participation in or denied the benefits of Riverlight Transit’s programs, policies, services and 
activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, creed (religion), or disability, as provided 
by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related nondiscrimination statutes. 
 
__________________________________________  ____________________ 
     Signature         Date 

 
Implementation 
• Periodically, but not more than once a year, employees and representatives will receive, review 

and certify commitment to the Title VI Program.   
• New employees shall be informed of Title VI provisions and expectations to perform their duties, 

accordingly, asked to review the Title VI Program, and required to sign the acknowledgement 
form. 

• Periodic review of operational practices and guidelines by the Title VI Coordinator to verify 
compliance with the Title VI Program. Maintain documents of each review on file.  

• Signed acknowledgement forms and records of internal assessments will remain on file for at least 
three years. 

  



12 
 
 

6.0 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 
Washington County Riverlight Transit ensures all contractors will fulfill their contracts in a 
nondiscriminatory manner. While contractors are not required to prepare a Title VI Program, they must 
comply with the nondiscrimination requirements of the organization to which they are contracted. 
Washington County Riverlight Transit and its contractors will not discriminate in the selection and 
retention of contractors (at any level) or discriminate in employment practices in connection with any of 
our projects. 

6.1 CONTRACT LANGUAGE 
I. During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest 

(hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees as follows: 
 
(1) Compliance with Regulations: The contractor (hereinafter includes consultants) will comply with the Acts and the 
Regulations relative to Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation, 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA), as they may be amended from time to time, which are herein incorporated by 
reference and made a part of this contract. 

(2) Nondiscrimination: The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, will not discriminate 
on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, creed (religion), low-income, limited English proficiency, or 
disability in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. 
The contractor will not participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations, 
including employment practices when the contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 
CFR Part 21. 

(3) Solicitations for Subcontractors, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all solicitations, 
either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, 
including procurements of materials, or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by 
the contractor of the contractor's obligations under this contract and the Acts and the Regulations relative to 
Nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin. 

(4) Information and Reports: The contractor will provide all information and reports required by the Acts, the 
Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to its books, records, accounts, other 
sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the Recipient or the FTA to be pertinent to ascertain 
compliance with such Acts, Regulations, and instructions. Where any information required of a contractor is in the 
exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish the information, the contractor will so certify to the 
Recipient or the FTA, as appropriate, and will set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

(5) Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of a contractor's noncompliance with the Non-discrimination provisions 
of this contract, the Recipient will impose such contract sanctions as it or the FTA may determine to be appropriate, 
including, but not limited to: 

(a) withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies; and/or 
(b) cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part. 

(6) Incorporation of Provisions: The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one through six in every 
subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations 
and directives issued pursuant thereto. The contractor will take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement 
as the Recipient or the FTA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. 
Provided, that if the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier 
because of such direction, the contractor may request the Recipient to enter into any litigation to protect the interests 
of the Recipient. In addition, the contractor may request the United States to enter into the litigation to protect the 
interests of the United States.  
 
II. During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in interest 

(hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees to comply with the following nondiscrimination statutes and 
authorities; including but not limited to: 
 

Pertinent Nondiscrimination Authorities 
• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits discrimination on the 

basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 CFR Part 21. 



13 
 
 

• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), 
(prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or 
Federal-aid programs and projects); 

• Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex); 
• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits discrimination on 

the basis of disability); and 49 CFR Part 27; 
• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis 

of age); 
• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 471, Section 47123), as amended, (prohibits 

discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex); 
• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and applicability of Title 

VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 
1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of 
the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are Federally 
funded or not); 

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of disability in the 
operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain 
testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-12189) as implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49  
C.F.R. parts 37 and 38; 

• The Federal Aviation Administration's Nondiscrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex); 

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income 
Populations, which ensures Nondiscrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, 
and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority and low-
income populations; 

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting 
agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of Limited English proficiency 
(LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have 
meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100); 

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating because of 
sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq); 

• Federal transit laws, specifically 49 U.S.C. § 5332 (prohibiting discrimination based on race, color, religion, national 
origin, sex (including gender identity), disability, age, employment, or business opportunity). 

 
*The Contractor has read and is familiar with the terms above:  

Contractor’s Initials 
Date 

 

Implementation 
• The nondiscrimination language above (with initials line) will be appended to any existing contracts, 

purchase orders, and agreements that do not include it, and initialed by the responsible official of 
the other organization.  

• The nondiscrimination language above (without initials line) will be incorporated as standard 
language before the signature page of our standard contracts, purchase orders, and agreements. 

• The Title VI Coordinator will review existing contracts to ensure the language has been added. 
 

 

 

 

 

 



14 
 
 

6.2   NONDISCRIMINATION NOTICE TO PROSPECTIVE BIDDERS 

The Riverlight Transit, in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related 
nondiscrimination authorities, and Title 49 Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 21 and 26, 
hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively insure that in any contact entered into 
pursuant to this advertisement, minority and women business enterprises will be afforded full 
opportunity to submit bids in response to this invitation and will not be discriminated against 
on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, creed, limited English proficiency, 
low-income, or disability in consideration for an award.  
 
 

Implementation 
• The nondiscrimination language above will be included in all solicitations for bids for work or 

material and proposals for negotiated agreements to assure interested firms that we provide equal 
opportunity and do not discriminate. 

• Outreach efforts will be made to minority and women-owned firms that work in requested fields and 
documented. 

• Unless specifically required under Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) or Affirmative Action 
programs, all contractors will be selected without regard to their race, color, national origin, or sex. 



15 
 
 

7.0   EXTERNAL DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 
These discrimination complaint procedures outline the process used by Riverlight Transit to process 
complaints of alleged discrimination filed under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related 
nondiscrimination laws that are applicable to Riverlight Transit programs, services, and activities. 
Complaints will be investigated by the appropriate authority. Upon completion of an investigation, the 
complainant will be informed of all avenues of appeal. Every effort will be made to obtain early resolution 
of complaints at the lowest level possible by informal means.  
 
FILING OF COMPLAINTS  
1. Applicability – These procedures apply to the beneficiaries of our programs, activities, and services, 

such as the members of the public and any consultants/contractors we hire. 

2. Eligibility – Any person or class of persons who believes that he/she has been subjected to 
discrimination or retaliation prohibited by any of the Civil Rights authorities based upon race, color, 
sex, age, national origin, creed (religion) or disability, may file a written complaint. The law prohibits 
intimidation or retaliation of any sort. The complaint may be filed by the affected individual or a 
representative and must be in writing. 

3. Time Limits and Filing Options – A complaint must be filed no later than 180 calendar days after 
the following: 
 The date of the alleged act of discrimination; or 
 The date when the person(s) became aware of the alleged discrimination; or 
 Where there has been a continuing course of conduct, the date on which that conduct was 

discontinued or the latest instance of the conduct. 
Complaints may be submitted to the following entities: 
 Washington County Riverlight Transit, Title VI Coordinator, PO Box 10, Plymouth, NC 

27962, (252) 793-4041. 
 North Carolina Department of Transportation, Office of Civil Rights, External Civil Rights 

Section, 1511 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC  27699-1511; 919-508-1830 or toll free 800-522-
0453 

 US Department of Transportation, Departmental Office of Civil Rights, External Civil Rights 
Programs Division, 1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE, Washington, DC  20590; 202-366-4070 
Federal Transit Administration, Office of Civil Rights, ATTN: Title VI Program Coordinator, East 

Bldg. 5th Floor – TCR, 1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE, Washington, DC 20590 
 US Department of Justice, Special Litigation Section, Civil Rights Division, 950 Pennsylvania 

Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20530, 202-514-6255 or toll free 877-218-5228 

4. Format for Complaints – Complaints shall be in writing and signed by the complainant(s) or a 
representative and include the complainant’s name, address, and telephone number. Complaints 
received by fax or e-mail will be acknowledged and processed. Allegations received by telephone or 
in person will be reduced to writing, may be recorded and will be provided to the complainant for 
confirmation or revision before processing. Complaints will be accepted in other languages, including 
Braille.  

5. Discrimination Complaint Form – The Discrimination Complaint Form is consistent with the FTA 
Certifications & Assurances, “Nondiscrimination Assurance.” 

6. Complaint Basis – Allegations must be based on issues involving race, color, national origin, sex, 
age, creed (religion) or disability. The term “basis” refers to the complainant’s membership in a 
protected group category.  



16 
 
 

Protected 
Categories 

Definition Examples Applicable Statutes and 
Regulations 
FTA 

Race An individual belonging to one of the accepted 
racial groups; or the perception, based usually on 
physical characteristics that a person is a member 
of a racial group 

Black/African American, 
Hispanic/Latino, Asian, 
American Indian/Alaska 
Native, Native 
Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, 
White 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964;  
49 CFR Part 21;  
49 U.S.C. 5332(b); 
FTA Circular 4702.1B  

Color Color of skin, including shade of skin within a 
racial group 

Black, White, brown, yellow, 
etc. 

National 
Origin 

Place of birth. Citizenship is not a factor. 
Discrimination based on language or a person’s 
accent is also covered. 

Mexican, Cuban, Japanese, 
Vietnamese, Chinese 

Sex Gender Women and Men 49 U.S.C. 5332(b); Title IX of the 
Education Amendments of 1972 

Age Persons of any age 21 year old person Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
Disability Physical or mental impairment, permanent or 

temporary, or perceived. 
Blind, alcoholic, para-
amputee, epileptic, diabetic, 
arthritic 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation 
Act of 1973; Americans with 
Disabilities Act of 1990  

Creed Religion. Muslim, Christian, Hindu, 
Atheist 

49 U.S.C. 5332(b) 

Complaint Processing 
1. When a complaint is received, an Acknowledgment Letter and a Complainant Consent/Release Form 

will be mailed to the complainant within ten (10) business days by registered mail.  
2. We will consult with the NCDOT Title VI Program to determine the acceptability and jurisdiction of all 

complaints received. (Note: If NCDOT will investigate, the Title VI Program will be responsible for the 
remainder of this process. We will record the transfer of responsibility in our complaints log).  

3. Additional information will be requested if the complaint is incomplete. The complainant will be 
provided 15 business days to submit any requested information and the signed Consent Release 
form. Failure to do so may be considered good cause for a determination of no investigative merit. 

4. Upon receipt of the requested information and determination of jurisdiction, we will notify the 
complainant and respondent of whether the complaint has enough merit to warrant investigation.   

5. If the complaint is investigated, the notification shall state the grounds of our jurisdiction, while 
informing the parties that their full cooperation will be required in gathering additional information and 
assisting the investigator.   

6. If the complaint does not warrant investigation, the notification to the complainant shall specifically 
state the reason for the decision.  

Complaint Log  
1. When a complaint is received, the complaint will be entered into the Discrimination Complaints Log 

with other pertinent information and assigned a Case Number. (Note: All complaints must be logged).  
2. The complaints log will be submitted to the NCDOT’s Civil Rights office during Title VI compliance 

reviews. (Note: NCDOT may also be request the complaints log during pre-grant approval 
processes).  

3. The Log Year(s) since the last submittal will be entered (e.g., 2015-2018, 2017-2018, FFY 2018, or 
2018) and the complaints log will be signed before submitting the log to NCDOT.  

4. When reporting no complaints, check the No Complaints or Lawsuits box and sign the log. 



17 
 
 

WASHINGTON COUNTY RIVERLIGHT TRANSIT 
DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT FORM 

Any person who believes that he/she has been subjected to discrimination based upon race, color, creed, sex, age, national origin, or disability 
may file a written complaint with Washington County Riverlight Transit, within 180 days after the discrimination occurred. 
Last Name: First Name:  Male 

 Female 
Mailing Address: City State Zip 

Home Telephone: Work Telephone: E-mail Address 

Identify the Category of Discrimination: 

 RACE  COLOR  NATIONAL ORIGIN  SEX 

 CREED (RELIGION)  DISABILITY  LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY  AGE  

*NOTE: Title VI bases are race, color, national origin. All other bases are found in the “Nondiscrimination Assurance” of the FTA Certifications & Assurances. 

Identify the Race of the Complainant 

 Black  White  Hispanic  Asian American 
 American Indian  Alaskan Native  Pacific Islander  Other _________________ 

Date and place of alleged discriminatory action(s). Please include earliest date of discrimination and most recent date of discrimination. 

Names of individuals responsible for the discriminatory action(s): 

How were you discriminated against? Describe the nature of the action, decision, or conditions of the alleged discrimination. Explain as clearly 
as possible what happened and why you believe your protected status (basis) was a factor in the discrimination. Include how other persons 
were treated differently from you. (Attach additional page(s), if necessary). 

The law prohibits intimidation or retaliation against anyone because he/she has either taken action, or participated in action, to secure rights 
protected by these laws. If you feel that you have been retaliated against, separate from the discrimination alleged above, please explain the 
circumstances below. Explain what action you took which you believe was the cause for the alleged retaliation. 
  

Names of persons (witnesses, fellow employees, supervisors, or others) whom we may contact for additional information to support or clarify 
your complaint: (Attached additional page(s), if necessary). 
 Name Address Telephone 
 
1.  
 
2.  
 
3.  
 
4.  



18 
 
 

DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT FORM 
Have you filed, or intend to file, a complaint regarding the matter raised with any of the following? If yes, please provide the filing dates. Check 
all that apply. 
  NC Department of Transportation   
  Federal Transit Administration   
  US Department of Transportation   
  US Department of Justice   
  Federal or State Court   
  Other   

Have you discussed the complaint with any Washington County Riverlight Transit representative? If yes, provide the name, position, and date 
of discussion. 

Please provide any additional information that you believe would assist with an investigation. 

Briefly explain what remedy, or action, are you seeking for the alleged discrimination. 

**WE CANNOT ACCEPT AN UNSIGNED COMPLAINT.  PLEASE SIGN AND DATE THE COMPLAINT FORM BELOW. 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________ 
COMPLAINANT’S SIGNATURE 
 

 
 
__________________________________ 
DATE 

 
MAIL COMPLAINT FORM TO: 
Washington County Riverlight Transit 

Attn: Clifton Hardison 
209 East Main Street 
Plymouth, NC 27962 

EMAIL: cliftonh@wchs.org 
PHONE: (252) 793-4041 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
Date Complaint Received:   
Processed by:   
Case #:   
Referred to: NCDOT  FTA Date Referred:  



19 
 
 

DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINTS LOG 
Log Year(s):   

CASE 
NO. 

COMPLAINANT 
NAME 

RACE/ 
GENDER 

RESPONDEN
T NAME 

BASIS DATE 
FILED 

DATE 
RECEIVE

D 

ACTION TAKEN DATE 
INVESTIG. 

COMPLETED 

DISPOSITION 

          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          

No Complaints or Lawsuits  
 
I certify that to the best of my knowledge, the above described complaints or lawsuits alleging discrimination, or no complaints or lawsuits 
alleging discrimination, have been filed with or against Washington County since the previous Title VI Program submission to NCDOT. 
 
_______________________________________________________________     ______________________________ 
  Signature of Title VI Coordinator or Other Authorized Official        Date 
 
_______________________________________________________________   
  Print Name and Title of Authorized Official



20 
 
 

INVESTIGATIVE GUIDANCE 

A. Scope of Investigation – An investigation should be confined to the issues and facts relevant to the 
allegations in the complaint, unless evidence shows the need to extend the issues. 
 

B. Developing an Investigative Plan – It is recommended that the investigator prepares an Investigative 
Plan (IP) to define the issues and lay out the blueprint to complete the investigation. The IP should 
follow the outline below: 

 
1. Complainant(s) Name and Address (Attorney name and address if applicable) 
2. Respondent(s) Name and Address (Attorney for the Respondent(s) name and address) 
3. Applicable Law(s) 
4. Basis/(es) 
5. Allegation(s)/Issue(s) 
6. Background 
7. Name of Persons to be interviewed 

a. Questions for the complainant(s) 
b. Questions for the respondent(s) 
c. Questions for witness(es) 

8. Evidence to be obtained during the investigation 
a. Issue – e.g., Complainant alleges his predominantly African American community was 

excluded from a meeting concerning a future project which could affect the community. 
i. Documents needed: e.g., mailing list which shows all physical addresses, P.O. Box 

numbers, property owner names, and dates when the meeting notification was mailed; 
other methods used by the RPO to advertise the meeting. 

 
C. Request for Information – The investigator should gather data and information pertinent to the issues 

raised in the complaint.  
 

D. Interviews – Interviews should be conducted with the complainant, respondent, and appropriate 
witnesses during the investigative process. Interviews are conducted to gain a better understanding of 
the situation outlined in the complaint of discrimination. The main objective during the interview is to 
obtain information that will either support or refute the allegations.  

 
E. Developing an Investigative Report – The investigator should prepare an investigative report setting 

forth all relevant facts obtained during the investigation. The report should include a finding for each 
issue. A sample investigative report is provided below. 

  



21 
 
 

Investigative Report 
 

I. COMPLAINANT(S) NAME (or attorney for the complainant(s) – name and address if applicable 
Name, Address, Phone: 999-999-9999 
 

II. RESPONDENT(S) (or attorney for the respondent(s) – name and address if applicable) 
Name, Address, Phone: 999-999-9999 
 

III. APPLICABLE LAW/REGULATION  
[For example, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d); 49 CFR §21.11; 49 CFR §26.53)] 
 

IV. COMPLAINT BASIS/(ES)  
[For example, Race, Color, National Origin, Creed (Religion), Sex, Age, Disability)] 
 

V. ISSUES/ALLEGATIONS  
[Describe in logical sequence, each allegation including the prohibited basis for the alleged discriminatory 
conduct, (e.g., race, color, creed, sex, national origin, age, or disability) and the specific statutory or 
regulatory provision the allegation would violate, if proven to be true.] 
 
Issue #1 – Complainant alleges that transit system failed to inform minority communities of rate increases. 
Issue #2 – Complainant alleges that transit system has not sufficiently publicized or held public meetings to 
share information regarding fare increases and route changes that impacts low-income and minority citizens. 
 

VI. BACKGROUND  
[Provide detailed information regarding the complaint, including a historical overview of the case, including 
any activities or actions taken prior to accepting the complaint for investigation.] 

 

VII. INVESTIGATIVE PROCEDURE  
[Describe in detail, methods used to conduct the investigation, such as document requests, interviews and 
site visits. Include witnesses’ names and addresses, documents received and/or reviewed, emails sent and 
received.] 
 

VIII. ISSUES / FINDINGS OF FACT  
[Provide a detailed description of the investigator’s analysis of each allegation, based on clear and factual 
findings. Include specific evidence used to support your findings.] 
 

IX. CONCLUSION 
[State whether discrimination did or did not occur. Conclusions must be evidence-based and defensible. Test 
conclusions by considering all possible rebuttal arguments from the respondent and complainant. Both 
respondent and the complainant should be given an opportunity to confirm or rebut the assertions of the 
other party and your findings, but all the evidence you’ve presented should speak for itself.] 
 

X. RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
[Outline what should be done to remedy the findings or, if necessary, provide justice for the complainant.] 
 
 
APPENDIX 
[Include in the Appendix any supplemental materials that support your findings and conclusion.] 



22 
 
 

8.0 SERVICE AREA POPULATION CHARACTERISTICS 
 
To ensure that Title VI reporting requirements are met, we will collect and maintain population data on 
potential and actual beneficiaries of our programs and services. This section contains relevant population 
data for our overall service area. This data provides context for the Title VI Nondiscrimination Program and 
will be used to ensure nondiscrimination in public outreach and delivery of our programs and services.  
 
 
 

8.1 RACE AND ETHNICITY 

The following table was completed using data from Census Table QT-P3, Race and Hispanic or Latino 
Origin: 2020: 
 
 

Race and Ethnicity Number Percent 
     Total Population 11,183 100 
          White 4,999 45.0 
          Black or African American 5,375 49.0 
          American Indian or Alaska Native  23 0.2 
          Asian 37 0.3 
          Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 9 0.0 
          Some other Race 223 2.0 
     Two or More Races 337 3.0 
   
     HISPANIC OR LATINO (of any race) 646 5.9 
          Mexican 502 4.6 
          Puerto Rican 95 0.9 
          Cuban 1 0.0 
          Other Hispanic or Latino 4 0.0 

 
8.2 AGE & SEX 

The following table was completed using data from Census Table QT-P1, Age Groups and Sex: 2020: 
 
 

Age 
Number Percent 

Both sexes Male Female Both sexes Male Female 
     Total Population 11,183 5,524 5,659 100% 49% 51% 
          Under 5 years 176 81 95 1.6% 1.5% 1.7% 
          Under 18 years 2,279 1,406 873 20.4% 25.5% 15.4% 

          18 to 64 years  
 

8,904   4118 4786 79.6%% 74.5% 84.6% 

          65 years and over 2,806 1,265 1,541 25.1% 22.9% 27.2% 
Median Age 47.8 43.9 51.0  

 

 



23 
 
 

 

 

8.3   DISABILITY 

The following table was completed using data from Census Table S1810, Disability Characteristics:  
 

Subject 

Total With a Disability Percent with a Disability 

Estimate 
Margin of 
Error +/- Estimate 

Margin of 
Error +/- Estimate 

Margin of 
Error +/- 

Total civilian noninstitutionalized population 11,051 92 2650 331 24% 3.0 
   Population under 5 years 176 109 0 21 0% 20.2 
   Population 5 to 17 years 2096 108 36 32 1.7% 1.6 
   Population 18 to 64 years 6,047 68 194 123 3.2% 2.0 
   Population 65 years and over 2,732 75 421 136 15.4 4.9 
SEX       
   Male 5445 240 1397 259 25.7% 5.1 
   Female 5606 248 1253 202 22.4% 3.7 
RACE AND HISPANIC OR LATINO ORIGIN       
   White  4925 151 1206 190 24.5% 3.9 
   Black or African American  5422 181 1303 240 24.0% 4.3 
   American Indian and Alaska Native  58 72 46 72 79.3% 53.8 
   Asian  36 57 21 34 58.3% 15.9 
   Native American and Other Pacific 
Islander 0 21 0 21   

   Some other Race 342 162 4 9 1.2% 3.4 
   Two or more races 268 168 70 56 26.1% 17.6 
   Hispanic or Latino 643 3 83 64 12.9% 10.0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



24 
 
 

 
 

8.4  POVERTY 
   

 
 
The following table was completed using data from Census Table S1701, Poverty Status in the Past 12 
Months: 
 

Subject 

Total Below poverty level Percent below poverty 
level 

Estimate 
Margin of 
Error +/- Estimate 

Margin of 
Error +/- Estimate 

Margin of 
Error +/- 

Population for whom poverty status is 
determined 11,043 94 2675 516 24.2% 4.7 

AGE       
   Under 18 2,233 58 748 212 33.5% 9.6 
   18 to 64 6,078 65 1658 362 27.3% 6.0 
   65 years and over 2732 75 269 129 9.8% 4.7 
SEX       
   Male 5437 234 1521 320 28.0% 6.3 
   Female 5606 248 1154 325 20.6% 5.7 
RACE AND HISPANIC OR LATINO ORIGIN       
   White  4921 146 423 211 8.6% 4.3 
   Black or African American  5422 181 2100 428 38.7% 8.0 
   American Indian and Alaska Native  58 72 0 21 0% 43.2 
   Asian  36 57 0 21 0% 54.8 
   Native American and Other Pacific Islander 0 21 0 21   
   Some other Race 342 162 135 188 39.5% 54.4 
   Two or more races 264 167 17 24 6.4% 8.8 
   Hispanic or Latino 639 10 168 190 26.3% 29.6 
RACE AND HISPANIC OR LATINO ORIGIN       
All individuals below:       
   50 percent of poverty level 1205 438     
   125 percent of poverty level 3345 546     
   150 percent of poverty level 3877 557     
   185 percent of poverty level 5202 608     
   200 percent of poverty level 5533 610     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



25 
 
 

 
 
 

8.5  HOUSEHOLD INCOME 

 
The following table was completed using data from Census Table S1901, Income in the Past 12 Months 
(In 2013 Inflation-Adjusted Dollars):  
 

Subject 
Households 

Estimate Margin of Error +/- 
Total   
   Less than $10,000 18.3% 5.8 
   $10,000 to $14,999 6.5% 3.1 
   $15,000 to $24,999 17.3% 5.0 
   $25,000 to $34,999 10.0% 3.0 
   $35,000 to $49,999 11.8% 3.3 
   $50,000 to $74,999 16.2% 4.2 
   $75,000 to $99,999 12.8% 3.7 
   $100,000 to $149,999 5.1% 2.2 
   $150,000 to $199,999 0.6% 0.6 
   $200,000 or more 1.3% 1.1 
   
Median income (dollars) $32,937 5,771 
Mean income (dollars) $47,333 6,770 

 
8.6 LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY POPULATIONS 

A chart showing the Limited English Proficiency Populations is located at the end of this policy in 
Appendix D. 

8.7 POPULATION LOCATIONS 

Federal-aid recipients are required to identify the characteristics and locations of populations they serve, 
particularly by race/ethnicity, poverty and limited English proficiency. We will document this narratively or 
through maps that overlay boundaries and demographic features on specific communities, and provide this 
information to NCDOT, upon request.  

9.0   TITLE VI EQUITY ANALYSES (AND ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE ASSESSMENTS) 
Title VI Equity Analyses. In accordance with FTA Circular 4702.1B, a Title VI equity analysis will be 
conducted whenever we construct a facility, such as a vehicle storage facility, maintenance facility, or 
operation center. The equity analysis will be conducted during the planning stage, with regard to the 
location of the facility, to determine if the project could result in a disparate impact to minority communities 
based on race, color or national origin. Accordingly, we will look at various alternatives before selecting a 
site for the facility. Project-specific demographic data on potentially affected communities and their 
involvement in decision-making activities will be documented. Title VI Equity Analyses will remain on file 
indefinitely, and copies will be provided to NCDOT, upon request, during compliance reviews or complaint 
investigations.  



26 
 
 

Environmental Justice Analyses. As required by FTA C 4703.1, environmental justice (EJ) analyses will 
be conducted to determine if our programs, policies, or activities will result in disproportionately high and 
adverse human health and environmental effects on minority populations and low-income populations. EJ 
applies to our projects, such as when we construct or modify a facility, and our policies, such as when 
there will be a change in service, amenities or fares. Thus, we will look at various alternatives and seek 
input from potentially affected communities before making a final decision. Demographic data will be 
collected to document their involvement in the decision-making process. EJ analyses will remain on file 
indefinitely, and copies will be provided to NCDOT, upon request, during compliance reviews or complaint 
investigations.   



27 
 
 

10.0    PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT  

10.1 INTRODUCTION 

Effective public involvement is a key element in addressing Title VI in decision-making. This Public 
Participation Plan describes how Washington County Riverlight Transit will disseminate vital agency 
information and engage the public. We will seek out and consider the input and needs of interested parties 
and groups traditionally underserved by transportation systems who may face challenges accessing our 
services, such as minority and limited English proficient (LEP) persons. Underlying these efforts is our 
commitment to determining the most effective outreach methods for a given project or population.  
 
General public involvement practices will include: 

• Expanding traditional outreach methods. Think outside the box: Go to hair salons, barbershops, street 
fairs, etc. 

• Providing for early, frequent and continuous engagement by the public. 
• Use of social media and other resources as a way to gain public involvement. 
• Coordinating with community- and faith-based organizations such as the Hispanic Liaison, educational 

institutions, and other entities to implement public engagement strategies that reach out specifically to 
members of affected minority and/or LEP communities. 

• Providing opportunities for public participation through means other than written communication, such 
as personal interviews or use of audio or video recording devices to capture oral comments. 

• Considering radio, television, or newspaper ads on stations and in publications that serve LEP 
populations. Outreach to LEP persons could also include audio programming available on podcasts. 

 

10.2 PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 

Passengers and other interested persons will be informed of their rights under Title VI and related 
authorities with regard to our program. The primary means of achieving this will be posting and 
disseminating the policy statement and notice as stipulated in Sections 3.0 and 4.0, respectively. 
Additional measures may include verbally announcing our obligations and the public’s rights at meetings, 
placing flyers at places frequented by targeted populations, and an equal opportunity tag-on at the end of 
radio announcements. The method of notification will be determined through an initial screening of the 
area. 

10.3 DISSEMINATION OF INFORMATION 

Information on Title VI and other programs will be crafted and disseminated to employees, contractors and 
subrecipients, stakeholders, and the general public. Public dissemination efforts may vary depending on 
factors present, but will generally include: posting public statements setting forth our nondiscrimination 
policy in eye-catching designs and locations; placing brochures in public places, such as government 
offices, transit facilities, and libraries; having nondiscrimination language within contracts; including 
nondiscrimination notices in meeting announcements and handouts; and displaying our Notice of 
Nondiscrimination at all our public meetings. 
 
At a minimum, nondiscrimination information will be disseminated on our website and on posters in 
conspicuous areas at our office(s). Project-related information and our most current Title VI-related 
information will be maintained online.   

10.4 MEETINGS AND OUTREACH 

There is no one-size-fits-all approach to public involvement. A variety of comprehensive and targeted 
public participation methods will be used to facilitate meaningful public involvement. Methods for engaging 



28 
 
 

stakeholders and target audiences, including traditionally underserved and excluded populations (i.e., 
minorities, youth, low-income, the disabled, etc.) will include the following:  

Public Relations and Outreach 
Public relations and outreach (PRO) strategies aim to conduct well-planned, inclusive and meaningful 
public participation events that foster good relations and mutual trust through shared decision-making with 
the communities we serve.  

• We will seek out and facilitate the involvement of those potentially affected. 
• Public events will aim to be collaborative, fun, and educational for all, rather than confrontational and 

prescriptive. 
• Media plans will typically involve multiple channels of communication like mailings, radio, TV, and 

newspaper ads. 
• Abstract objectives will be avoided in meeting announcements. Specific “attention-grabbing” reasons 

to attend will be used, such as “Help us figure out how to relieve congestion on [corridor name]” or 
“How much should it cost to ride the bus? Let us know on [date].” 

• Efforts will be made to show how the input of participants can, or did, influence final decisions.  
• We will do our best to form decision-making committees that look like and relate to the populations we 

serve.  
• We will seek out and identify community contacts and partner with local community- and faith-based 

organizations that can represent, and help us disseminate information to, target constituencies.  
• Demographic data will be requested during public meetings, surveys, and from community contacts 

and committee members.  

Public Meetings 
“Public meeting” refers to any meeting open to the public, such as hearings, charrettes, open house and 
board meetings. 

• Public meetings will be conducted at times, locations, and facilities that are convenient and accessible.  
• Meeting materials will be available in a variety of predetermined formats to serve diverse audiences. 
• An assortment of advertising means may be employed to inform the community of public meetings. 
• Assistance to persons with disabilities or limited English proficiency will be provided, as required.  

Small Group Meetings 
A small group meeting is a targeted measure where a meeting is held with a specific group, usually at their 
request or consent. These are often closed meetings, as they will typically occur on private property at the 
owner’s request.   

• If it is determined that a targeted group has not been afforded adequate opportunities to participate, 
the group will be contacted to inquire about possible participation methods, including a group meeting 
with them individually.  

• Unless unusual circumstances or safety concerns exist, hold the meeting at a location of the target 
group’s choosing. 

• Share facilitation duties or relinquish them to members of the target group.   
• Small group discussion formats may be integrated into larger group public meetings and workshops. 

When this occurs, the smaller groups will be as diverse as the participants in the room.  



29 
 
 

Community Surveying 
• Opinion surveys will occasionally be used to obtain input from targeted groups or the general public on 

their transportation needs, the quality or costs of our services, and feedback on our public outreach 
efforts.  

• Surveys may be conducted via telephone, door-to-door canvassing, at community fairs, by placing 
drop boxes in ideal locations, or with assistance from other local agencies like social services. 

• Surveys will be translated into languages other than English, when appropriate. 

10.5 LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY  

Limited English Proficient (LEP) persons are individuals for whom English is not their primary language 
and who have a limited ability to read, write, speak, or understand English. These individuals reported to 
the U.S. Census Bureau that they speak English less than very well. 
 
To comply with USDOT’s LEP Policy Guidance and Executive Order 13166, this section of our Title VI 
Plan outlines the steps we will take to ensure meaningful access by LEP persons to all benefits, services 
and information provided under our programs and activities. A four-factor analysis was conducted to 
determine the LEP language groups present in our planning area and the specific language services that 
are needed.  

Four Factor Analysis 
This Four Factor Analysis is an individualized assessment that balances the following four factors: 

(1) The number or proportion of LEP persons eligible to be served or likely to be encountered by a 
program, activity, or service of the recipient or grantee;  

(2) The frequency with which LEP individuals come in contact with the program;  
(3) The nature and importance of the program, activity, or service provided by the recipient to people’s 

lives; and  
(4) The resources available to the recipient and costs. 

Factor #1:  The number or proportion of LEP persons eligible to be served or likely to be 
encountered by the program, activity, or service of the recipient. 

 
 
 

LANGUAGE SPOKEN AT HOME Estimate Margin of 
Error 

Percent of 
Population 

Margin of 
Error 

Total (population 5 years and over): 11,935 +/- 102 100% (X) 
Speak only English 11,556 +/- 183 97% +/- % 
Spanish or Spanish Creole: 350 +/- 113 3% +/- % 
     Speak English "very well" 238 +/- 109 2% +/- % 
     Speak English less than "very 
well" 112 

+/- 77 .09% +/- % 

German 23 +/- 31 .002% +/- % 
     Speak English "very well" 3 +/- 6 .0003% +/- % 
     Speak English less than "very 
well" 20 

+/- 30 .002% +/- % 
Other Indo-European languages: 2 +/- 3 .0002% +/- % 
     Speak English "very well" 2 +/-3  .0002% +/- % 
     Speak English less than "very 
well" 0 

+/- 19 % +/- % 



30 
 
 

Washington County, North Carolina has an estimate population of 11,935 with approximately 350 people 
have been identified as Spanish Speaking and 112 which is .09% that may speak English less than well. 
Two other language groups were identified; however, none met the threshold of above 5% or 1,000 
persons. This means, at this time, the Riverlight Transit System is not required to provide written 
translation of vital documents in these languages. However, the transit systems brochure is published in 
Spanish. In addition, the Washington County Department of Social Services contracts with Pacific 
Interpreters. Every Limited English Proficiency (LEP) customer who enters into the agency requesting 
services will be given a Language Service Agreement for Limited English Proficiency (LEP) Customer 
Form (DSS 10001). This form offers the customer the services for an interpreter/translator at no cost to the 
customer. 

Factor #2:  The frequency with which LEP individuals come in contact with the program. 

The Riverlight Transit System will be trained on what to do when they encounter a person that speaks 
English less than well. The Riverlight Transit System will track the number of encounters and consider 
making adjustments as needed to its outreach efforts to ensure meaningful access to all persons and 
specifically to LEP and minority populations of the Riverlight Transits System’s programs and services. 
 
Riverlight Transit System has an open-door policy and will provide rides to any person who requests a 
ride. If an individual has speech limitations, the dispatcher or driver will work with the Transit Coordinator 
and the Riverlight Transit System, if needed to ensure the individual receives access to the transportation 
service.  

Factor #3: The nature and importance of the program, activity, or service provided by the recipient 
to people’s lives. 

The Riverlight Transit System understands an LEP person with language barrier challenges also faces 
difficulties obtaining health care, education or access to employment. A transportation system is a key link 
to connecting LEP persons to these essential services. 
 
The Riverlight Transit System has identified activities and services which would have serious 
consequences to individuals if language barriers prevented access to information or the benefits of those 
programs. The activities and services include providing emergency evacuation instructions in our facilities, 
stations and vehicles and providing information to the public on security awareness or emergency 
preparedness. 
 
The Riverlight Transit System’s assessment of what programs, activities and services that are most critical 
included contact with community organization(s) that serve LEP persons, as well as contact with LEP 
persons themselves to obtain information on the importance of the modes or the types of services that are 
provided to the LEP populations. 

Factor #4: The resources available to the recipient and costs. 

Even though the Riverlight Transit System does not have a separate budget for LEP outreach, the 
brochures have been translated into Spanish. The transit system is a part of the local department of social 
services who contract with Pacific Interpreters to provide interpreter/translator services. The transit staff 
use this service to provide assistance to LEP persons. 



31 
 
 

LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE PLAN 
As a result of the above four factor analysis, a Language Assistance Plan (LAP) was not required. 
However, reasonable attempts will be made to accommodate any persons encountered who require 
written translation or oral interpretation services. 
 
Language Assistance Measures 
The following general language assistance measures are reasonable and achievable for our organization 
at this time:  
• Translating public notices posted in the local paper and at stations, stops, and in vehicles into any 

languages that meet the safe harbor threshold in Factor 1.  
• Vital documents—such as brochures with service times and routes—are translated into Spanish 

across the entire service area, and available in our facilities, doctor’s offices and shopping centers.  
• Making a concerted effort to inform LEP persons of available language assistance via staff, broadcast 

media, relationship-building with organizations, and our website.  
• Posting vital bulletin board information and disseminating community surveys in various languages.   
• Providing translation and interpretive services when appropriate (upon request or predetermined) at 

meetings. 
• Determining how best to take public involvement to LEP groups directly, including through small group 

meetings.  
• Where possible, utilizing or hiring staff who speak a language other than English and can provide 

competent language assistance.  
o Note: We will not ask community-based organizations (CBO) to provide, or serve as, 

interpreters at our meetings. Relying upon CBOs in that capacity could raise ethical concerns. 
If a CBO decides (on its own) to translate any materials for its constituents, or bring 
interpreters it trusts to our meetings, we will not object. That is their right.  

• Using language identification flashcards to determine appropriate services. 
• Establishing a process to obtain feedback on our language assistance measures. 
 
 
Written Translation and Oral Interpretation 
Vital documents will be translated for each eligible LEP language group in our service area that constitutes 
5% or 1,000, whichever is less, of the population of persons eligible to be served or likely to be 
encountered. Translated materials will be placed online and in appropriate public (or private) places 
accessible to LEP persons. The safe harbor provisions apply to the translation of written documents only, 
and do not affect the requirement to provide meaningful access to LEP individuals through competent oral 
interpreters where oral language services are needed and are reasonable. When appropriate, translation 
of any document will be communicated orally in the appropriate language.  
 
In the event that the 5% trigger is reached for a LEP language group that is fewer than 50 persons, written 
notice will be provided in the primary language of that group of the right to receive competent oral 
interpretation of vital written materials, free of cost. The most effective method of notice, which could be an 
ad in the local newspaper or other publication, a radio commercial, or door hangers, will be determined in 
consideration of the circumstances on the ground and in coordination with LEP community contacts.  
 
Staff Support for Language Assistance  
• Agency staff (including call center staff) will be provided a list of referral resources that can assist LEP 

persons with written translation and oral interpretation, including the Title VI Officer and any outside 
consultant contracted to provide language services. This list will be updated as needed to remain 
current.  



32 
 
 

• All main offices and vehicles will have on hand a supply of language assistance flashcards and 
materials translated into the languages of the largest LEP language groups. When encountered by an 
LEP person, staff (including drivers) should present the individual with an iSpeak flashcard and let 
them choose the language. Do not assume you know their preferred language. Drivers are permitted 
to seek volunteer assistance from other passengers before contacting a referral resource. Document 
the encounter and report it to the Title VI Coordinator. 

• Training: All employees will be instructed on our procedures for providing timely and reasonable 
assistance to LEP persons. New employee orientation will also explain these procedures to new hires. 
Staff routinely encountering LEP persons by telephone or in person will receive annual refresher 
training. All other employees will be reminded of LEP through annual Title VI program 
acknowledgements (Section 5.0) and basic Title VI trainings (Section 11.0). 

 
Project-Specific LEP Outreach 
A project-specific four factor analysis will be conducted for any project or outreach event limited to a 
specific geographical area (i.e., the project study area or outreach area, respectively). Language 
assistance will be provided in accordance with the measures already outlined, including translating written 
materials for each LEP language group that is 5% or 1,000, whichever is less, of the project or outreach 
area population.  
 
Monitoring and Updating the LAP 
Monitoring of daily interactions with LEP persons will be continuous, thus language assistance techniques 
may be refined at any time. This Plan will be periodically reviewed—at least annually—to determine if our 
assistance measures and staff training are working. Resource availability and feedback from agency staff 
and the general public will be factors in the evaluation and any proposed updates. Among other practices, 
this process will include working with LEP community contacts to determine if our employees are 
responding appropriately to requests made with limited English or in languages other than English, and 
observing how agency staff responds to requests, including observing drivers or surveying riders. To the 
best of our ability, we will attempt to never eliminate a successful existing LEP service. Significant LEP 
program revisions will be approved or adopted by our board or designated official and dated accordingly. 
LEP data and procedures will be reviewed and updated at least once every three years.   

10.6 DEMOGRAPHIC REQUEST 

The following form was used to collect required data on Key Community Contacts and nonelected 
committee members. 
 

Riverlight Transit System is required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related authorities to record 
demographic information on members of its boards and committees. Please provide the following information: 
 

Race/Ethnicity: 
 White 

 Black/African American 
 Asian 
 American Indian/Alaskan Native 

 Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander 
 Hispanic/Latino 
 Other (please specify): __________________ 

National Origin: (if born outside the U.S.) 
 Mexican 

 Central American: _____________________ 
 South American: ____________________ 
 Puerto Rican 

 Chinese 
 Vietnamese 

 Korean 
 Other (please specify): __________________ 

Gender:   Male         Female Age:  



33 
 
 

Disability:   Yes   No   

 Less than 18  45-64 
 18-29  65 and older 

 30-44 

I choose not to provide any of the information requested above:   

 
Completed forms will remain on file as part of the public record. For more information regarding Title VI or this 
request, please contact the Riverlight Transit at (252)-793-4041 or by email at cliftonh@wcchs.org  
 
Please sign below acknowledging that you have completed this form.  
 
Thank you for your participation! 

Name (print): _________________________________________________________ 

Signature: ___________________________________________________________ 
 

Implementation 
• Forms will be completed prior to NCDOT Title VI reviews and remain on file for three years. 
• All new and existing members of appointed decision-making boards or committees will be required 

to complete this form for reporting purposes.   
• If a member, for whatever reason, selects “I choose not to provide any of the information requested 

above,” this will be accepted as a completed form.  
• If a member chooses not to provide any of the information on the form, the Title VI Coordinator will 

be permitted to indicate that member’s race and gender, based on the Coordinator’s best guess. 
• Data from these forms will be used to complete the Demographic Request Table.  
• Once a new member submits this form, the Demographic Request Table for the associated 

committee will be updated.  

10.7 KEY COMMUNITY CONTACTS 

Contact Name Community Name Interest or Affiliation Also a Committee 
Member? (Y/N) 

Curtis Potter Washington County County Manager/ County Attorney No 

Clifton Hardison Washington County Director of County DSS Yes 

Dr. Zebedee Taylor Washington County Director of Roanoke Developmental 
Center Yes 

Dr. Linda Carr Washington County Superintendent WC Schools No 

Jennifer O’Neal Washington County EMS Director of Washington County Yes 

Ann Keyes Washington County Vice Chair of Board of Commissioners Yes 

Contact information for key community contacts is not public information and is maintained outside of this 
document. Any staff member who wishes to contact any individual listed above must request that 
information from the Title VI Coordinator. 

 

 



34 
 
 

10.8 SUMMARY OF OUTREACH EFFORTS MADE SINCE THE LAST TITLE VI PROGRAM SUBMISSION 

The following format is used to document URTS outreach efforts in reports to NCDOT. All meetings and 
disseminations of information capture information for the table below: 

Meeting Date Meeting Time Meeting Purpose Target Audience Information Disseminated 

02/08/2022 12:00 Noon Presentation Retired Teachers Brochures and Promotional Items 

08/08/2022 5:00 PM-8:00 PM National Night Out Washington 
County Brochures and Promotional Items 

10/31/2022 3:00 -5:00 PM Halloween 
Parents and 

Children of Wash. 
Co, 

Brochures and Candy 

11 STAFF TRAINING 

All employees will receive basic Title VI training at least once every year. New hires will receive this 
training within 30 days of their start date. Basic training will cover all sections of this Plan and our overall 
Title VI obligations. Staff may receive specialized training on how Title VI applies to their specific work 
areas. Those who routinely encounter the public, such as office personnel, call center staff, and vehicle 
drivers, will receive annual refresher training. Trainings will be provided or organized by the Title VI 
Coordinator and will often coincide with updates to our nondiscrimination policies and procedures. Records 
of staff trainings, such as agendas, sign-in sheets, copies of calendars, and certificates, will remain on file 
for at least three years (and in personnel files). 

12 NONELECTED BOARDS AND COMMITTEES – BY RACE AND GENDER 

The table below depicts race and gender compositions for each of our nonelected (appointed) decision-
making bodies. Member names and full demographics for each committee are available, upon request.  

 

Body 
Male % Female 

% 
Caucasian 

% 
African 

American 
% 

Asian 
American 

% 

Native 
American 

% 

Other % Hispanic 
% 

Service Area Population 49% 51% 45% 49% .3% .0% 2% 5.9% 

Transit Advisory Board 25% 75% 42% 58% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

         

         

         

Strategies for Representative Committees 
Diversification goals will be provided to our nonelected boards and committees to help ensure that their 
membership mirrors our service area demographics, as adequately as possible. We will provide periodic 
updates on our outreach efforts at meetings. When there is an opening on a board or committee, we will 
ensure the following: 
• Current members will be made aware of diversity goals and polled for nominees. 
• Officials from local minority groups will be made aware of the diversity goals and polled for nominees. 
• Key Contacts from LEP groups will be contacted and polled for nominees. 



35 
 
 

• A recruitment notice for a Board Member opening will be posted on our website. 
• An advertisement of recruitment notice for a Board Member will be placed with the local newspaper 

and other publications popular with minorities and other protected groups.  

13 RECORD-KEEPING AND REPORTS 

As a subrecipient of FTA funds through NCDOT, we are required to submit a Title VI Program update to 
NCDOT every three years, on a schedule determined by NCDOT. Records will be kept to document 
compliance with the requirements of the Title VI Program. Unless otherwise specified, Title VI-related 
records shall be retained indefinitely. These records will made available for inspection by authorized 
officials of the NCDOT and/or FTA. Reports on Title VI-related activities and progress to address findings 
identified during Title VI compliance reviews may also be provided, upon request. It will occasionally be 
necessary to update this Title VI Plan or any of its components (e.g., complaints, Public Involvement, and 
LEP). Updates will be submitted to NCDOT for review and approval and adopted by our Board when 
required.  
 
In addition to items documented throughout this Plan, records and reports due at the time of compliance 
reviews or investigations may include: 
 
Compliance Reviews  
• Title VI Program Plan 
• List of civil rights trainings provided or 

received 
• Summaries from any internal reviews 

conducted 

• Ads and notices for specific meetings 
• Findings from reviews by any other external 

agencies 
• Title VI equity analyses and EJ assessments 
• Discrimination Complaints Log  

 
Complaint Investigations 
• Investigative Reports 
• Discrimination complaint, as filed 
• List of interviewees (names and affiliations) 

• Supporting Documentation (e.g., requested 
items, photos taken, dates and methods of 
contact, etc.) 

  



36 
 
 

 
Appendix A 

Applicable Nondiscrimination Authorities 
 
During the implementation of this Title VI Program, the organization, for itself, its assignees and successors 
in interest, is reminded that it has agreed to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and 
authorities, including but not limited to: 
 
• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits discrimination 

on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 CFR Part 21. 
• The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 

4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because 
of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects); 

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 CFR Part 27; 

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination 
on the basis of age); 

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and 
applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 
504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of the terms "programs or activities" 
to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, 
whether such programs or activities are Federally funded or not); 

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of 
disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public 
accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-12189) as implemented by 
Department of Transportation regulations at 49 C.P.R. parts 37 and 38; 

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating 
because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq). 

• Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq., Pub. L. 88-352), (prohibits 
employment discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed (religion), sex, or national origin);  

• 49 CFR Part 26, regulation to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of DOT-
assisted contracts in the Department's highway, transit, and airport financial assistance programs; 

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and 
Low-Income Populations, which ensures discrimination against minority populations by discouraging 
programs, policies, and activities with disproportionately high and adverse human health or 
environmental effects on minority and low-income populations; 

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, 
and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited 
English proficiency (LEP). To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to 
ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100); 

• Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
sex); 

• Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 USC § 4 71, Section 4 7123), as amended, (prohibits 
discrimination based on race, creed (religion), color, national origin, or sex); 

• The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex); 

• Federal transit laws, specifically 49 U.S.C. § 5332 (prohibiting discrimination based on race, color, 
religion, national origin, sex (including gender identity), disability, age, employment, or business 
opportunity). 

 
 
  



37 
 
 

Appendix B 
Organizational Chart 

 



38 
 
 

Appendix C 
NCDOT’s Compliance Review Checklist for Transit 

I. Program Administration (General Requirements) 
Requirement: FTA C 4702.1B – Title VI Requirements and Guidelines for FTA Recipients, Chapter III – General Requirements and Guidelines.  

Note: Every NCDOT subrecipient receiving any of the FTA Formula Grants listed above must complete this section.  
Requested Items 

(Please attach electronic documents (.pdf, .doc, etc.) or provide links to online versions) Completed 

1. A copy of the recipient’s signed NCDOT’s Title VI Nondiscrimination Agreement  

2. Title VI Policy Statement (signed)   

3. Title VI Notice to the Public, including a list of locations where the notice is posted  
4. Type the name and title of your Title VI Coordinator and attach a list of their Title VI duties 

Name/Title:   

5. Title VI Complaint Procedures (i.e., instructions to the public regarding how to file a Title VI 
discrimination complaint)  

6. Title VI Complaint Form  
7. List of transit-related Title VI investigations, complaints, and lawsuits (i.e., discrimination 

complaints log)  

8. Public Participation Plan, including information about outreach methods to engage traditionally 
underserved constituencies (e.g., minorities, limited English proficient populations (LEP), low-
income, disabled), as well as a summary of outreach efforts made since the last Title VI Program 
submission  

 

9. Language Assistance Plan for providing language assistance to persons with limited English 
proficiency (LEP), based on the DOT LEP Guidance, which requires conducting four-factor 
analyses 

 

10. A table depicting the membership of non-elected committees and councils, the membership of 
which is selected by the recipient, broken down by race, and a description of the process the 
agency uses to encourage the participation of minorities on such committees 

 

11. A copy of board meeting minutes, resolution, or other appropriate documentation showing the 
board of directors or appropriate governing entity or official(s) responsible for policy decisions 
reviewed and approved the Title VI Program 

 

12. A description of the procedures the agency uses to ensure nondiscriminatory administration of 
programs and services  

13. If you pass through FTA funds to other organizations, include a description of how you 
monitor your subrecipients for compliance with Title VI, and a schedule for your subrecipients’ 
Title VI Program submissions.                                                            
 No Subrecipients  

 

14. A Title VI equity analysis if you have constructed or conducted planning for a facility, such 
as a vehicle storage facility, maintenance facility, operation center, etc.    
 No Facilities Planned or Constructed  

 

15. Copies of environmental justice assessments conducted for any construction projects during 
the past three years and, if needed based on the results, a description of the program or other  



39 
 
 

measures used or planned to mitigate any identified adverse impact on the minority or low-
income communities  
 No Construction Projects  

16. If the recipient has undergone a Title VI Compliance Review in the last 3 years, please indicate 
the year of the last review and who conducted it. Year/Agency:  

 
II. Transit Providers  

Requirement: FTA C 4702.1B, Chapter IV – Requirements and Guidelines for Fixed Route Transit Providers. 

Note: All NCDOT subrecipients that provide fixed route public transportation services (e.g., local, express or commuter bus; bus rapid 
transit; commuter rail; passenger ferry) must complete this section.  
 Not Applicable  (Check this box if you do not provide fixed route services, and skip questions 17 and 18. This section 

does not apply to you if you only provide demand response services.) 
Requested Items 

(Please attach electronic documents (.pdf, .doc, etc.) or provide links to online versions) Completed 

17. Service standards (quantitative measures) developed for each specific fixed route mode that the 
recipient provides (standards may vary by mode) must be submitted for each of the following 
indicators:  

 

• Vehicle load for each mode (Can be expressed as the ratio of passengers to the total number of seats on a 
vehicle. For example, on a 40-seat bus, a vehicle load of 1.3 means all seats are filled and there are approximately 12 
standees.) 

 

• Vehicle headway for each mode (Measured in minutes (e.g., every 15 minutes), headway refers to the 
amount of time between two vehicles traveling in the same direction on a given line or combination of lines. A shorter 
headway corresponds to more frequent service. Service frequency is measured in vehicles per hour (e.g., 4 buses per 
hour).) 

 

• On time performance for each mode (Expressed as a percentage, this is a measure of runs completed as 
scheduled. The recipient must define what is considered to be “on time.” Performance can be measured against route 
origins and destinations only, or against origins and destinations as well as specified time points along a route.) 

 

• Service availability for each mode (Refers to a general measure of the distribution of routes within a transit 
provider’s service area, such as setting the maximum distance between bus stops or train stations, or requiring that a 
percentage of all residents in the service area be within a one-quarter mile walk of bus service. ) 

 

18. Service policies (system-wide policies) adopted to ensure that service design and operations 
practices do not result in discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin, must be 
submitted for each of the following: 

 

• Transit amenities for each mode (e.g., benches, shelters/canopies, printed materials, escalators/elevators, 
and waste receptacles. NOTE: Attach this information only if you have decision-making authority over siting transit 
amenities or you set policies to determine the siting of amenities.) 

 

• Vehicle assignment for each mode (Refers to the process by which transit vehicles are placed into service 
throughout a system. Policies for vehicle assignment may be based on the type or age of the vehicle, where age 
would be a proxy for condition, or on the type of service offered.) 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 



40 
 
 

Appendix D / Limited English Proficiency Populations



41 
 
 



42 
 
 



43 
 
 

 
 



44 
 
 



45 
 
 

 
 



Harvest Beam Letter of Support  Page 1 of 2 
 

       
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

LETTER OF SUPPORT 

June 5, 2023 
 
The Honorable Andy Berke 
Administrator, Rural Utilities Service 
U.S. Department of Agriculture 
1400 Independence Ave, S.W 
Washington, D.C. 20554 
 
RE: Broadband Technical Assistance (BTA) program support for low-income, rural communities in 
Washington County, North Carolina. 
 
Dear Administrator Berke: 
 
I am writing to share my strong support for HarvestBeam Inc. to conduct the necessary due diligence 
needed to help the most rural, unserved portions of Washington County finally receive reliable and 
affordable high-speed broadband internet access services.  We applaud the Rural Utilities Service (RUS) 
for making broadband technical assistance support available for local providers like HarvestBeam to 
help our communities in Washington County find a path out of poverty through digital connectivity.  
 
The towns of Plymouth, Roper, and Creswell listed in this technical assistance application are some of 
the most economically distressed, unserved areas in Washington County and are in dire need of reliable 
and affordable high-speed broadband access. The families, businesses and local community anchor 
institutions in these towns have long been overlooked and left behind.    
 
Technical assistance funding to HarvestBeam would be a major step forward to help these communities 
access the same distance learning, telework, job training, telehealth and precision farming opportunities 
as other communities in North Carolina.  
 
The residents of these towns simply cannot access state or federal financial assistance benefits online or 
even live stream church services online due to the poor quality of connectivity in their area. Food 
insecurity is also prevalent throughout each of these communities.  
 
Contrary to the results of the FCC’s broadband maps for these communities, many rural portions of 
Washington County remain chronically unserved with speeds well below 25Mbps downstream and 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL  

CAROL V. PHELPS 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



Harvest Beam Letter of Support  Page 2 of 2 
 

3Mbps upstream. Far too many households and businesses throughout our county do not have any good 
option for internet access other than satellite or a mobile hotspot from their cell phone and many 
communities are still using DSL.  These limited options are often cost prohibitive and deliver ineffective 
levels of connectivity.  
 
The current FCC maps show most of Washington County as being well served with reliable high-speed 
internet access. This is simply not true, and the realities on the ground paint a far different picture. We 
believe additional broadband mapping analysis and outreach to correct the maps developed by the FCC 
is necessary to improve our chances for future broadband funding eligibility. 
 
As residents and county officials who live and work in Washington County, we care deeply about 
improving the quality of life for these communities. Therefore, we welcome the opportunity for a local 
broadband provider like HarvestBeam to obtain the necessary resources from this program to help our 
communities receive reliable and affordable high-speed broadband access. 
 
We very much look forward to continuing our partnership with HarvestBeam by conducting broadband 
coverage surveys and gathering other sources of data to accurately assess the level of broadband access 
in our areas.  Doing so will help these areas improve their chances for being eligible for federal and state 
broadband funding to expand network connectivity to as many eligible homes and businesses as 
possible.  
 
Thank you for your consideration of our support for HarvestBeam’s important application to better 
provide for our long-term future.  
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me if I can answer any questions or provide additional input regarding 
the challenges we face in Washington County with respect to broadband access and economic 
development.   
 
 
 
 

Respectfully Yours,  
 
 
 
Curtis S. Potter 
County Manager 

 



Roper Volunteer Fire Department USDA  Letter of Support Page 1 of 1 
 

       
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

LETTER OF SUPPORT 

June 5th, 2023 
Attn: Stephanie Hardison 
Area Specialist 
Kinston NC Area Office, Rural Development 
U.S. Department of Agriculture 
2044-C Hwy. 11/55 South 
PO Box 6189 
Kinston, NC 28501 
252-624-3430 
stephanie.hardison@usda.gov  
 
RE: Support for the Roper Volunteer Fire Department’s Application for Renovation Funding 
 
Dear Ms. Hardison: 
 
Please accept this letter of support on behalf of Washington County pertaining to the recent application for USDA 
funding from the Roper Volunteer Fire Department.  This funding is needed to help provide quality firefighting 
services to some of the most rural, economically distressed, and unserved portions of Washington County. 
 
USDA funding for this project would be a major step forward helping our entire community which funds fire 
departments from our general ad-valorem tax base.  For this reason, along with the fact that our fire departments 
frequently work together on calls throughout the county, funding received by any of our departments indirectly 
benefits all of them.  As residents and county officials who live and work in Washington County, we care deeply 
about improving the quality of life for these communities. Therefore, we welcome the opportunity for this funding 
to help obtain the necessary resources from this USDA program to help serve our community’s firefighting needs. 
 
Thank you for your consideration of our support for the Roper Volunteer Fire Department’s important application 
to better provide for our long-term future.   Please do not hesitate to contact me if I can answer any questions or 
provide additional input regarding the challenges we face in Washington County with respect to funding 
firefighting services and economic development.   
 

 
Respectfully Yours,  
 
 
Curtis S. Potter 
County Manager 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL  

CAROL V. PHELPS 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 

mailto:stephanie.hardison@usda.gov


Agenda Item Memo  Page 1 of 1 
 

       
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEETING DATE: June 5th, 2023    MEMO Date: June 1st, 2023                 ITEM:    
SUBJECT:  Pea Ridge Water Transmission Main – Engineering Services Agreement 
DEPARTMENT: Water 
FROM:  Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney (CM/CA) 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Email from Richard Livingston dated 5/31/23 (1pg) 
B- Rivers & Associates Letter Dated 5/31/23 (2pgs) 
C- Modified E500 Agreement between Owner & Engineer for Professional Services (67pgs) 

PURPOSE: To approve the attached draft agreement, and authorize county staff to proceed with its execution 
subject to any final revisions or modifications recommended by the County Attorney. 
 
BACKGROUND/STAFF DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS:   

A. The County identified the need almost a decade ago & more recently in its CIP, to expand the main water 
lines from Roper to Pea Ridge.  Prior attempts to facilitate this project have been unsuccessful. 

i. Washington County recently obtained a grant from NC DEQ to facilitate this project, including 
reimbursement for related engineering services (which are described in the attached agreement). 

ii. Staff has been informed that completion of the initial preliminary engineering report (est. $20k) is 
required prior to NC DEQ releasing grant contracts to grant recipients for use in obtaining grant 
reimbursements for eligible project expenses, including the preliminary engineering report itself. 

iii. The County essentially must pay for the initial engineering report (est. $20k) prior to being able to 
receive and enter into the formal grant reimbursement agreement with NC DEQ.  The risk of not 
receiving the anticipated reimbursement agreement from NC DEQ is mitigated by limiting the 
initially authorized scope of work the engineer is permitted to provide under the larger agreement. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  In order to keep this significant grant funded capital project moving forward 
in a timely manner, staff recommends that the Board:   

VOTE to APPROVE the attached agreement in principal, and authorize its 
execution by staff subject to any final revisions or modifications recommended by 
the County Attorney prior to execution. 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL  

CAROL V. PHELPS 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 
 
 



1

Curtis Potter

From: Richard Livingston
Sent: Wednesday, May 31, 2023 2:55 PM
To: Curtis Potter
Cc: Missy Dixon
Subject: ACTION REQUESTED: Review Agreement and Slate for Board Approval FW: Washington County Pea 

Ridge Water Transmission Main - Engineering Services Agreement
Attachments: Ltr Richard Livingston_053123.pdf; Washington County Pea Ridge WM ESA_053123.pdf

Importance: High

Curtis, 
 
BLUF: We need to review and place the attached agreement in front of the board as soon as possible. DEQ is requiring 
us to float some project costs before we have the grant agreement in place.  
 
I spoke with Greg on the phone today. He has been told by DEQ that grant agreements will not be sent out to local 
governments before they receive the preliminary engineering report (PER) which is due in early July. Meaning while we 
are tentatively funded for the Pea Ridge project, there are expenditures that need to be made before we even have the 
grant agreements that they would be reimbursable against in place. The total for the PER work is $20,000. I was a bit 
dismayed hearing this from Greg, as I would have hoped (expected) DEQ to at least tell grant recipients this so that we 
wouldn’t be waiting on them to get started, which we have been to date.  
 
Once we have the PER submitted to DEQ we should then receive the grant agreements to return back to them, only then 
can we expect to start getting reimbursed. Because Washington County has VUR status, we can expect reimbursements 
once the agreements are in, which is atypical compared to most DEQ awards which require projects to be in the bidding 
stage before engineering services are eligible for reimbursement.  
 
I’ve cc’d Missy as I know that this is potentially at issue with our spending cutoff.  
 
Please let me know if you have any questions about this. I will be reviewing the service agreement today and will leave a 
hard copy in your inbox with my comments.  
 
Thanks,  
 
 

 

Richard Livingston 
Senior Project Manager 
County Manager's Office | Washington County

   
  

(252) 793-5823 | (919) 671-4596 

  

rlivingston@washconc.org 

 

washconc.org 

 

 

 
 
 
 

  
 

 
 













































































































































WASHINGTON COUNTY TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
 

BY-LAWS 
 
 

ARTICLE 
 

THE AUTHORITY 
 
Section 1 ACT OF AUTHORIZATION 
 
 The entity shall be established under the authority of NC House Bill 757, as ratified 
in the 2001 Session of the General Assembly of North Carolina (Session Law 2001-305).  
The Authority is a Public Authority under the Local  Government Budget and Fiscal Control 
Act. 
 
Section II PURPOSE 
 
 It shall have as it’s sole Purpose, the development of travel and tourism in 
Washington County through advertising and promotion, to sponsor tourist-oriented events 
and activities in Washington County, and to finance tourist-related capital events and 
activities in Washington County.  The Authority shall use at least two-thirds of the funds 
remitted to it to promote travel and tourism in Washington County and shall use the 
remainder for tourism-related expenditures. 
 
Section III NAME 
 
 The name of the Authority shall be the Washington County Travel & Tourism 
Authority. 
 
Section IV OFFICES 
 
 The principle Office of the Authority shall be located in Washington County, North 
Carolina.  The Authority shall have such offices in Washington County as determined by the 
members of the Authority. 
 
Section V FISCAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE YEAR 
 
 The fiscal and administrative year shall be from July 1 through June 30 of each year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ARTICLE II 
 

MEMBERS 
 

Section I APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS 
 
 The authority shall consist of (5) members: 
 

1. A Washington County Commissioner, appointed by the Washington County 
Board of Commissioners. 
 

2. Two (2) owners or managers of a motel/hotel or other taxable accommodations 
in Washington County that has at least 5 units, appointed by the Washington 
County Board of Commissioners. 
 

3. Two (2) at large members from the general public appointed by the Washington 
County Board of Commissioners who must be persons who are currently active 
in the promotion of travel and tourism in the County and who shall be County 
residents not residing within the same municipality with the intent to spread 
representation through the geographical areas of the County. 
 

Section II COMPENSATION 
 
 All members shall serve without compensation but shall be entitled to 
reimbursement of expenses actually incurred in connection with carrying out their duties 
and responsibilities as representatives of the Authority. 
 
Section III TERMS OF OFFICE 
 

1. Members of the Authority shall serve a three-year (3) term, which will be on a 
staggered basis after the initial appointment.  Term of office shall expire on June 
30 and appointees shall take office the first regular meeting following their 
appointment. 
 

2. Membership is not transferrable. 
 

3. Faithful attendance at the meetings of the Authority is considered a pre-requisite 
for maintenance of membership on the Authority. 
 

Section IV VACANCIES AND TERMINATIONS 
 

1. All vacancies shall be filled by the Washington County Board of Commissioners 
in the same manner as the original appointment.  Members appointed to fill 
vacancies shall serve for the remainder of the unexpired term of the member 
whom he or she replaces. 
 

2. A member of the Authority may be removed for the following reasons: 
 
a) A letter of resignation from appointee 
b) For just cause by the majority vote of the appointing body 



ARTICLE III 
 

ORGANIZATION 
 

Section I GENERAL POWERS 
 
 The  activities  of  the  Authority  shall  be  those  as  determined and enumerated 
in NC House Bill 757, Chapter 821, as ratified on the 2001 Session of the General 
Assembly of North Carolina, specifically, it shall promote travel, tourism, and 
conventions in the county, sponsor tourist-related activities in the county and finance 
tourist-related capital projects in the county.  (“Promote Travel and Tourism” and 
“Tourism-Related expenditures” shall be as defined in House Bill 757, 2001 Session 
Laws 305 at Section One (e),(2) and (3), respectively). The Authority shall have 
expenditure control and authority over the quarterly deposited room  occupancy tax  
proceeds in compliance with the aforesaid Session Law. All funds shall be deposited to 
the credit of the Authority in the Washington County General Fund and disbursed by the 
Treasury in compliance with these By-Laws and Session Law 2001-305 and other 
applicable laws including but not limited to the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act.  At least two-thirds of all funds deposited to the Authority's credit MUST be 
spent to “promote travel and tourism in Washington County.”  The remaining one-third 
may be used for “tourism-related” expenditures. 

 
The Board of County Commissioners shall designate one member of the 

Board as the Chairperson , annually as provided by Section 2 (a) of Session Law 2001-305. 
 

The Authority,  with the approval of the County Commissioners , may contract 
with any person, firm , or agency to assist in carrying out the purpose of development of 
tourism in Washington County . 

 
Section II OFFICERS 

 
 

The officers of the Authority shall be the Chairperson, a Vice-Chairperson, a 
Secretary, and a Treasurer who is the Washington County Finance Officer.  The Vice-
Chairperson and the Secretary shall be elected annually at the first regularly scheduled 
meeting of the new administrative year. 

 
Section III DUTIES OF OFFICERS:  

 
 

1. Chairperson:  The  Chairperson  shall  call  and  reside  at  all regular 
meetings and exercise any and all special duties as from time to time may 
be assigned to  him/her by the  Authority .   He/she may also appoint any 
standing committee consisting of Authority members as is deemed 
necessary . 
 

2. Vice-Chairperson: The Vice-Chairperson shall ,  at the request of the  
Chairperson or  in  his/her  absence,  perform all duties of the Chairperson 
with the same powers and restrictions. He/she may also perform any other 
duties as directed by the Authority . 
 



3. Secretary: The Secretary, elected by members of the Authority , shall be 
responsible for the record keeping of all minutes of meetings and documents 
related to the business of the Authority and shall perform such other duties as 
are assigned by the Authority .  

 
4. Treasurer:  The  Treasurer shall be the Washington County Finance Officer 

who shall disburse all funds upon approval of the Authority and upon her own 
determination in accord with law that such expenditures are in compliance 
with the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act and in 
compliance with the expenditure restriction provisions of Session Law 2001-
305 ,   House Bill 757 of the 2001 Session Laws of the State of  North 
Carolina.  He/she shall  keep concise, accurate  records according to standard 
accounting practices and have such records up to date and available for 
review at each regularly scheduled meeting. 

 

 
ARTICLE IV 

 
MEETINGS 

 
Section I REGULAR AND SPECIAL MEETINGS 
 
 The Authority shall meet regularly on the third Tuesday of even numbered 
months at a time and place agreed upon by the membership.  A notice of regular meetings 
will be sent to all  members one week  prior to the meeting.  The Chairperson or two other 
members of the Authority may call special meetings with a notice given to all other 
members within 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

 
Section II  VOTING RIGHTS AND QUORUM 
 
 All members of the Authority in good standing shall have one equal vote. A 
Quorum shall consist of three (3) members.  All actions shall be determined by a majority 
vote of the quorum present.  Except as otherwise provided by law or by these By-Laws, the 
Rules of Parliamentary Practices as contained in "Roberts Rules of Order" shall govern the 
Authority. 

 
Section III OPEN MEETINGS 
 
 All regular meetings shall be open to the public as specified in the “Open 
Meetings” Law of North Carolina. 

 
Section IV REPORTS 
 
 The Authority shall report quarterly and at the close of the fiscal year to the Board 
of County Commissioners on its receipts and expenditures for the preceding quarter and 
for the year in such detail as they may require. 



 

 

ARTICLE V 

AMENDMENTS 

  An affirmative vote by the majority of the full Authority shall be required before 
these By-Laws may be amended.  All proposed amendments shall be brought before the 
Board of County Commissioners at least one (1) meeting prior to the meeting in which the vote 
is  to be taken and any amendment to these By-Laws must be allowed by the Board of County 
Commissioners. 
 
 
ADOPTED this the 5th day of June, 2023. 
  
 
    __________________________________________ 
      Julius Walker, Jr. Chair 
     Washington County Board of Commissioner 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________                     (COUNTY SEAL) 
         Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
                Clerk to the Board 
  
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 

       ITEM NO:   2  
 
       DATE:     June 5, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Public Forum (3-5 minute limit per speaker) 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
As is required by North Carolina General Statute §153A-52.1, time has been allotted for comments from 
the public. 

  
Public Comment Statements 

In December of 2015, the Washington County Board of Commissioners adopted a public comment period.  
Essentially this policy said that a public comment period shall be set aside at the beginning of each regular 
monthly Commissioners and it shall be limited to a maximum of thirty (30) minutes. 
 
Additionally, this policy stated that all speakers are required to sign up prior to the meeting at which they 
wish to speak. The signup sheet must be on the podium 30 mins prior to the meeting.  Each speaker shall 
clearly write their name, address, and the topic upon which they wish to speak on the signup sheet.   
This board adopted rules that must be followed. Some of the high points of those rules, which I wish to 
remind the public is: 

1. Speakers shall be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson. 
2. Speakers shall address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room, and begin their remarks 

by stating their name and address.   
3. Public comment is not intended to require any Board or staff members to answer any impromptu 

questions or engage in debate.  Speakers shall address all remarks to the Board as a body, and not 
to any individual board or staff members.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience shall not be allowed. 

4. Speakers shall be courteous in their language and presentations, and shall not use profanity, racial 
slurs, or make any obscene remarks, nor engage in any personal attacks of commissioners.  

5. Speakers shall have a maximum of three (3) to five (5) minutes to make their remarks depending 
on the number of speakers and topics.  The Chairperson may limit the number of speakers allowed 
to make substantially similar comments with respect to the same topic.   

6. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a 
copy of such remarks and documents with the County Clerk. 

7. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which are the subject of public hearings 
set for the same meeting; matters which are closed session matters, including without limitation 
matters within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property 
acquisition, and matters which are made confidential by law. 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  3 
 
       DATE:     June 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Employee of the Quarter, Chair Walker 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Chair Walker will make a presentation to the Employee of the Quarter. The Employee of 
the Quarter will receive a Certificate and a check for $50 and be recognized on the 
Employee Recognition Board in the County’s Administrative Building. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  4 
 
       DATE:     June 5, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Board of Equalization & Review, Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 
 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 

a) Motion to convene as the Board of Equalization and Review (E & R) 
 
b) Hearing of Appeals 

As of the preparation of this agenda package, Sherri Wilkins, Tax 
Administrator, has informed the County Manager’s Office that there are no 
appeals at this time. 

 
c) Motion to adjourn the Board of E & . 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  5 
 
       DATE:     June 5, 2022 
 
ITEM:        Public Hearing on Eddie Smith Drainage District, Mr. Curtis Potter, 

CM/CA & Mr. Cameron Birtcher, LFNC 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
There will be a 2nd public hearing on the re-creation of the Eddie Smith Drainage District 
to the Eddie Smith Special Assessment District.  See attached. 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item Memo Page 1 of 3 

POST OFFICE BOX 1007 
PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 

OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEETING DATE: June 5th, 2023 MEMO Date: June 1st, 2023                 ITEM:  
SUBJECT: Public Hearing & Approval of Preliminary Assessment Roll for 

Eddie Smith Special Assessment District 
DEPARTMENT: Soil & Water/Drainage 
FROM: Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney (CM/CA) 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Eddie Smith Drainage Map (1pg - for informational purposes only)
B- Certificate of Notice from Cameron Birtcher dated 5/23/23 (1pg)
C- Preliminary Assessment Roll

PURPOSE: To hold a public hearing on, and subsequently consider approving the attached proposed assessment 
roll for a new Eddie Smith Special Assessment District. 

BACKGROUND/STAFF DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS:  
A. In 1995 a Special Assessment District known as the Eddie Smith Special Assessment District was created

by the Board of Commissioners with a budget period of twenty (20) years which expired in 2015.

B. Since that time, county staff together with the assistance of Attorney David Gadd have worked with local
land owners in and around the Eddie Smith drainage canal area in eastern Washington County discussing
a variety of best practices and possible alternative methods to accomplish the underlying goal of
providing an equitable means to collect funding from impacted landowners, and pay for and administer
the perpetual work required to maintain reasonably consistent and effective drainage in this canal.

C. After a previous attempt to establish a “Service District” (recommended by staff as the best and most
appropriate option) to accomplish that goal was rejected by local land owners, staff were directed by the
Board to essentially revive the same type of special assessment district structure originally used in 1995 to
accomplish the underlying goal without unnecessarily upsetting local land owners.

D. Staff has worked steadily toward that end over the past year.

a. On 3/6/23 the Board approved a Preliminary Assessment Resolution No. 2023-011 describing the
general terms of the proposed new district.

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL  

CAROL V. PHELPS 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 



Agenda Item Memo Page 2 of 3 

b. On 5/1/23 the Board approved a Final Assessment Resolution No. 2023-019 establishing the new 
Eddie Smith Special Assessment District.

c. On 5/23/23 Notice of the Final Assessment Resolution and Preliminary Assessment Roll 
(including the basis for assessment being established as $0.12 per acre of woodland, and $0.35 
per acre of cropland was provided to all impacted land owners per NCGS 153-194.

E. Several of the more relevant statutes related to this process, and particularly to its finalization are pasted
below for your reference and convenience.

BEFORE THE PUBLIC HEARING:

a. § 153A-194.  Preliminary assessment roll; publication.
When the total cost of a project has been determined, the board of commissioners shall cause a
preliminary assessment roll to be prepared. The roll shall contain a brief description of each lot,
parcel, or tract of land assessed, the basis for the assessment, the amount assessed against each,
the terms of payment, including the schedule of discounts, if such a schedule is to be established
and the name of the owner of each lot, parcel, or tract as far as this can be ascertained from the
county tax records. A map of the project on which is shown each lot, parcel, or tract assessed, the
basis of its assessment, the amount assessed against it, and the name of its owner as far as this can
be ascertained from the county tax records is a sufficient assessment roll.

After the preliminary assessment roll has been completed, the board shall cause the roll to be filed
in the clerk's office, where it shall be available for public inspection, and shall set the time and
place for a public hearing on the roll. At least 10 days before the date set for the hearing, the board
shall publish a notice that the preliminary assessment roll has been completed. The notice shall
describe the project in general terms, note that the roll in the clerk's office is available for
inspection, and state the time and place for the hearing on the roll. In addition, at least 10 days
before the date set for the hearing, the board shall cause a notice of the hearing to be mailed by
first-class mail to each owner of property listed on the roll. The mailed notice shall state the time
and place of the hearing, note that the roll in the clerk's office is available for inspection, and state
the amount as shown on the roll of the assessment against the property of the owner. The person
designated to mail these notices shall file with the board a certificate stating that they were mailed
by first-class mail and on what date. In the absence of fraud, the certificate is conclusive as to
compliance with the mailing requirements of this section. (1963, c. 985, s. 1; 1965, c. 714; 1973,
c. 822, s. 1; 1983,  c. 381, s. 2.)

DURING THE PUBLIC HEARING: 

b. § 153A-195.  Hearing on preliminary assessment roll; revision; confirmation; lien.
At the public hearing the board of commissioners shall hear all interested persons who appear with
respect to the preliminary assessment roll. At or after the hearing, the board shall annul, modify,
or confirm the assessments, in whole or in part, either by confirming the preliminary assessments
against any lot, parcel, or tract described in the preliminary assessment roll or by cancelling,
increasing, or reducing the assessments as may be proper in compliance with the basis of
assessment. If any property is found to be omitted from the preliminary assessment roll, the board
may place it on the roll and make the proper assessment. When the board confirms assessments
for a project, the clerk shall enter in the minutes of the board the date, hour, and minute of
confirmation. From the time of confirmation, each assessment is a lien on the property assessed
of the same nature and to the same extent as the lien for county or city property taxes, under the
priorities set out in G.S. 153A-200. After the assessment roll is confirmed, the board shall cause
a copy of it to be delivered to the county tax collector for collection in the same manner (except
as provided in this Article) as property taxes. (1963, c. 985, s. 1; 1965, c. 714; 1973, c. 822, s. 1.)



Agenda Item Memo Page 3 of 3 

AFTER THE PUBLIC HEARING & APPROVAL: 

c. § 153A-196.  Publication of notice of confirmation of assessment roll.
No earlier than 20 days from the date the assessment roll is confirmed, the county tax collector
shall publish once a notice that the roll has been confirmed. The notice shall also state that
assessments may be paid without interest at any time before the expiration of 30 days from the date
that the notice is published and that if they are not paid within this time, all installments thereof
shall bear interest as determined by the board of commissioners. The notice shall also state the
schedule of discounts, if one has been established, to be applied to assessments paid before the
expiration date for payment of assessments without interest. (1963, c. 985, s. 1; 1965, c. 714; 1973,
c. 822, s. 1; 1983, c. 381, s. 3.

d. § 153A-204.1.  Maintenance assessments.
In order to pay for the costs of maintaining and operating a project, the board of commissioners
may annually or at less frequent intervals levy maintenance and operating assessments for any
project purpose set forth in G.S. 153A-185(3) on the same basis as the original assessment. The
amount of these assessments shall be determined by the board of commissioners on the basis of the
board's estimate of the cost of maintaining and operating a project during the ensuing budget
period, and the board's decision as to the amount of the assessment is conclusive. In determining
the total cost to be included in the assessment the board may include estimated costs of maintaining
and operating the project, of necessary legal services, of interest payments, of rights-of-way, and
of publishing and mailing notices and resolutions. References to "total costs" in provisions of  this
Article that apply to maintenance and operating assessments shall be construed to mean "total
estimated costs." Within the meaning of this section a "budget period" may be one year or such
other budget period as the board determines.
All of the provisions of this Article shall apply to maintenance and operating assessments, except
for G.S. 153A-190 through G.S. 153A-193. (1983, c. 321, s. 4.)

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends that the Board:  
VOTE to APPROVE & CONFIRM the attached Preliminary Assessment 

Roll, to be delivered to the Tax Administrator by the Clerk to the Board for 
collection in accordance with applicable law, in the same manner as property 
taxes. 







Eddie Smith Special Assessment District 

Preliminary Assessment Roll 

N.C.G.S. §153A-194 

 

The following Preliminary Assessment Roll is prepared and submitted pursuant to N.C.G.S. §153A-194 by the Board of 
Commissioners of Washington County, North Carolina.  A public hearing will be held on the Preliminary Assessment Roll on June 5, 
2023 at 6:00 PM in the County Commissioner’s Room at 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC 27962 

 

Basis for Assessment 

Assessments shall be made as to cropland and forestland only, as it is deemed cropland and forestland will be the land benefitted by 
the project.  All cropland will be assessed initially at a rate of $0.35 per acre and all woodland will be assessed initially at a rate of 
$0.12 per acre.  These rates are based upon the average ad valorem tax assessed for one acre of cropland and one acre of woodland 
within the boundaries of the special assessment district, as reflected on the Washington County Tax records.    

 

Terms of Payment 

Assessments shall be billed to all landowners within the boundaries of the special assessment district together with the 2023 ad 
valorem tax bills, and shall be due on September 1, 2023.  Assessments shall not be deemed overdue until January 6, 2024.  No 
assessments shall be held in abeyance. 

 

The attached roll reflects the Washington County PIN and the amount assessed to each parcel.  The Washington County PIN may be 
used to locate the parcel on the Washington County tax map, which may be found online at https://washconc.org/geographic-
information-systems/ or in the office of the Washington County Geographic Information Office at 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC 
27962 (County Manager’s office). 



DATE  5/09/23                            DRAINAGE TAX SCROLL FOR EDDIE SMITH                                        PAGE   1

                                                                                  RATE @                RATE @
ACCOUNT                                                        REVAL.  CLEARED      .35     WOODED        .12       TOTAL   TICKET
 NUMBER  NAME & ADDRESS                       PIN NUMBER       NUMBER   ACRES      ACRE     ACRES        ACRE     ASSESSED     #

    295   ALEXANDER, A. W. III               7757.00-24-2534     8559    10.7       3.75       22.4       2.69        6.44  10393
         15150 SHAMROCK DR
         FT MYERS, FL

                                      33912

    224   ALEXANDER, ALVAH W. III            7746.00-25-1813     6933    19.9       6.97        7.3        .88        7.85  10402
         15150 SHAMROCK DR
         FORT MYERS, FL

                                      33912

    303   ALEXANDER, ALVAH W. III & WENDI C. 7746.00-47-5341    10579    12.6       4.41         .0        .00        4.41  10407
         15150 SHAMROCK DR
         FT. MEYERS, FL

                                      33912

    371   ALEXANDER, BRADFORD D. & SHARON O. 7756.00-37-5718     6478     1.2        .42         .0        .00         .42   2331
         PO BOX 321
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

   3175   B 5, LLC                           7749.00-23-3762     5908    79.6      27.86       18.2       2.18       30.04   4063
         1458 MORRATTOCK RD                  7747.00-02-5324N01  9995   172.0      60.20    1,002.6     120.31      180.51
         PLYMOUTH, NC                        7748.00-20-3388     9867      .0        .00      497.7      59.72       59.72
                                      27962              TOTAL...       251.6      88.06    1,518.5     182.21      270.27

   3883   BARNES, JOHN S.                    7735.00-21-7033     7614   229.6      80.36         .0        .00       80.36   2442
         5735 SHORE DRIVE
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

   5362   BELL, VERNON R & J B BELL, III     7724.00-28-8829     9264   178.7      62.55         .0        .00       62.55   1612
         4138 RAILROAD BED RD
         PANTEGO, NC

                                      27860



DATE  5/09/23                            DRAINAGE TAX SCROLL FOR EDDIE SMITH                                        PAGE   2

                                                                                  RATE @                RATE @
ACCOUNT                                                        REVAL.  CLEARED      .35     WOODED        .12       TOTAL   TICKET
 NUMBER  NAME & ADDRESS                       PIN NUMBER       NUMBER   ACRES      ACRE     ACRES        ACRE     ASSESSED     #

  57879   BLACK, REATTA WRIGHT; PETERIK, TONY7724.00-57-2944     9250   189.6      66.36         .0        .00       66.36   1621
         7100 NC HWY 99 N
         PANTEGO, NC

                                      27860

   7289   BOYD, DOUGLAS; JAMES; TAMMY; AMANDA7724.00-88-1243    10316 1,164.1     407.44         .0        .00      407.44   1827
         2142 RESPESS RD                     7735.00-02-9713     6922   341.4     119.49        1.1        .13      119.62
         PINETOWN, NC                        7735.00-27-9344     6930   210.6      73.71       24.3       2.92       76.63
                                             7723.00-84-6798     6441   355.2     124.32      347.8      41.74      166.06
                                      27865              TOTAL...     2,071.3     724.96      373.2      44.79      769.75

   9036   BUNDY, CURTIS EARL                 7735.00-46-9165     7617      .0        .00       81.1       9.73        9.73   1383
         5544 JERDEN THICKET RD
         JAMESVILLE, NC

                                      27846

  10009   C CANAL FARMS, INC.                7737.00-66-1476     8758   191.6      67.06      125.6      15.07       82.13  10030
         504 LILLIPUT DRIVE
         NEW BERN, NC

                                      28562

  11478   CLIFTON, TIMOTHY & KAREN           7746.00-66-3902     8984     1.3        .46         .0        .00         .46   2601
         8770 NEWLAND RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  11880   COLUMBIA NC FARMS, INC             7737.00-41-5850    10555   684.2     239.47         .0        .00      239.47   3802
         PO BOX 1909                         7737.00-78-6574    10504   184.2      64.47         .0        .00       64.47
         MANTEO, NC                          7737.00-59-1572    10503   150.0      52.50         .0        .00       52.50
                                      27954              TOTAL...     1,018.4     356.44         .0        .00      356.44

  12344   COOPER, DOUGLAS R. & TERESSA       7757.00-52-1740     6907    12.5       4.38        4.5        .54        4.92   2616
         2078 AMBROSE ROAD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928



DATE  5/09/23                            DRAINAGE TAX SCROLL FOR EDDIE SMITH                                        PAGE   3

                                                                                  RATE @                RATE @
ACCOUNT                                                        REVAL.  CLEARED      .35     WOODED        .12       TOTAL   TICKET
 NUMBER  NAME & ADDRESS                       PIN NUMBER       NUMBER   ACRES      ACRE     ACRES        ACRE     ASSESSED     #

  13273   CUTHRELL, JAMES & BONITA           7757.00-42-6074     7460     1.0        .35         .0        .00         .35   2634
         2083 AMBROSE RD                     7757.00-41-6761    10259      .0        .00        1.2        .14         .14
         CRESWELL, NC                                    TOTAL...         1.0        .35        1.2        .14         .49

                                      27928

  13991   DAVENPORT, DWIGHT ALSTON AND WIFE  7756.00-17-5196     8770     2.1        .74         .0        .00         .74   2694
         9606 NEWLAND RD                     7756.00-05-8839     6956    12.7       4.45       22.6       2.71        7.16
         CRESWELL, NC                                    TOTAL...        14.8       5.19       22.6       2.71        7.90

                                      27928

  14079   DAVENPORT, MERIDA SPRUILL          7746.00-98-7714     6530    21.5       7.53         .0        .00        7.53   2741
         145 WHITE ROAD                      7736.00-95-1270     6925   124.6      43.61       63.8       7.66       51.27
         CRESWELL, NC                        7746.00-88-9548     6529    26.5       9.28         .0        .00        9.28
                                      27928              TOTAL...       172.6      60.42       63.8       7.66       68.08

  14836   DAVENPORT, MILTON A.               7756.00-15-2859     6963     1.6        .56        3.9        .47        1.03   2744
         9656 NEWLAND RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  15733   DAY, BARBARA D.                    7757.00-31-7488     6910    26.0       9.10        1.1        .13        9.23    907
         1038 TORREY PINES PL
         CHAPEL HILL, NC

                                      27514

  16000   DINEEN, TIMOTHY SCOTT              7746.00-47-7596     6934     1.0        .35         .0        .00         .35   2765
         8430 NEWLAND RD                     7746.00-46-3733    10578    16.8       5.88         .0        .00        5.88
         CRESWELL, NC                                    TOTAL...        17.8       6.23         .0        .00        6.23

                                      27928

  17415   ETHERIDGE, FRANKLIN L. & MARY      7757.00-23-4709     6537     4.0       1.40        4.0        .48        1.88   2233
         131 S. WATERLILY RD
         COINJOCK, NC

                                      27923



DATE  5/09/23                            DRAINAGE TAX SCROLL FOR EDDIE SMITH                                        PAGE   4

                                                                                  RATE @                RATE @
ACCOUNT                                                        REVAL.  CLEARED      .35     WOODED        .12       TOTAL   TICKET
 NUMBER  NAME & ADDRESS                       PIN NUMBER       NUMBER   ACRES      ACRE     ACRES        ACRE     ASSESSED     #

  18058   FORBES, WILLIAM R. & SUSAN R.      7757.00-02-0876     2948    61.8      21.63         .0        .00       21.63   2792
         PO BOX 10                           7757.00-52-7354     6905     1.3        .46         .0        .00         .46
         CRESWELL, NC                                    TOTAL...        63.1      22.09         .0        .00       22.09

                                      27928

  18051   FORBES, WILLIAM R. JR & SUSAN R &  7757.00-13-4045     9517    15.7       5.50       25.0       3.00        8.50   2794
         PO BOX 10
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  18060   FORBES, WILLIAM R. JR. & SUSAN R.  7757.00-53-7130     5929    34.8      12.18       14.9       1.79       13.97   2796
         PO BOX 10
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  18138   FOSTER, BRYAN C.                   7736.00-52-8096     9277   162.0      56.70         .0        .00       56.70   8281
         1215 RAILROAD BED RD
         ROPER, NC

                                      27970

  18172   FOWL HOOKED LODGE, LLC             7735.00-73-1540     7022      .0        .00      158.6      19.03       19.03   1005
         1512 O'BRIEN CIRCLE
         WAKE FOREST, NC

                                      27587

  19295   GARCIA, MARIANA NEGRETE            7756.00-17-9015     5534      .6        .21         .0        .00         .21   2814
         9837 NEWLAND RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  22447   HARRIS, MICHAEL DUANE              7735.00-58-4406     9592   144.0      50.40         .0        .00       50.40   8408
         534 NORTH SLOPE RD
         ROPER, NC

                                      27970



DATE  5/09/23                            DRAINAGE TAX SCROLL FOR EDDIE SMITH                                        PAGE   5

                                                                                  RATE @                RATE @
ACCOUNT                                                        REVAL.  CLEARED      .35     WOODED        .12       TOTAL   TICKET
 NUMBER  NAME & ADDRESS                       PIN NUMBER       NUMBER   ACRES      ACRE     ACRES        ACRE     ASSESSED     #

  23501   HENRY, MELANIE & AMY DRYDEN        7757.00-51-5869     7837     1.0        .35         .0        .00         .35    714
         408 BLUEBIRD LANE
         NEWPORT NEWS, VA

                                      23605

  24233   HOLLEY, TAMMY DAVENPORT            7757.00-63-3389     6604    19.0       6.65        7.0        .84        7.49   2884
         1557 AMBROSE RD                     7757.00-64-5159     6605    12.5       4.38         .0        .00        4.38
         CRESWELL, NC                        7757.00-54-7537     6601      .0        .00       13.0       1.56        1.56
                                             7757.00-45-9243     6578    19.8       6.93        7.2        .86        7.79
                                      27928  7757.00-56-6245     7713    59.3      20.76       15.2       1.82       22.58
                                                         TOTAL...       110.6      38.72       42.4       5.08       43.80

  24449   HOLMES, GEORGE HEIRS               7757.00-21-2167     6534     3.0       1.05        6.0        .72        1.77   2896
         2773 AMBROSE ROAD                   7747.00-98-4101     8126    50.0      17.50         .0        .00       17.50
         CRESWELL, NC                        7758.00-11-0887     6523    39.5      13.83       33.5       4.02       17.85
                                             7757.00-21-8690     6533    23.0       8.05        1.0        .12        8.17
                                      27928  7757.00-07-8999     6525   222.0      77.70         .0        .00       77.70
                                                         TOTAL...       337.5     118.13       40.5       4.86      122.99

  25357   HOWELL, WAYNE A                    7724.00-60-6990     9240 1,635.2     572.32         .0        .00      572.32   5611
         1457 RIPP HWY
         PLYMOUTH, NC

                                      27962

  26434   JACKSON, LINWOOD                   7736.00-74-6831     6092      .8        .28         .0        .00         .28   5704
         PO BOX 91
         PLYMOUTH, NC

                                      27962

  26667   JAMES, JEREMY P. & KELLY W.;TERRI C7746.00-71-1897    10452   158.9      55.62         .0        .00       55.62   2937
         878 AMBROSE RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  26662   JAMES, JEREMY P. & SCOTT A.        7756.00-19-3534    10438     3.4       1.19         .0        .00        1.19   2938
         DBA: TRIPLE J FARM
         878 AMBROSE RD
         CRESWELL, NC
                                      27928



DATE  5/09/23                            DRAINAGE TAX SCROLL FOR EDDIE SMITH                                        PAGE   6

                                                                                  RATE @                RATE @
ACCOUNT                                                        REVAL.  CLEARED      .35     WOODED        .12       TOTAL   TICKET
 NUMBER  NAME & ADDRESS                       PIN NUMBER       NUMBER   ACRES      ACRE     ACRES        ACRE     ASSESSED     #

  26661   JAMES, JEREMY P. & TERRIE C.       7755.00-29-2641     9889    38.0      13.30         .0        .00       13.30   2940
         878 AMBROSE RD                      7756.00-22-3289     9891   159.1      55.69         .0        .00       55.69
         CRESWELL, NC                                    TOTAL...       197.1      68.99         .0        .00       68.99

                                      27928

  26713   JAMES, ROY H & JOYCE W             7735.00-96-9461     9892   249.4      87.29        1.9        .23       87.52   2942
         4999 SHORE DR
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  26723   JAMES, RUTH A.                     7746.00-63-4316     9309   404.8     141.68        6.4        .77      142.45   5727
         3656 NC HWY 32 SOUTH                7746.00-90-7704     9890   317.2     111.02         .0        .00      111.02
         PLYMOUTH, NC                                    TOTAL...       722.0     252.70        6.4        .77      253.47

                                      27962

  26722   JAMES, SCOTT A.                    7756.00-15-4972     6962     2.8        .98        2.0        .24        1.22   2946
         1550 GUS TOWN RD                    7756.00-15-5974     6961     2.9       1.02        2.0        .24        1.26
         CRESWELL, NC                        7756.00-15-6979     6960     2.8        .98        2.0        .24        1.22
                                             7756.00-15-7987     6959     2.9       1.02        2.0        .24        1.26
                                      27928  7756.00-16-1942     8899      .3        .11         .0        .00         .11
                                             7756.00-16-8083     6958     2.8        .98        2.0        .24        1.22
                                             7756.00-15-3884     6967     1.9        .67        1.9        .23         .90
                                             7736.00-72-8831     7270   106.8      37.38        2.3        .28       37.66
                                                         TOTAL...       123.2      43.14       14.2       1.71       44.85

  26721   JAMES, SCOTT A. & DEBBIE P.        7735.00-78-4377     9893   157.0      54.95        1.3        .16       55.11   2952
         1550 GUS TOWN ROAD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  26726   JAMES, SCOTT A. & JAMES, JEREMY    7756.00-19-5571     7540     3.7       1.30         .0        .00        1.30   2953
         1359 AMBROSE RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928



DATE  5/09/23                            DRAINAGE TAX SCROLL FOR EDDIE SMITH                                        PAGE   7

                                                                                  RATE @                RATE @
ACCOUNT                                                        REVAL.  CLEARED      .35     WOODED        .12       TOTAL   TICKET
 NUMBER  NAME & ADDRESS                       PIN NUMBER       NUMBER   ACRES      ACRE     ACRES        ACRE     ASSESSED     #

  26724   JAMES, SCOTT ASHLEY                7757.00-62-9828N02  7406     5.9       2.07         .7        .08        2.15   2956
         1550 GUSTOWN RD                     7757.00-62-5769     8381      .4        .14         .0        .00         .14
         CRESWELL, NC                                    TOTAL...         6.3       2.21         .7        .08        2.29

                                      27928

  26727   JAMES, SELVIE K.                   7746.00-50-7495     9310   480.3     168.11         .0        .00      168.11   2959
         1359 AMBROSE ROAD                   7756.00-08-3761     3190    34.9      12.22         .0        .00       12.22
         CRESWELL, NC                        7756.00-18-2513     1273    88.4      30.94        5.7        .68       31.62
                                      27928              TOTAL...       603.6     211.27        5.7        .68      211.95

  26250   JCT, LLC                           7738.00-21-0741     3026     3.5       1.23         .0        .00        1.23   9968
         PO BOX 596
         ROSE HILL, NC

                                      28458

  29868   LINDEN CAROLINA, LLC               7738.00-76-6916     8581   248.7      87.05         .3        .04       87.09   3827
         PO BOX 1909                         7739.00-80-6182     8508   197.7      69.20        3.4        .41       69.61
         MANTEO, NC                          7749.00-33-0066     7925   124.9      43.72         .0        .00       43.72
                                      27954              TOTAL...       571.3     199.97        3.7        .45      200.42

  29870   LINDEN CAROLINA, LLC               7736.00-25-8242     6929   281.6      98.56        2.6        .31       98.87   3823
         P.O. BOX 1909
         MANTEO, NC

                                      27954

  29868   LINDEN CAROLINA, LLC               7738.00-64-9513     8601   302.0     105.70         .0        .00      105.70   3826
         PO BOX 1909
         MANTEO, NC

                                      27954

  30267   LOOKER, TRINA R.                   7757.00-20-0489     5353     1.0        .35         .0        .00         .35   3027
         2881 AMBROSE RD.
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928



DATE  5/09/23                            DRAINAGE TAX SCROLL FOR EDDIE SMITH                                        PAGE   8

                                                                                  RATE @                RATE @
ACCOUNT                                                        REVAL.  CLEARED      .35     WOODED        .12       TOTAL   TICKET
 NUMBER  NAME & ADDRESS                       PIN NUMBER       NUMBER   ACRES      ACRE     ACRES        ACRE     ASSESSED     #

  30719   MALPASS, GREGORY S.                7746.00-67-4067     9303      .3        .11         .0        .00         .11   3048
         8703 NEWLAND RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  30721   MALPASS, GREGORY SCOTT & LINDA A.  7746.00-67-2576     7420     2.3        .81         .0        .00         .81   3049
         8703 NEWLAND RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  31376   MATTHEWS, PAUL E.                  7746.00-75-8793    10707    11.8       4.13        9.1       1.09        5.22   3056
         9048 NEWLAND RD                     7746.00-77-9006     6944    12.4       4.34       11.3       1.36        5.70
         CRESWELL, NC                                    TOTAL...        24.2       8.47       20.4       2.45       10.92

                                      27928

  31980   MCGOWAN, AARON R. JR & CAROLYN M.  7746.00-95-1658     6954    18.0       6.30         .3        .04        6.34   3071
         9584 NEWLAND RD                     7756.00-06-3023     8903     3.1       1.09         .0        .00        1.09
         CRESWELL, NC                        7756.00-05-3225N01  6952    18.4       6.44       19.1       2.29        8.73
                                      27928              TOTAL...        39.5      13.83       19.4       2.33       16.16

  31958   MCGOWAN, ANTONINA D. & MARIA A.    7746.00-97-3583     6948    25.0       8.75        1.0        .12        8.87   3072
         9397 NEWLAND RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  31972   MCGOWAN, CELESTE  (PHILLIPS)       7756.00-06-4627     5531     1.2        .42         .0        .00         .42   3073
         9576 NEWLAND ROAD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  31969   MCGOWAN, CHRISTOPHER WORTH         7746.00-47-3935     8455     1.1        .39         .0        .00         .39   3074
         8341 NEWLAND RD                     7746.00-47-6847     9500     1.4        .49         .0        .00         .49
         CRESWELL, NC                        7746.00-47-9891    10514     1.1        .39         .0        .00         .39
                                      27928              TOTAL...         3.6       1.27         .0        .00        1.27



DATE  5/09/23                            DRAINAGE TAX SCROLL FOR EDDIE SMITH                                        PAGE   9

                                                                                  RATE @                RATE @
ACCOUNT                                                        REVAL.  CLEARED      .35     WOODED        .12       TOTAL   TICKET
 NUMBER  NAME & ADDRESS                       PIN NUMBER       NUMBER   ACRES      ACRE     ACRES        ACRE     ASSESSED     #

  32028   MCINTIRE, WALTER BRYAN             7756.00-19-8612     8633     1.1        .39         .0        .00         .39   3084
         3062 AMBROSE RD                     7756.00-19-8726     2523     1.1        .39         .0        .00         .39
         CRESWELL, NC                                    TOTAL...         2.2        .78         .0        .00         .78

                                      27928

  34427   MURPHY-BROWN LLC                   7736.00-75-0192     9581      .5        .18         .4        .05         .23   9927
         2822 NC HWY 24W                     7736.00-73-2427N01  5500    17.6       6.16         .0        .00        6.16
         WARSAW, NC                                      TOTAL...        18.1       6.34         .4        .05        6.39

                                      28398

  34421   MURRAY, JAMES J. III & SHELI L.    7757.00-32-5754     6536     2.1        .74         .0        .00         .74   3103
         2314 AMBROSE RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  34444   MYERS, VALERIE                     7724.00-45-7741     7177    80.0      28.00         .0        .00       28.00   1253
         524 ELLIS CV
         BELHAVEN, NC

                                      27810

  34592   NAYLOR, WANDA/SUSAN/OLEN/CHRISTOPHE7746.00-17-3009     6924    14.0       4.90       43.4       5.21       10.11   1281
         C/O WANDA NAYLOR
         P.O. BOX 99
         CONETOE, NC
                                      27819

  34667   NEWLAND FAMILY FARM II, LLC        7757.00-50-4971N02  6608    43.5      15.23       15.0       1.80       17.03   3112
         63 WHITE RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  34656   NEWLAND FAMILY FARM II, LLC        7738.00-52-6224     8733   160.9      56.32         .0        .00       56.32   3131
         63 WHITE RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928



DATE  5/09/23                            DRAINAGE TAX SCROLL FOR EDDIE SMITH                                        PAGE  10

                                                                                  RATE @                RATE @
ACCOUNT                                                        REVAL.  CLEARED      .35     WOODED        .12       TOTAL   TICKET
 NUMBER  NAME & ADDRESS                       PIN NUMBER       NUMBER   ACRES      ACRE     ACRES        ACRE     ASSESSED     #

  34667   NEWLAND FAMILY FARM II, LLC        7757.00-64-9868     6602     5.0       1.75         .0        .00        1.75   3110
         63 WHITE RD                         7757.00-75-4065     6595    17.0       5.95        2.0        .24        6.19
         CRESWELL, NC                        7746.00-85-2921     6945    15.7       5.50        8.8       1.06        6.56
                                             7736.00-91-3741     9293   350.8     122.78         .0        .00      122.78
                                      27928  7745.00-09-1072     9385   123.5      43.23         .0        .00       43.23
                                             7746.00-13-9452     6928    90.7      31.75         .0        .00       31.75
                                             7757.00-33-6687     6908    40.8      14.28        3.0        .36       14.64
                                             7746.00-79-2219     6527   164.2      57.47       40.8       4.90       62.37
                                             7747.00-72-0919     6535    45.0      15.75       85.8      10.30       26.05
                                             7736.00-74-0243     9350     4.6       1.61         .0        .00        1.61
                                             7746.00-78-4101     6528      .0        .00       53.0       6.36        6.36
                                                         TOTAL...       857.3     300.07      193.4      23.22      323.29

  34669   NEWLAND FAMILY FARM II, LLC        7738.00-81-1186    10057   147.6      51.66         .0        .00       51.66   3130
         63 WHITE RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  34667   NEWLAND FAMILY FARM II, LLC        7747.00-71-4679     6526      .9        .32       69.1       8.29        8.61   3120
         63 WHITE RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  36501   OLIVER, ANDREW CARSON JR.          7746.00-85-4975     6946     4.5       1.58        2.0        .24        1.82  10137
         110 FIELDSTONE LANE                 7746.00-96-1677     6950    24.4       8.54       13.1       1.57       10.11
         BONNEAU, SC                                     TOTAL...        28.9      10.12       15.1       1.81       11.93

                                      29431

  37540   PATRICK, BECKY                     7746.00-77-2400     7882      .1        .04         .9        .11         .15   3164
         41 SHORE DRIVE
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  37710   PATRICK, MIKE HEIRS                7736.00-74-3975     6436     1.0        .35         .0        .00         .35   3167
         41 SHORE DR
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928



DATE  5/09/23                            DRAINAGE TAX SCROLL FOR EDDIE SMITH                                        PAGE  11

                                                                                  RATE @                RATE @
ACCOUNT                                                        REVAL.  CLEARED      .35     WOODED        .12       TOTAL   TICKET
 NUMBER  NAME & ADDRESS                       PIN NUMBER       NUMBER   ACRES      ACRE     ACRES        ACRE     ASSESSED     #

  38775   PHELPS, BOBBY MITCHELL             7746.00-75-5831     6943      .0        .00       27.5       3.30        3.30   3208
         8960 NEWLAND RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  32935   PHELPS, JAMES B.                   7736.00-74-0751     5507      .9        .32         .0        .00         .32   3246
         89 SHORE DR
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  39229   PHELPS, JAMES BRADFORD             7736.00-74-2754     8751      .8        .28         .0        .00         .28   3247
         89 SHORE DRIVE                      7736.00-74-1837     7600      .5        .18         .0        .00         .18
         CRESWELL,  NC                                   TOTAL...         1.3        .46         .0        .00         .46

                                      27928

  39510   PHELPS, LARRY W. & CINDY           7757.00-43-7124     6615     6.0       2.10         .0        .00        2.10   3266
         649 WHITE ROAD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  39223   PHELPS, MATTHEW NEIL               7746.00-45-5281     6932      .0        .00       90.0      10.80       10.80   1289
         21347 NC HWY 94
         FAIRFIELD, NC

                                      27826

  39789   PHELPS, RICKY D. & DENISE          7746.00-65-3612     6938    60.1      21.04         .0        .00       21.04   3287
         11220 NEWLAND ROAD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  39793   PHELPS, RICKY D. & DENISE D.       7746.00-56-2783     6936    17.4       6.09       40.2       4.82       10.91   3294
         11220 NEWLAND RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928



DATE  5/09/23                            DRAINAGE TAX SCROLL FOR EDDIE SMITH                                        PAGE  12

                                                                                  RATE @                RATE @
ACCOUNT                                                        REVAL.  CLEARED      .35     WOODED        .12       TOTAL   TICKET
 NUMBER  NAME & ADDRESS                       PIN NUMBER       NUMBER   ACRES      ACRE     ACRES        ACRE     ASSESSED     #

  39790   PHELPS, RICKY D. & DENISE P.       7738.00-23-1163     9460   986.2     345.17         .0        .00      345.17   3295
         11220 NEWLAND ROAD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  39837   PHELPS, ROBERT WAYNE               7746.00-05-7880     9100    12.3       4.31       43.1       5.17        9.48   3300
         7490 NEWLAND ROAD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  39860   PHELPS, SAMUEL EDWIN AND WIFE      7757.00-41-9888N02  6612     8.7       3.05         .0        .00        3.05   3301
         2041 AMBROSE RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  39928   PHELPS, TEDDY C. & VIRGINIA        7757.00-62-5442     6603     5.6       1.96         .0        .00        1.96   3308
         1672 AMBROSE RD                     7757.00-62-8515     8382      .4        .14         .0        .00         .14
         CRESWELL, NC                                    TOTAL...         6.0       2.10         .0        .00        2.10

                                      27928

  42645   RIDDICK, GEORGE B.                 7736.00-84-2428     6369      .0        .00        5.1        .61         .61   3346
         49 SHORE DRIVE
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  44097   SANTIAGO, ELIGIO                   7746.00-67-8461     5524     2.4        .84         .0        .00         .84  10428
         3891 S GEMINI
         HOMOSASSA, FL

                                      34448

  44255   SAWYER, CASEY DONALD & ANGELA      7757.00-20-2707     5354     1.5        .53         .0        .00         .53   3367
         1065 AMBROSE RD                     7757.00-20-4325     7786    11.1       3.89        6.2        .74        4.63
         CRESWELL, NC                                    TOTAL...        12.6       4.42        6.2        .74        5.16

                                      27928



DATE  5/09/23                            DRAINAGE TAX SCROLL FOR EDDIE SMITH                                        PAGE  13

                                                                                  RATE @                RATE @
ACCOUNT                                                        REVAL.  CLEARED      .35     WOODED        .12       TOTAL   TICKET
 NUMBER  NAME & ADDRESS                       PIN NUMBER       NUMBER   ACRES      ACRE     ACRES        ACRE     ASSESSED     #

  44294   SAWYER, DONALD J & DIANE B         7757.00-22-9464     9760     1.4        .49         .0        .00         .49   3368
         2249 AMBROSE RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  44296   SAWYER, DONALD JARVIS              7757.00-32-7287     3415     1.0        .35         .0        .00         .35   3369
         2249 AMBROSE RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  44681   SAWYER, RONALD D                   7757.00-32-9026     6909     3.4       1.19         .0        .00        1.19   3377
         PO BOX 38
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  44663   SAWYER, RONALD D. & DONALD J.      7757.00-30-0437     4718    25.8       9.03        8.9       1.07       10.10   3380
         PO BOX 219
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  44931   SEITZER, TIMOTHY AND WIFE,         7757.00-12-6367     9916    46.1      16.14         .0        .00       16.14   9235
         299 SAM ALLEN RD.
         ROPER, NC

                                      27970

  45361   SHOAF, CRAIG & JAMIE CARLA         7737.00-06-7085    10480   448.3     156.91      203.1      24.37      181.28   3398
         90 LAKE SHORE RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  47542   SPEAR, JOSHUA C.                   7756.00-29-5115    10520     4.3       1.51         .0        .00        1.51   2307
         4968 FRYING PAN RD
         COLUMBIA, NC

                                      27925



DATE  5/09/23                            DRAINAGE TAX SCROLL FOR EDDIE SMITH                                        PAGE  14

                                                                                  RATE @                RATE @
ACCOUNT                                                        REVAL.  CLEARED      .35     WOODED        .12       TOTAL   TICKET
 NUMBER  NAME & ADDRESS                       PIN NUMBER       NUMBER   ACRES      ACRE     ACRES        ACRE     ASSESSED     #

  47955   SPRUILL, ARTHUR R. III & JESSE T.  7739.00-71-3012     7273    31.0      10.85         .0        .00       10.85   9355
         85 BLAIR SHORES EXT.
         ROPER, NC

                                      27970

  48071   SPRUILL, CHARLES S. HEIRS          7746.00-67-5437     6830     2.1        .74         .0        .00         .74   3463
         C/O CHARLIE SPRUILL
         PO BOX 384
         CRESWELL, NC
                                      27928

  49756   STAUDE, JACK W                     7757.00-42-2979     5359      .0        .00        2.8        .34         .34   3494
         2249 AMBROSE ROAD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  50658   SUTER, FRED D. & TERRY D.          7757.00-30-9458     8379    20.0       7.00         .0        .00        7.00   3512
         5723 SHORE DRIVE                    7756.00-38-2311     6911    85.8      30.03         .0        .00       30.03
         CRESWELL, NC                                    TOTAL...       105.8      37.03         .0        .00       37.03

                                      27928

  50659   SUTER, FREDERICK DEAN              7756.00-29-1097     6532     4.6       1.61         .0        .00        1.61   3514
         5723 SHORE DR
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  51446   TARKINGTON, IRENE S.               7757.00-64-4802N01  6903    11.3       3.96        2.8        .34        4.30   3549
         1234 GUS TOWN RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  51619   TARKINGTON, SAMUEL B. III          7757.00-22-4793     8652     1.1        .39        7.4        .89        1.28   2102
         1408 W MAIN ST
         WILLIAMSTON,  NC

                                      27892



DATE  5/09/23                            DRAINAGE TAX SCROLL FOR EDDIE SMITH                                        PAGE  15

                                                                                  RATE @                RATE @
ACCOUNT                                                        REVAL.  CLEARED      .35     WOODED        .12       TOTAL   TICKET
 NUMBER  NAME & ADDRESS                       PIN NUMBER       NUMBER   ACRES      ACRE     ACRES        ACRE     ASSESSED     #

  51622   TARKINGTON, SAMUEL N.              7757.00-45-1110     6575    30.0      10.50        3.0        .36       10.86   3554
         687 WHITE RD                        7757.00-43-3362     6616     5.0       1.75         .0        .00        1.75
         CRESWELL, NC                                    TOTAL...        35.0      12.25        3.0        .36       12.61

                                      27928

  52312   THE NICHOLAS WYATT PHELPS REV. TRUS7756.00-48-3165     3416     3.0       1.05         .0        .00        1.05   2316
         TRUSTEE:HARRY T. PHELPS, JR.
         250 ALBEMARLE SHORES
         COLUMBIA, NC
                                      27925

  52595   TOMMY PHELPS, LLC                  7745.00-97-2714     9280   549.3     192.26         .6        .07      192.33   2317
         250 ALBEMARLE SHORES EXT
         COLUMBIA, NC

                                      27925

  55049   WEST, ROGER DALE                   7736.00-74-0808     5508      .9        .32         .0        .00         .32   3594
         77 SHORE DR.
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  55165   WEYERHAEUSER COMPANY               7747.00-66-8106     6154     6.3       2.21    3,026.0     363.12      365.33  10248
         205 PERRY LANE RD
         BRUNSWICK, GA

                                      31525

  52286   WHITE, CHARLES A, TRUSTEE          7746.00-75-0766     6942     9.8       3.43       15.8       1.90        5.33  10541
         48032 INDIAN HILLS CT
         SIOUX FALLS, SD

                                      57108

  55388   WHITE, JACK WILLARD JR.            7757.00-73-4900     6597    13.0       4.55        5.0        .60        5.15   3608
         1193 AMBROSE RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928



DATE  5/09/23                            DRAINAGE TAX SCROLL FOR EDDIE SMITH                                        PAGE  16

                                                                                  RATE @                RATE @
ACCOUNT                                                        REVAL.  CLEARED      .35     WOODED        .12       TOTAL   TICKET
 NUMBER  NAME & ADDRESS                       PIN NUMBER       NUMBER   ACRES      ACRE     ACRES        ACRE     ASSESSED     #

  55486   WHITE, JEAN W.                     7757.00-41-4914     3414     4.5       1.58         .0        .00        1.58   3612
         2147 AMBROSE RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

  57324   WOODLEY, LAWRENCE                  7757.00-11-7466     5352     3.7       1.30         .0        .00        1.30   3642
         2702 AMBROSE ROAD                   7757.00-11-4281     8377     1.8        .63         .0        .00         .63
         CRESWELL, NC                        7757.00-11-4319     8385     4.1       1.44         .0        .00        1.44
                                      27928              TOTAL...         9.6       3.37         .0        .00        3.37

  53796   WOODLEY, LAWRENCE W.               7757.00-10-5655     3465     6.8       2.38        7.6        .91        3.29   3644
         2702 AMBROSE RD
         CRESWELL, NC

                                      27928

     17   3 BARNES, LLC                      7748.00-59-5190     6926   488.1     170.84        1.7        .20      171.04   7630
         1458 MORATTOCK RD                   7748.00-36-0981     6153   880.6     308.21        4.2        .50      308.71
         PLYMOUTH, NC                        7748.00-30-7357     9994    40.1      14.04        5.4        .65       14.69
                                             7747.00-16-8154     9993   959.1     335.69        8.0        .96      336.65
                                      27962  7738.00-92-9901     9992    22.3       7.81         .0        .00        7.81
                                             7749.00-66-6062     5814     4.7       1.65         .0        .00        1.65
                                                         TOTAL...     2,394.9     838.24       19.3       2.31      840.55

                                                   GRAND TOTAL...    16,602.0   5,811.05    6,439.6     772.76    6,583.81



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  6 
 
       DATE:     June 5, 2023 
 
ITEM:      Public Hearing:  Washington County FY24 Budget Recommendation 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA presented the Commissioners with the Washington County 
FY24 Budget recommendation. By statute, there has to be a public hearing on the 
recommended budget before it can be approved. 
 
There will need to be a motion to open the Public Hearing and once finished with the 
Public Hearing, there will need to be a motion to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Mr. Potter will then ask the Board to approve the attached FY24 Budget Ordinance. 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item Memo  Page 1 of 2 

 

       
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823    

AGENDA ITEM MEMO 

MEETING DATE: June 5th, 2023    MEMO Date: June 1st, 2023                 ITEM:    

SUBJECT:  FY24 BUDGET ORDINANCE 

DEPARTMENT: COUNTY MANAGER/FINANCE 

FROM:  Curtis S. Potter, County Manager/County Attorney (CM/CA) 

ATTACHMENTS: 

A- Proposed FY24 Budget Ordinance (10pgs) 

B- Proposed FY24 Fee Schedule (7pgs) 

PURPOSE: To consider approval of the proposed FY24 Budget via the attached FY24 Budget Ordinance, as 

recommended by the Budget Officer, together with any staff/board recommended changes or modifications 

approved by the Board, after first conducting the official Public Hearing on the recommended budget.  

 

BACKGROUND/STAFF DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS:   

A. The Budget Officer presented the FY24 recommended budget together with the FY24 Budget Message to 

the Board at its 5/15/23 meeting. 

 

B. Notice was provided as required by law for an official Public Hearing on the recommended FY24 budget 

set for the Board’s 6/5/23 meeting. 

 

C. Attached for your consideration and approval is the proposed FY24 Budget Ordinance, based on the 

original recommended budget presented by the Budget Officer, with several additional modifications 

recommended by the Budget Officer as follows: 

 

a. After an opportunity for further review, including an opportunity for department heads to review their 

individual recommended departmental budgets, and an opportunity for the Finance Office to pre-key 

the entire proposed budget into the county financial software for reconciliation purposes, the Budget 

Officer recommends the following amendments to the originally presented FY24 Budget:  

i. General Fund (Fund 10) 

10-3990-000 Appropriated Fund Balance +42,393 Additional revenue allocation, 

required to balance budget against 

all other items listed below 

10-3991-900 Cancelled Prior Year Exp -1393 This false revenue amount was in a 

hidden line that was being pulled 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 

ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 

TRACEY A. JOHNSON 

JOHN C. SPRUILL  

CAROL V. PHELPS 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER  

  COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 
 

      JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org 

 
 



Agenda Item Memo Page 2 of 2 

into and inadvertently included in 

the original total revenue formula. 

10-4140-260 Tax Dept Supplies +13,000 Value was left blank (0) in 

recommended column and missed 

in original review process. 

10-5380-410 

(New Line) 

DSS Gen Assistance Foster +9,500 This newly created line was not 

being picked up in the previous 

departmental totals formula. 

10-8300-321 Central Services Telecom +18,500 The annual cost of VOIP Phone 

Services was underbudgeted.  This 

will be partially offset by savings in 

departmental communications lines, 

but it is too early to provide a 

reliable estimate of those savings at 

this time. 

D. COLA Implementation:  Typically, countywide COLAs are implemented with the start of a specific pay

period.  If funding for the proposed 2.5% COLA is included in the approved budget, staff recommends 
implementing the COLA on July 16th, 2023 to provide additional time for staff to obtain the necessary 
certifications and prepare a more fully updated Salary Schedule.

Thank you for your time and consideration of this recommended budget.  I look forward to continuing to work 

with this Board and the staff through its deliberation and final adoption. 

Respectfully Yours, 

Curtis S. Potter

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  VOTE to: 

i. Approve the attached FY24 Budget Ordinance (including the additional

modifications recommended by the Budget Officer in this Memo) subject to any

final modifications or adjustments made by the Board prior to its approval; and

ii. Authorize and direct the Board Chair to execute the Budget Ordinance once

finalized in accordance with any final modifications or adjustments made by the

Board prior to its approval; and

iii. Authorize and direct staff to prepare and implement an updated Salary

Schedule/Pay Table effective July 16th, 2023, reflecting both the

a. recommended 2.5% COLA for all positions (other than County Manager), &

b. all personnel reclassification recommendations made by the Budget Officer in

the Budget Message dated 5/15/23, unless otherwise directed by the Board.



Section 1.

1 $17,734,638
$7,437,184
($55,000)
$940,800
($30,000)
$384,000
$30,500
$71,000
$52,000
$1,100,000
$778,000
$235,000
$400,000
$63,800
$500
$144,000
$180,600
$12,600
$250,000
$0
$3,091,013

Emergency Management Grants & Reimbursements $40,000
$417,848
$199,336
$79,845
$88,940
$151,241
$100,000
NA
$1,571,431

Loan Proceeds - Installment Financing Vehicles
Appropriated Fund Balance

DOT Grants & Reimbursements

SRO Reimbursement
Cost Allocation from Water/Sanitation

GENERAL FUND (10)
Taxes Ad-Valorem Current Year

Tax Penalties & Interest Current Year
Tax Penalties & Interest Prior Years

Article 42 1/2 Cent Sales Tax (Unrestricted 60%)

It is estimated that the revenues and Fund Balances of the funds hereafter listed will be 
available for the fiscal year indicated above, to finance the appropriations set forth in 
Section 2 below, and in accordance with the chart of accounts established for 
Washington County:

Ad-Valorem Taxes-Motor Vehicle
NCVTS, Contra, Refunds
Prior Year Taxes

In accordance with G.S. 159.13, be it ordained by the Board of Commissioners of Washington County, 
North Carolina as follows:

Tax Discounts

REVENUES

SL 2015-241 Sales Tax Redistribution
ABC Taxes & Profit Distribution

Prepayment Property Taxes
Article 39 One Cent Sales Tax
Article 40 1/2 Cent Sales Tax (Unrestricted 70%)

Detention Fees & Concessions

Misc Revenues & Sale of Fixed Assets
Public Assistance Grants & Reimbursements

Fees & Licenses
Rents & Concessions
Interest Earned on Investments

Other Intergovernmental
Other Misc Grants (Drug Recovery & Rec Volkswagen)

Leased Vehicles Gross Tax

Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2023 & Ending June 30th, 2024 (FY24)

Washington County Budget Ordinance

JCPC

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY24 - Page 1 of 10



2 $69,734,777
$320,000
$335,000
$49,140,219
$19,763,500
$0
$176,058

3 $123,000
$87,000
$7,775
($750)
$22,828
$6,147
$0

4 $1,663,189
$75,000
$5,000
$0
$3,500
$1,258,099
$50,000
$6,000
$7,200
$17,500
$0
$125,974
$50,000
$64,916

5 $8,542,228
$7,500
$900,000
$530,000
$8,500
$18,000
$5,000
$0
$6,679,000
$394,228
$0

GRANT-NEEDS BASED PUBLIC SCHOOL CAP FUND
TRUIST PK12 FINANCING 4.02%

TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND              
FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATION*             

NC DEQ Grants
Allocated Fund Balance

DRAINAGE FUND (30)

SCHOOL CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND (21)
Article 40 1/2 Cent Sales Tax (Restricted 30%)

Watershed Improvement Tax

Stream Debris Removal Allocation from State

Article 42 1/2 Cent Sales Tax (Restricted (40%)

Transfer from General Fund

Rural Solid Waste Tipping Fees Billed

Town Solid Waste Availability Fee Billed

SANITATION FUND (33)

TAP & Connection Fees

White Goods Disposal Fee/Grants

State Tire Tax Revenues Billed
State Tire Tax Revenues

Tax Discounts

Solid Waste Disposal Tax

Solid Waste User Fee County

WATER FUND (35)
Interest Earned on Investments
Utility Base Charges
Utility Consumption Charges

Construction Contractor Disposal Fees

Electronics Mgmt. Fund

NC DOT Utility Relocation Reimbursements

Reconnection Fees
Penalties & Interest Utility Bills

Watershed Improvement Tax Prior Yrs/Penalties/Interest

Appropriated Watershed Reserve/Fund Balance

NC DENR GRANT

Metal/White Goods

Eddie Smith Drainage Assessment

Appropriated Fund Balance

Transfer from General Fund

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY24 - Page 2 of 10



6 $2,360,811
$150,000
$675,000
$330,000
$0
$675,000
$398,952
$131,859
$0

7 $666,668

8 $265,693
$100,000
$16,000
$0
$99,738
$0
$49,955

9 $450,000

10 $89,201 ^

11 $180,000

12 $0 ^

13 $4,473,423

14 $278,635
$160,000
$0
$118,635

15 $118,952
$118,952
$0

WC HOSP PENSION FUND (40)

Transfer from General Fund

Fuel Sales
Hangar Rentals

AIRPORT GRANTS FUND (38)

Appropriated Fund Balance

911 Surcharge

DSS TRUST & FC DEPOSITS FUND (51)

ARPA - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT FUND (55)

TRAVEL & TOURISM FUND (63)

Appropriated Fund Balance

Motel Occupancy Tax

Timber Sales

Appropriated Fund Balance

Tyrrell County EMS Contract

EMS FUND (37)

EMS Standby Revenues
Transport Revenues

NCACC Cost Reimbursements
EMS Revenues

Interest Earned on Investments

EMERGENCY 911 FUND (69)

AIRPORT OPERATIONS FUND (39)

Transfer from General Fund

OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUND (50)

SPECIAL PROJECTS/GRANTS FUND (58)

Sale of Fixed Assets & Donations

CRF/ARP Grant Funds

^(Provided for informational purposes only, see Project Ordinance/Budget)

^(Provided for informational purposes only, see Project Ordinance/Budget)

Appropriated Fund Balance

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY24 - Page 3 of 10



16 $40,000
$40,000
$0
$0

$106,182,013

Section 2.

1 $17,734,638

$145,372

$526,851

$468,486
$659,069
$0
$176,704
$162,997
$171,395
$245,652
$643,450
$1,669,552
$79,051
$71,727
$78,375
$0
$1,218,987
$131,353
$0
$398,952
$94,891
$239,118
$11,017

Finance

Manager's Office

Information Technology
Buildings

Professional Services

Governing Board

Tax Administration

TAX REVALUATION FUND (70)

Interest on Investments

Transfer from General Fund

TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS

Appropriated Fund Balance

GENERAL FUND (10)

Based upon the revenue estimates described in Section 1 above, the following amounts 
are hereby appropriated in the funds hereafter listed, and within any functions designated 
therein, to fund the operations of Washington County government and its activities for 
the fiscal year indicated above, and in accordance with the chart of accounts established 
for Washington County.

Board of Elections
Register of Deeds

Sheriff's Office
Washington Union SRO
Creswell SRO

Facility Services

Emergency Management

Plymouth High SRO
Pines SRO
Detention Center

GIS

COVID-19 CRF Funds
Fire Protection

Planning
Forestry

APPROPRIATIONS/EXPENSES

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY24 - Page 4 of 10



$308,519
$231,617
$600
$3,969,038
$602,564
$458,834
$96,743
$1,735,000
$577,629
$43,240
$10,000
$161,804
$76,551
$205,000
$339,753
$5,000
$631,057
$0

$50,000
$0
$398,952
$0
$99,738
$0
$450,000
$10,000
$40,000
$0
$0
$40,000

TRANSFER TO WCH PENSION FUND

Sanitation Fund (33)
Water Fund (35)

Sales Tax Redistribution

Medical Examiner
Cooperative Extension
Soil & Water
Library

Veteran Services
Social Services Admin
Social Services Economic Support

Communications
Mental Health

Health Department
Senior Center

Social Services Transportation
JCPC/Juvenile Service
Board of Education Current Exp

Recreation
Community Alternative
Central  Services

Tax Re-Valuation Fund (70)
Transfer to Spec. Projects & Grants Fund (58)

Drainage Fund (30)

School System Capital Outlay Fund (21)

Debt Service

Transfers

EMS Fund (37)

Airport Operations Fund (39)

Contingency

Airport Grant Fund (38)

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY24 - Page 5 of 10



2 $69,734,777
$400,000
$49,140,219
$19,763,500
$431,058
$0

3 $123,000

4 $1,663,190

5 $8,542,228
$950,469.71
$6,679,000
$588,043
$324,715

6 $2,360,811
$2,019,204
$341,607
$0

7 $666,668

8 $265,693

9 $450,000

10 $89,201 ^

11 $180,000

12 $0 ^

13 $4,473,423
$4,150,000
$179,153
$84,270
$10,000
$50,000

AvEOC Bldg
Econ Dev Motorsports Grant
DPS-WCSO DIR APPROP SL 2021-180

NBPSC Grant (PK12 School)
Truist Funding (PK12 School)

DSS TRUST & FC DEPOSITS FUND (51)

Transport Expenses

DRAINAGE FUND (30)

WATER FUND (35)
Water Operations Expenses

Water Treatment Expenses

SANITATION FUND (33)

TRUIST INTEREST (Starts in FY24)

NC DEQ Grants

ARPA - AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT FUND (55)

WC HOSP PENSION FUND (40)

AIRPORT GRANTS FUND (38)

AIRPORT OPERATIONS FUND (39)

HB103 LPR DIR APPROPRIATION             
PARTF GRANT LOCAL MATCH*

EMS FUND (37)

Designated for Future Appropriation

Capital Outlay
SCHOOL CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND (21)

OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUND (50)

SPECIAL PROJECTS/GRANTS FUND (58)

^(Provided for informational purposes only, see Project Ordinance/Budget)

^(Provided for informational purposes only, see Project Ordinance/Budget)

Water Debt Expenses

EMS Expenses

Debt Service

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY24 - Page 6 of 10



14 $278,635
$173,060
$105,575

15 $118,952
$83,094
$35,858

16 $40,000

106,182,014

Section 3.

Value Rate
$112,000,000.00 100.00%
$82,800,000.00 95.36%

$845,659,553.00 95.36%

$1,040,459,555.91 95.86%Total Value/Combined Rate:

Public Utilities

AN AD-VALOREM PROPERTY TAX, IS HEREBY LEVIED, at the rate of EIGHTY-
FOUR CENTS ($0.840) per one hundred dollars ($100) valuation on all real and 
personal property and motor vehicles listed for taxes as of January 1, 2023 for the 
specific purpose of generating the revenues referred to as Taxes Ad-Valorem Current 
Year and Ad-Valorem Taxes-Motor Vehicle in Section 1 of this Ordinance.  

A SPECIAL WATERSHED IMPROVEMENT TAX, IS HEREBY LEVIED, at the rate of 
ONE CENT ($0.01) per one hundred dollars ($100) valuation on all real and personal 
property and motor vehicles listed for taxes as of January 1, 2023 for the specific 
purpose of generating the revenues referred to as "Watershed Improvement Tax" in 
Section 1 of this Ordinance, which revenues shall be deposited within the Drainage Fund 
of Washington County and used for the prevention of flood water and sedimentation 
damages, and for furthering the conservation, utilization, and disposal of water and the 
development of water resources.  This tax was authorized by referendum election held 
May 6, 1972.

THESE LEVIES, and the corresponding estimate for revenues generated therefrom are 
based on the following projected tax base and collection rates.

Tax Base

All other Real & Personal Property

Motor Vehicles

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS - ALL FUNDS

EMERGENCY 911 FUND (69)
PSAP Expenses
Capital Outlay (Backup PSAP)

TTA Admin
TTA Operations

TAX LEVIES

TRAVEL & TOURISM FUND (63)

TAX REVALUATION FUND (70)

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY24 - Page 7 of 10



Section 4.

Section 5.

Section 6.

a.

b.
c.

d.

i. Purchase Order Policy: Unless otherwise required by applicable law or the
County Finance Officer, a standardized purchase order system shall be
utilized to pre-obligate all individual purchases/contractual obligations
exceeding: $999.99.  The County Manager is also authorized to delegate the
authority to the County Finance Officer to unilaterally approve increases to
initially approved Purchase Orders within available funding limits by not more
than an additional 20% not to exceed an additional $999.99 whenever deemed
necessary and advisable to expedite the processing and administration of
such purchase orders modifications.

Reimbursement for mileage will be .50 cent per mile.

Any updated Washington County Fee Schedule attached to this Ordinance, shall be 
considered a part hereof, and shall be deemed adopted upon the approval of this 
Ordinance.  The terms and provisions thereof shall supersede, replace, and control over 
any and all inconsistent terms or provisions of any previously adopted fee schedules.  If 
no updated schedule is actually attached hereto, the most recent Washington County 
Fee Schedule actually approved by the Board of Commissioners is hereby ratified and 
reapproved, and shall be deemed to continue to apply with full force and effect, unless or 
until it is actually revised, replaced, or repealed by the Board of Commissioners. 

Any updated Washington County Salary Schedule attached to this Ordinance, shall be 
considered a part hereof, and shall be deemed adopted upon the approval of this 
Ordinance.  The terms and provisions thereof shall supersede, replace, and control over 
any and all inconsistent terms or provisions of any previously adopted Salary Schedules.  
If no such updated schedule is actually attached hereto, the most recent Washington 
County Salary Schedule actually approved by the Board of Commissioners is hereby 
ratified and reapproved, and shall be deemed to continue to apply with full force and 
effect, unless or until it is actually revised, replaced, or repealed by the Board of 
Commissioners.

Additional detailed breakdowns by line item are provided for informational purposes in 
the attached spreadsheets reflecting the projected revenues and allocated expenditures 
by Fund/Department.  In keying the budget, the Finance Officer is authorized to make 
minor adjustments via of not more than $10 per fund to correct for rounding errors in 
order to maintain balance between revenues and expenses within the County Financial 
System Software.

Departments must abide by the pre-audit procedures found in G.S. 159.28 together with 
any and all applicable county purchasing policies or laws when purchasing goods and 
services.

Use of electronic or facsimile signature is authorized for use on County checks to the 
fullest extent permitted by law.

FEE SCHEDULE

PAY PLAN & SALARY SCHEDULE

MISCELLANEOUS

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY24 - Page 8 of 10



e.

f. Governing Board:
i.

ii.

iii.

g.

h.

Section 7.
The Budget Officer (County Manager) is hereby granted the following authority:

a.

b.

c.

BUDGET OFFICER AUTHORITY:

Copies of this Budget Ordinance shall be furnished by the Clerk to the Board to the 
County Manager, Finance Officer, Tax Administrator, and Board of Education for 
direction in the carrying out of their duties, and are available for public inspection in the 
Office of the Clerk to the Board.

Property acquired by Washington County or any department through purchase, gifts, or 
other legal acquisitions will be disposed of in accordance with NCGS 160A Art. 12, or if 
applicable NCGS 15-11.1, and otherwise in accordance with applicable county policies 
or law.

All outside agencies or other parties that receive county funding shall submit financial 
statements to the county each year at the end of any of their respective annual budget 
cycles in which such funding was received, and shall provide a written report to the 
Budget Officer regarding how such funds were actually used for the benefit of 
Washington County or its citizens if not otherwise disclosed within such financial 
statements or other regularly provided or publicly available reports.  Approved county 
payments may be delayed pending receipt of such information.  All such agencies or 
parties shall also submit a written request to the Budget Officer for the continuation of 
any such funding or for any new or revised funding no later than 90 days prior to the start 
of any fiscal year in which Washington County will be asked to provide such funding 
(March 31st).

Due to the demands of the office, the Chair will receive an in-county travel 
stipend of $ 275.00 per month, whereas other Commissioners will receive 
$225.00 per month.  In-County travel for this section is defined as being within 
thirty (30) miles of the individual Commissioners' home.  

A cellular telephone stipend of $ 50.00 per month will be provided to all 
Commissioners.

To otherwise make transfers within any individual fund of up to $10,000 between 
individual departments, including contingency/designated for future purposes lines.  In 
emergency or special circumstances warranting a larger immediate transfer for good 
cause approved by both the Budget Officer and Finance Officer, this standard montary 
cap may be exceeded, subject to subsequent Board ratification/approval.

To make any changes to the Approved Salary Schedule, or to an Employee’s Salary, 
after first consulting with the Board either collectively or individually.

To make transfers between line items in the same department, or between department 
budgets supervised by one department head, or the Finance Officer without limitation.

In accordance with Washington County policy, members of the Board of 
Commissioners will receive a general stipend of $ 575.00 per month, whereas 
the Chair of the Board will receive $ 650.00 per month.  

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY24 - Page 9 of 10



d.

i.

e.

f.

g.

Section 8.

ATTEST:

To the extent deemed necessary by the Budget Officer or County Finance 
Officer, the Board Chair is also hereby authorized without further consent 
being required, to execute grant applications and/or grant agreements on 
behalf of the County to the same extent, and subject to the same limitations 
upon such authority provided to the Budget Officer hereinabove.

Julius Walker Jr., Chair of the Board of County Commissioners

Julie J. Bennett, Clerk to the Board, MMC, NCMCC

The Washington County Board of Commissioners, having first conducted a public 
hearing in accordance wtih applicable law, prior to the adoption of its annual budget 
ordinance (this Budget Ordinance) for the upcoming fiscal year; which hearing was held 
at: ___________________________________________________________ on or 
about the _____ day of ________________, 20____ , does hereby adopt this Budget 
Ordinance this _____ day of _____________, 20_____.

ADOPTION

During the month of June only, the Budget Officer may make any necessary inner-
departmental and/or inter-departmental budget transfers/amendments within any single 
fund, and in any amount deemed reasonably necessary, to complete year end spending 
and close out the fiscal year.  Nothing herein shall authorize the Budget Officer to 
increase or decrease the overall budgeted amount for any fund without prior approval of 
the Board.

All Budget Amendments and/or Transfers made by the Budget Officer hereunder shall 
be reported to the Board of Commissioners at their next regular meeting following such 
transfers, or as soon thereafter as possible, and shall be deemed ratified by the Board 
unless action is taken by the Board to nullify any such transfer.

To approve change orders for contracts approved by the Board up to $30,000 per 
occurrence without exceeding the total allocated budget for any project.  Any such 
approvals shall be reported to the Board at or before its next regular meeting.

To apply for and accept grant funding unless application or acceptance directly by the 
Board is required by any applicable grantor source, provided any local match required 
must be approved by the Board if not otherwise allocated within the approved Budget, 
and to execute any necessary grant agreements to facilitate the same. All grant funds 
must be budgeted before being spent.  

Washington County Budget Ordinance - FY24 - Page 10 of 10



FY24 Revised Fee Schedule  Effective July 1, 2023 (Page 1 of 7) 
 

WASHINGTON COUNTY  

FEE SCHEDULE 
(Revised/Effective: July 1st, 2023) 

 
ANIMAL CONTROL FEE SCHEDULE: 

 

ADOPTION     
Dog/each        $   35.00  
Cat/each        $   35.00  
Other/each        $   10.00 

PICK-UP/SURRENDER 
Pick-up/Surrender dog       $   25.00 
Pick-up/Surrender puppy       $   10.00 
Pick-up/Surrender cat       $   35.00 

ANIMAL REDEMPTIONS  
Impoundment     $35.00 + 5.00 per day per animal  

PENALTIES  
First offense        $   25.00 
Second offense       $   50.00 
Third offense        $ 150.00 

COLLECTION FOR RESALE PERMIT  
Annual permit fee       $ 250.00 

OTHER 
Owner request pick-up      $ 35.00  

 
***Fees to be collected by the Animal Control Officer, Sheriff's Department,  
      or Finance Office. 

 
BUILDING INSP. & ZONING PERMITS FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

The fee for all permits required by this Code shall be paid at the time of filing the application in 
accordance with the following schedule. 
 

SECTION 1. AUTHORITY 
The authority for this Ordinance is found at G.S. 153-A-354. 
The building inspector is authorized to assign all construction to one of the categories 
contained herein. The assignment will be to the category, which in his discretion, is the 
one most closely related to the proper construction category. 
 
SECTION 2. MOBILE HOMES AND MODULAR HOUSING 

Single wide mobile homes      $  150.00 
Double wide mobile homes      $  175.00 
Triple wide mobile homes      $  200.00 

 
 
 



FY24 Revised Fee Schedule  Effective July 1, 2023 (Page 2 of 7) 
 

SECTION 3. LIGHT CONSTRUCTION — UTILITY BUILDING, STORAGE,  
 PRIVATE, GARAGES, ETC. 
      0 — 200 square feet       $ 100.00 

201 — 600 square feet      $ 150.00 
601 — no limit     $      .20 per additional sq. ft. 

 
SECTION 4. NEW CONSTRUCTION — RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL 

Per Square foot (heated and unheated)    $       .20 
 
SECTION 5. ALTERATIONS, REPAIRS, PIERS, BULKHEADS, WATERWAY 
STRUCTURES, GREENHOUSE INSTALLATIONS 

For a valuation under $5,000.00 no fee shall be required. 
For a valuation over $5,000.00 and without limit the fee shall be $10.00 per  

           thousand dollars or a fraction thereof (minimum of $25.00) 
 
SECTION 5A. SOLAR PANELS (Adopted August 20, 2012) 

Residential        $  75.00 
Commercial      $0.50 per panel (with a minimum fee of $250) 

 
SECTION 6. SWIMMING POOLS      $ 100.00 
 
SECTION 7. ELECTRICAL  

  New construction — residential and commercial    $  .08 per square foot 
Alterations        $  75.00 
Temporary service pole      $  75.00 

 
SECTION 8. RESTORATION OF ELECTRICAL SERVICES  $  75.00 
 
SECTION 9. MECHANICAL PERMITS 

New Construction- residential and commercial $      .08 per square foot 
Alterations        $  75.00 

 
SECTION 10. DUAL FUEL PERMITS     $ 150.00 
 
SECTION 11. INSULATION 

New Construction – residential and commercial  $      .06 per square foot 
Alterations         $  75.00 

 
SECTION 12. VINYL SIDING PERMITS     $  N/A 
 
SECTION 13. SHINGLES / RE-ROOF       $  N/A 
 
SECTION 14. SIGN PERMITS  

Up to 100 square feet       $   60.00 
Over 100 square feet       $ 120.00 
Electricity to sign       $   75.00 

 



FY24 Revised Fee Schedule  Effective July 1, 2023 (Page 3 of 7) 
 

 
SECTION 15. BEER/WINE      $ 100.00 

(FIRE / BUILDING INSPECTIONS)    
 
SECTION 16. DAYCARE INSPECTION      $   75.00 
 
SECTION 17. PLUMBING PERMITS  

New construction     $       .08 per square foot 
Alterations                 $   75.00 

  
SECTION 18. COURTESY OR CHANGE OF OCCUPANCY INSP $    75.00 
 
SECTION 19. DEMOLITIONS       $    50.00 
 
SECTION 20. COMMUNICATIONS TOWER  $  6.00 per foot of height  

                            (plus building permit, if required)  
SECTION 21. RE-INSPECTIONS (per re-inspections)    $    25.00 
 
SECTION 22. G.S. 87-15.6  

(1991) Homeowners Recovery Fund Fee of $10.00 (State $9.00, County $1.00) 
charged to licensed general contractors for construction or alteration of any single 
family residential dwelling. 

 
SECTION 23. FEMA DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 

RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL     $   25.00 
 
SECTION 24. GAS PERMIT        $   35.00 
 
SECTION 25. SUBDIVISION DEVELOPMENT FEE    $  200.00 
 
SECTION 26. ASBESTOS (Base Rate including 3 samples)  $  n/a 
 Additional samples $n/a each 
 
SECTION 27. MOLD INSPECTION      $  n/a 
 Additional samples $n/a each 
 
SECTION 28. ZONING FEES 
 Zoning Permit        $25.00 
 Zoning Permit Amendments      $37.50 
 Conditional Use/Special Use Permits     $150.00 
 Variance Request       $200.00 
 Zoning Ordinance/Map Amendments     $150.00 
 Site Plan Review Fee       $50.00 
 Appeals to the Board of Adjustment     $150.00 
  
 
 



FY24 Revised Fee Schedule  Effective July 1, 2023 (Page 4 of 7) 
 

 
SECTION 29. ENFORCEMENTS 

A $50.00 fine for commencement of construction, alterations, additions, repair or 
other work requiring a permit, will be added to the fees due. Payment of such 
penalty shall not relieve the violator of criminal prosecution. Other penalties may 
apply as provided in the North Carolina State Building Codes and National 
Electrical Code as amended or failure to comply with any of the requirements 
thereof shall be guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of not less than ten 
dollars ($10.00) nor more than fifty dollars ($50.00) for each day's violation. 

 
SECTION 30. APPEALS 

Any appeals as to the existing ordinance shall be made to the County Building 
Inspector within ten (10) days of written notice from the Inspections Department. 
Further appeals will be conducted by the County Board of Commissioners. The 
County Manager shall affix a reasonable time and hearing as to the appeal with 
the Board. The Board may conduct a full and complete hearing as to the matters 
in controversy, after which shall, within a reasonable amount of time, give written 
decision setting forth its finding of fact and its conclusions. 

 
SECTION 31. SEVERABILITY 

Should any section or provision of this ordinance be declared null and void by the 
courts, such decisions shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a whole, or 
any other independent part thereof. 

 
SECTION 32. EXEMPTIONS 

No fee shall be required for the County of Washington, State of North Carolina, 
the United States of America, the Towns of Creswell, Plymouth and Roper, or the 
Washington County Board of Education. 

 
SECTION 33. DEFINITIONS 

Modular   - Considered equal to new construction 
Construction — trailer - Considered as a single wide 

 

 
  



FY24 Revised Fee Schedule  Effective July 1, 2023 (Page 5 of 7) 
 

EMS FEE SCHEDULE: 
 

1) EMS AND NON-EMERGENCY TRANSPORT FEE SCHEDULE 
CHARGE LIST FEE 

BLS Non-Emergency $350 
BLS Emergency $450 
ALS Non-Emergent $425.00 
ALS 1 Emergent $670 
ALS 2 Emergent $975 
ALS Treat (No Transport) $175.00 
Mileage $12.50/per mile 

 
2) STANDBY AMBULANCE SERVICES: $80 per hour 

 
MISCELLANEOUS FEE SCHEDULE: 

Copies of documents      $    0.25 per page 
Maps (larger than ledger size)    $    5.00 each 
Notaries (for personal or non-county purposes)  $    5.00 each 
Returned Check Fee      $    25.00 each 

 
RECREATION FEE SCHEDULE: 
*NOTE: Due to impacts of the Coronavirus pandemic on the recreation department and the 
desire to encourage participation, recreation fees are intended to be waived unless and until 
otherwise directed by the County Manager. 

 
1) INSURANCE: Per person per year for all sports in addition to program fees...$15.00 
2) PROGRAMS FEES: Per person, per program, per year, per sport 

Archery  $  35.00 
Baseball  $  30.00 
Basketball  $  30.00 
Boys softball  $  30.00 
Cheerleading  $  15.00 
Football  $  35.00 

Gymnastics  $  30.00 
Karate   $  20.00 
Line dancing  $    5.00 
Swimming  $  60.00 
Tennis   $  30.00 
Volleyball  $  20.00

 
SENIOR CENTER FEE SCHEDULE: 

1. Yoga, Chair Exercise, Line Dancing, Art Class $5.00 per month plus materials 
2. Dance Fitness      $10 per month 
3. Other activities:     $TBD/As Advertised 

  



FY24 Revised Fee Schedule  Effective July 1, 2023 (Page 6 of 7) 
 

SOLID WASTE FEE SCHEDULE: 
The term household/account includes churches or other non-profits for purposes of this schedule. 

 
1. ANNUAL SOLID WASTE USER FEE (SWUF):       Per Account: $335 

Billed per household/account & includes residential curbside garbage pickup/hauling to Bertie 
County Landfill, limited curbside pickup/hauling of limb/leaf other debris to in-county C&D 
landfill, and in-county C&D landfill availability for additional waste. 
a. County Residents (est. 3755 accounts – Billed & Collected by County via Tax Bill) 
b. Town of Creswell (est. 159 accounts for FY23 – Billed & Collected by County via Tax Bill  
c. Town of Roper  (est. 221 accounts for FY23 – Billed Directly to Town) 
 

2. TOWN OF PLYMOUTH:  
a. REGIONAL LF TIPPING FEES:            Per Ton: $56.60*   

Billed by County to Town of Plymouth to reimburse it for paying the Town’s actual 
tipping fees charged to the County by the Bertie County Landfill.  *(or at actual cost if 
different, plus any applicable taxes/fees charged by BCLF/incurred by County) 

b. LOCAL LANDFILL AVAILABILITY FEE:     Per Account: $44.00  
Billed to per household/account for availability of in-county C&D landfill for Town of 
Plymouth residents. DOES NOT include residential curbside pickup/hauling services.  

 
5. IN-COUNTY C&D LANDFILL CHARGES: 

Only material generated in Washington County may be brought to the local C&D Landfill. 
 

a. Private Commercial Landfill Tipping Fees:            (PER TON) 
Tires          $104.00 
C&D (construction/demolition/leaf/limb/metal/etc)   $60.00 
Inert Debris/Clean Fill*       $35.00  
*(All Other Non-Contaminated-bricks, mortar, concrete & non-org building debris)   

 
b. Commercial Use: Material delivered by a contractor regardless of its source will be charged 

at the applicable Private Commercial Landfill Tipping Fees.    
 
c. Residential Use Credit:  The owner of each parcel of residential property having a 

household/account which pays an annual SWUF, or which is within the Town of Plymouth, 
and listed by the County Tax Administrator for Landfill Availability Fee purposes, may 
deposit limb, leaf, and/or construction & demolition debris otherwise normally accepted by 
the landfill weighing up to ONE (1) combined ton per account/parcel, per fiscal year at no 
charge.   

i. The debris must originate from the specific parcel/account to which the account 
credit is associated, and customers may not combine credits from multiple 
parcels/accounts to avoid paying applicable charges related to such debris in excess 
of the single credit associated with each specific account/parcel. 

ii. Any unused portion of any account’s applicable credit shall expire at the end of each 
fiscal year, and not rollover for use in any future fiscal years.    

iii. This policy is intended to balance the needs of the landfill to generate sufficient 
revenues from its operations to sustain its own expenses, while also encouraging all 
county residents to properly and regularly dispose of normal household waste 
materials that may be generated during each fiscal year within the local landfill not 
only for their convenience, but also to help preserve the positive safety and health 
benefits which our community receives as a result of having a central and locally 
convenient location to dispose of such waste. 

iv. This policy subject to modification/repeal by the Board of Commissioners. 



FY24 Revised Fee Schedule  Effective July 1, 2023 (Page 7 of 7) 
 

WATER SYSTEM FEE SCHEDULE:  
 

MONTHLY WATER RATES 
Monthly Base Charge (includes the first 2000 gallons of water) 

3/4 inch    $    26.00 
1 inch     $    38.00 
1 ½  inch    $    63.00 
2 inch     $  101.00 
3 inch     $  171.00 
4 inch     $  249.00 
6 inch     $  488.00 
8 inch     $  728.00 

Consumption charge    $    13.00  
(per each 1000 gallons over the 2000 gallons included in the base charge) 

Water Service Deposit & Collection Fees 
 Renter     $120.00 
 Owner     $60.00 
 Returned Check Fee   $25.00 

Late/Collection Fee   $35.00 
Late Payment Finance Charge 1.5% per month  

Hydrant charge     $    13.00  
for each 1000 gallons  
 

RE-READ FEE (If Requested by Customer & No Error/Mistakes Found)  $35.00 
METER HISTORY FEE          $35.00 
 (If Requested by Customer without leak or other unusual activity)    
METER BOX RELOCATION (If requested by customer)   $TBD 

Customer to be charged at actual estimated cost of labor/equipment not to exceed $400 
unless customer is notified in advance and consents in writing to higher actual amount. 

 
*METER TAMPERING OR PROPERTY DESTRUCTION FEE TO BE DETERMINED 
  BY THE UTILITIES DIRECTOR AT THE TIME OF DISCOVERY. 
 
TAP FEES (NO BORE) 5/8”-3/4”  1”   2”   
Connection   $1,016.00  $1,100.00 $1,745.00  
 
TAP FEES (WITH BORE) 5/8”-3/4”  1”   2”   
Connection   $1,266.00  $1,350.00 $1,995.00  
 
HYDRANT METER 
Connection   $   705.00 
Deposit   $1,000.00  
 
*Connection charges for connections larger than 2” will be charged at actual cost based on quotes to be 
obtained at the time such requests are made.  Contact the Public Utilities Director for additional 
information.  
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  7 
 
       DATE:     June 5, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Boards & Committees, Ms. Julie Bennett, Clerk to the Board 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
WASHINGTON COUNTY DSS BOARD 
 
The Washington County DSS Board had requested that the Board of Commissioners 
appoint Ann Keyes to the DSS Board. 
 
Ms. Keyes has agreed to serve if appointed. 
 
 
 
 



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:  8 
 
       DATE:  June 5, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Finance Officer’s Report 
  
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
Ms. Missy Dixon, Finance Officer will discuss the enclosed budget amendments/transfers 
to the Board for approval/disapproval and information. 
 
See attached. 
 
Also attached is RESO 2023-020 Removing Certain Obsolete General Fund Balance 
Designations.  Mr. Potter will talk about this and ask for a motion to approve it. 
 
 
 























Washington County Resolution 2023-020 Page 1 of 2  

 
 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
JULIUS WALKER, JR., CHAIR 
 ANN C. KEYES, VICE-CHAIR 
TRACEY A. JOHNSON 
CAROL V. PHELPS 
JOHN C. SPRUILL

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 1007 

PLYMOUTH, NORTH CAROLINA 27962 
OFFICE (252) 793-5823 

 

ADMINISTRATION STAFF: 
CURTIS S. POTTER 

COUNTY MANAGER/COUNTY ATTORNEY 
cpotter@washconc.org 

CATHERINE “MISSY” DIXON 
FINANCE OFFICER 

mdixon@washconc.org 

JULIE J. BENNETT, MMC, NCMCC 
CLERK TO THE BOARD 

jbennett@washconc.org

RESOLUTION 2023-020 
 

REMOVING CERTAIN OBSOLETE GENERAL FUND BALANCE 
DESIGNATIONS 

 
 WHEREAS, during its review and reconciliation of older financial records and accounts, management 
has identified several separate North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT) bank accounts holding 
certain county funds which were opened long ago to apparently hold their respective funds in those separate 
accounts for certain projects/purposes previously designated by the Board including the following specific 
accounts: 

i. Public Building Capital Reserve   (Opened June 1990) 
ii. Recreation Land Reserve    (Opened July 1990)  
iii. Water Works Debt Service Reserve  (Opened June 1991) 
iv. Economic Development Reserve  (Opened June 2001) 

 WHEREAS, management discussed its research of, and known history about these accounts with the 
Board at its FY24 Budget Planning Workshop in January of 2023, and recommended that due to the mostly 
obsolete purpose of these separate accounts, that they be closed and the funds transferred to and consolidated 
with the other main accounts of the county to the fullest extent possible, in order to greatly reduce and simplify 
the administrative burden associated with otherwise having to continue tracking, reconciling, booking interest, 
and auditing each of these four separate bank accounts (in addition to the other ten separate bank accounts 
the county currently maintains) on a monthly, quarterly, and annual basis as applicable; and 
   
 WHEREAS, staff was directed to prepare a resolution for the Board of Commissioners to authorize such 
closure and consolidation subject to certain restrictions on where the funding in each account would be 
transferred. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, 
 

1. The Public Building Capital Reserve Account which had a balance of $118,003.19 earlier this year but 
continues to accrue interest, shall be closed.  The full account balance at the time of closure shall be 
undesignated for any specific purposes, and shall be transferred into the county’s primary NCCMT 
account already holding other unrestricted general fund balance monies.   

 
2. The Recreation Land Reserve Account which had a balance of $9,116.37 earlier this year but continues 

to accrue interest, shall be closed.  The full account balance at the time of closure shall initially be 
transferred into the county’s primary NCCMT and considered undesignated fund balance.   

mailto:cpotter@washconc.org
mailto:mdixon@washconc.org
mailto:jbennett@washconc.org


Washington County Resolution 2023-020 Page 2 of 2  

 
a. Thereafter, staff shall prepare a budget amendment for the Board to approve the transfer of the 

same full amount from its General Fund to its Special Projects & Grants (Fund 58) in order to 
hold and budget the transferred funds together with other funding already held there to be used 
in the future for PARTF/recreational grant purposes. 

 
3. The Water Works Debt Service Reserve Account which had a balance of approximately $73,577.98 

earlier this year but continues to accrue interest, shall be closed.  The full account balance at the time 
of closure shall be undesignated for any specific purposes, and shall be transferred into the county’s 
primary water account currently held at Southern Bank.  

 
4. The Economic Development Reserve Account which had a balance of approximately $209,964.46 

earlier this year but continues to accrue interest, shall be closed.  The full account balance at the time 
of closure shall be undesignated for any specific purposes, and shall be considered part of the General 
Fund’s unrestricted fund balance, and shall be transferred into the county’s primary NCCMT account 
already holding other unrestricted general fund balance monies. 

 
5. The County Manager and Finance Officer are hereby authorized to execute any and all instruments 

deemed reasonably necessary to give effect to this Resolution and to facilitate the closing and 
transferring of the foregoing funds as directed herein by the Board. 

 
Adopted this the 5th day of June, 2023. 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Julius Walker, Jr. Chair 
      Washington County Board of Commissioner 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________________                     (COUNTY SEAL) 
         Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 
                Clerk to the Board 







































































































 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   9 
 
       DATE:     June 5, 2023 
 
ITEM:       Other Items by Chairman, Commissioners, County Manager/Attorney, 

Finance Officer or Clerk 
 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
 Department Head Reports from May 2023 (see attached) 
 Statistics Reports from April 2023 (see attached) 

 
a)  Pre-K – 12 Building/Funding Agreement Update, Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA 
b) Cancellation of July 3, 2023 Board of County Commissioners’ Meeting, Mr. Curtis 

Potter, CM/CA 
In years past, the Board has opted to cancel the July Commissioners’ meeting due 
to so many additional meetings in the previous months in budget preparation, and 
this year, for the new Pre-K-12 school.  With that being said, if the July 3 meeting 
is cancelled, the Board may opt to call a Special Calle meeting later in the month if 
the need arises.  



 

Department Head Reports to the Commissioners 
June 5, 2023 

Board of Commissioners’ In Person & Facebook Livestreamed Meeting 
 
 
Geographic Information Systems & Other Projects 
Richard Livingston 
 
I. Introduction 
I am pleased to present the GIS Departmental report for the month of May 2023. This report 
provides an overview of my activities, including the number of customers served, the status of 
the transition of services to third-party partners, and special projects undertaken during the 
month. 
 
II. Number of Customers Served 
In May 2023, the Washington County GIS Department served a total of 27 customers in person. I 
worked diligently to address their needs and provide high-quality geospatial solutions and 
services.  
 
III. Transition of Services 
During May, significant progress was made in the transition of services to third-party partners. 
This transition allows the county to leverage the expertise and resources of the third-party 
providers, leading to improved service delivery, consistency across personnel, and cost-
effectiveness. 
 
The process of identifying suitable partners and negotiating agreements has been completed. The 
transition plan has been developed, and I have been actively involved in coordinating the 
handover of responsibilities. Training and knowledge transfer sessions are underway to ensure a 
seamless transition for our citizens. I expect the transition to be finalized by my departure in the 
beginning portion of the next fiscal year. 
 
IV. Special Projects 
 
Website Updates: 
During May, I focused on updating the GIS department's website to enhance its functionality and 
user experience. Notable updates include the inclusion of directly linked property record cards 
into the GIS website, providing users with detailed property information and assessments. This 
addition will improve public access to property data and streamline the research process for 
citizens. You can access the website at washingtoncountygis.com 24/7, 365.  
 
Online 911 Addressing Maintenance: 
As part of our commitment to public safety, I implemented an online 911 addressing 
maintenance system. This system allows staff to submit address changes and updates directly 
through a GIS website with minimal GIS expertise. This streamlined process ensures accurate 
data entry and upload and accordingly, improved emergency response which enhances the 
county's overall public safety efforts. 
 
 



 

Internal Parcel Viewer: 
To improve internal workflows and efficiency, I developed an internal parcel viewer application. 
This tool provides tax department staff with quick access to all parcel data, allowing for easier 
analysis and decision-making. The internal parcel viewer streamlines processes and enhances 
collaboration within the department. 
 
V. Conclusion 
May has been a productive month for the Washington County GIS Department. While 
transitioning services to third-party partners, I have maintained a high level of service to our 
customers. The website updates, including the property record cards, online 911 addressing 
maintenance, and the internal parcel viewer, demonstrate our commitment to improving 
accessibility and efficiency. I remain dedicated to ensuring a seamless transition and providing 
valuable GIS services to Washington County until my departure. 
 
 
EMS 
Jennifer O’Neal 
 



 

 



 

 
 
 
Recreation 
Randy Fulford 
 
Our basketball teams are still  getting prepared for our  tournaments in June State games. We are 
also signing up for blitzball, pickleball, football and flag football.  Our football camp will be on 
June 24, if all goes well.  God Bless. 



 

Elections 
Dora Bell 
 

 
All is quiet this month in Elections. I am still waiting for the completion of the bathrooms and 
kitchen. Also, I am waiting on a new board to be selected. 
 
 
Library 
Brandy Goodwin 
 
Staffing: 

• Amanda Roberson has been hired as our new part-time Library Technician; began 
employment 05/11/2023. 

• We are still in need of a part-time Financial Officer; see Beacon for advertisement.  

Programming: 

• Our Summer Reading Schedule has been posted online on our Facebook page and 
hardcopies are available at the front desk; runs June 21st – August 2nd (Wednesdays). 

• Our Grassroots Arts Series in wrapping up and we have a BUSY month ahead!  
June 2nd and 3rd – John Brown Entertainment Jazz Ensemble at FF and BB Festival 
June 16th – Storyteller Willa Brigham at Washington County Library (1:00 PM) 
June 22nd – Puppeteer Tarish Pipkins at Washington County Library (1:00 PM) 

• Virtual Storytime sessions will take a summer hiatus; last video will be posted 05/31/23 
and will resume on 08/02/23 – F2F sessions ongoing (Wednesday’s at 10:30 AM) 

• The Roanoke Beacon will be running advertisements for these events.  

Library and Community Happenings: 

• Faxing services have resumed through alternate faxing method.  
• 3 out of 4 have been successfully installed; still waiting on approval from Senior Center. 
• Downtown Mini-Park Little Library is performing extremely well!  
• Barnyard Betsy’s (Creswell) is 2nd best performing. 
• Circulation low in Roper; museum undergoing renovations will access to LL cut off from 

street view – we hope this improves! 
• Ongoing book sale and receiving of donations.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Cooperative Extension 
Rebecca Liverman 
   

 



 

Veteran’s Service Officers Report 
Vacant 
 
No report submitted 
 
 
Tax Office 
Sherri Wilkins 
 

1. The staff continues to work on the Business Personal Property and Personal 
Property listings, each one is reviewed, additions and deletions are made and 
values are added.  

2. The tax clerks – Christal and Hollie - are handling the day to day processing of 
payments, handling phone calls and emails as they can but also work is being 
delegated to them.  They continue assist Darlene and Felesha.    

3. Felesha and Darlene Harrison continue to review and enter the data from the 
Business Personal Property forms and the Individual Personal Property forms. 

4. We continue to work every day with Zacchaeus Legal Services.  
5. Darlene continues to process enforced collections – wage garnishments, bank 

attachments, debt set-off. 
6. Assisted the taxpayers with the Tag & Tax program, handling adjustments, refunds, 

releases, and general questions in regards to motor vehicles.  
7. Continue to verify PINs for various reasons – usually for the filing of deeds – if 

Richard is out of the office.  Corresponding with him, as needed, if there is a 
question or issue with a property or properties that includes GIS.  

8. We continue to get calls for Republic Services, we direct the taxpayer to the 
county’s website and Landfill.  At times, the landfill calls us for verification of 
ownership of a property, for example, there is a new owner for a property and 
that person is going into the landfill but before they are allowed to dump their 
debris or trash, the landfill calls us to make sure they own the property at the 
address they have given.     

9. Christal is contacting delinquent taxpayers in an effort to get delinquent taxes 
paid.  

10. The Statistical report has been submitted. 
11. Darlene Harrison attended a Personal Property Appraisal & Assessment course 

the week of the 22nd.  
12. The data entry for the new construction has been completed this month.  New 

Construction letters will be mailed notifying the taxpayers of their assessment 
changes.  

 
 
Planning/Inspections/Floodplain Management 
Allen Pittman 
 
Permits Issued    29 
 Inspections   53 
   (Annual for Detention Center, 4 Daycares, 1 Restaurant included in number above) 
 Flood Plain consults    5 



 

 Consults for demolition   2 
  Plan reviews       
 *Consult and research information for Smithfield Foods re: fire suppression and water  
 supply 
 *Worked with Dennis Brown on project in floodplain within town limits 
 *Worked directly with contractor at Food Lion for Washington and Tyrrell County 
 *Consulted with Washington County School maintenance on greenhouse project 
 *Public Hearing with Planning Board for Special Use Permit application re: cell tower 
 *Tyrrell County Inspections mutual aid for inspections and plan reviews while Joie is out 
 *Continue receiving and reviewing project documents and plans for Washington Co 
 School 
  
 Education: 
 May 3  Floodplain workshop 
 May 9 – 11 National Floodplain Manager’s Conference (virtual): 
   Flood Adaptation- nature based solutions 
   Resiliency in Planning 
    Ethics 
   Mitigation challenges 
   Dams and Levees 
   Environmental Equity 
  
 May 24 Disaster Recovery Assistance Workshop with FEMA/NCEM 
 
 
 Assisted EM with: 
  Public Safety Team meeting 
  Statewide communication exercise 
  Fire Department –paperwork for live burn (asbestos and DEQ) 
 
 
Emergency Management 
Lance Swindell  
 
May 1st – Structure fire, Folly and Martin Luther, contained to panel box EM-1 responded w/ 
Roper VFD 

May 2nd- Bear Fest Planning, EM responsibilities and IAP for Emergency Operations 

May 3rd – Structure Fire @ 0730 Northline rd. False Alarm/Dept. Head Meeting 

May 4th EHPC Communications Exercise/Kenwood radio installation in EM-1 truck 

May 5th- DAWG Meeting 

May 8th Zonehaven Demonstration/Zoom 

May 9th- (2) MVC’s assisted VFD’s 



 

May 10th – WebEOC EM Statewide exercise 

May 15th- HAZMAT Training at Pitt CC/EBO Training week 

May 18th- US Army Corp of Engineers Coastal Hazards System Training 

May 19th- MVC involving mail carrier on Meadow Lane 

May 22nd- Bear Fest Meeting, Public Safety Team Meeting 

May 23rd – (2) MV incidents, 18 wheeler stuck on RR crossing and rollover crash on 32 South, 
Water Shuttle Training @ Roper VFD 

May 27th – Structure Fire/Wilson St. 

 
Soil and Water 
Chris Respass 
 

1. Attended Basics of Conservation Planning Training May 8-12, 2023 
2. Got up to date on all the LGC-203 forms for budget 
3. Worked on Strategic Plan to put before the board 
4. Got the DOT to remove debris in culverts on Holly Neck Road in Roper and Hwy 32 by 

Beach Bay Road in Roper that had been clogged by beavers. 
5. Investigated water build up on Mallard Drive in Roper NC caused by beaver. Affecting a 

significant amount of wood and farmland. 
6. Got RFPs on CS2 signed and sent out. (Don Small, Scott James, David A. Davenport) 
7. Took a course at UNC school of government online on Basic Principles of Local Gov. 

Purchasing 
8. Spoke with 4H Extension office about possible quarterly meetings, where I cook or we 

cater and have a presentation put together to inform the farmers on contracts and our 
goals. (For outreach purposes) 

9. Created a draft budget for May meeting. 
10. Went to Public Hearing on Eddie Smith drainage district.(5/1/23) 
11. Cancelled Dwight Davenport AGWRAP contract. 
12. Contacted Beaufort County about a copy of their contract agreement for snagging and 

aquatic weed spraying. 
13. Attended Scuppernong Steering Committee Meeting May 18(10am to 3pm) 
14. Called and attempted to encumber funds for 2023 contracts, cooperators not interested at 

this time and would rather just sign up next year, main statement was there wasn’t 
enough time to do these practices. I proceeded to tell them they had a year to do a 1/3 of 
the work when approved some still not interested working on Eric Bells only able to 
contact Father at this time(Vernon Bell), Casey Bell is indisposed at this time, Casey 
Sawyer hasn’t returned phone calls, and Trevor Eason is not interested at this time. 

15. Attempting to diagnose 2022 contracts and what has to be done to follow through with 
them. Chair and I must attend Commission Meeting on July 19,2023 at 9am in Raleigh at 
James G. Martin Building for post approval on these 2022 contracts. 



 

Register of Deeds 
Tim Esolen 
  

 
 



 

 
 
Public Utilities 
Lee Sasser 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Landfill 
Mike Gray 
 
 1. Land Clearing (L.C.) --- 76.43 
2. Const. & Demo. (C&D) --- 87.47  
3. Inert Debris (I.D.) ---- 26.22 
4. Scrap Metal --- 0 
5. Tires --- 4.86 
 
Total for the month is 389, 960 lbs. = 194.98 Tons. 
 

 
Sheriff’s Office/Detention/E911 
Chief Deputy Arlo Norman/Clinta Blount/Anna Johnson 
 



 

Detention:   
 

 
 
No other report submitted. 
 
 
Information Technology 
Darlene Fikes 
 

1. Compare pricing for VC3 & SSG for network upgrades required for VoIP.  
SSG approximately $7,000 less. 

2. Review copier proposals with Missy & Curtis. Select lowest bid from CopyPro.  
Contact CopyPro and request contract to be sent asap for Curtis to review. 

3. Refresh quotes for Network Upgrades and O365 through SSG. 
4. Submit request to BrightSpeed for additional phone line installation to be used for 911  

admin line. Installed April 27. Contact NMAC to install line on 911 phone. Contact 
EdgeOne to add new line to recorder. Tentative date scheduled June 1. 

5. Contact BrightSpeed to check audio on extension 252 at block. 911 phone extension not  
recording. Had several conversations with NCDIT, Specialty Underwriters and  
BrightSpeed. BrightSpeed said they will send tech to do this job, but will no longer support  
our phone system due to age even if we agree to pay time and materials. Contact Specialty 
Underwriters to have phone system removed from agreement for FY23-24. 

6. Missy ordered two digital door locks. One for Water Dept and one for storage room. Have  
Facilities install. Review codes with Missy and program door locks. 

7. Order all supplies needed in IT and review that all subscriptions for FY22-23 have been  
ordered. 

8. Review budget FY22-23 and reconcile with Finance records. Create summary sheet of any 
accounts with money remaining and explanation. Email to County Manager and Finance. 

9. List BTU’s of equipment in 911 server room and email to Ricky Young as requested. 
10. Submit feedback to Dell for seed program for Emergency Management technology cart in  

order to receive cart free of charge. Savings of $1,589.68.  
11. Get laptop quote for Facilities and place order. Receive laptop and setup. Apply all security 

Updates and Dell updates, create profiles & configurations, install antivirus, setup  
Office/email/sync folder with server, setup Edmunds with permissions. 

12. Troubleshoot why all phone calls to Town of Plymouth are being routed to 911 Center.  
Phones are down at Town. Request that they activate a voice mailbox instead of all calls 
going to 911 Center. 

13. Troubleshoot issue with credit card machine not making connection in Co-op Extension  
office. Rebecca said she needed connection asap due to collecting money for the Livestock  
show. Will need to install another line through BrightSpeed. Meantime, Rebecca and  



 

Christie tried to resolve issue through the State and was informed they were not allowed to 
use credit card machine. 

14. Troubleshoot issue with Landfill phone. Discover internet service through BrightSpeed was 
not disconnected when hotspot was installed. Disconnect BrightSpeed internet service.  

15. Contact BrightSpeed concerning billing for ANI and new admin line 252-791-1700. 
16. Document remaining surplus items from EM/Planning and send to Renee. 
17. Complete Department Head Survey and submit. 
18. Troubleshoot issue with printer in Jail. 
19. Refurbish Veterans desktop and update for ECU intern Braxton Kilby. Setup Braxton on 

network. 
20. Review Motorola quotes for upgrading consolettes in server room and fire  

radio/antenna/repeater with Martin Chriscoe. Email info to Anna with my notes for applying 
for 911 grant to cover costs.   

21. Troubleshoot issue with docking station on Facilities laptop. Dell will send out new one. 
22. Discuss with Sharon Stevens (District Manager for Probation/Parole) cabling in building 

they will be moving in. County is not responsible for the running cables.  
23. SOG 2023 NCLGISA Spring Symposium – May 24-26 
24. Attend Departmental meeting. 
25. Attend County Manager group meeting. 
26. Attend Commissioners meeting. 
27. Check postage machine during the month to determine when postage is needed.     
28. Stamp, sign & copy invoices & take to Finance. 
29. Reconcile Budget Statement. 

 
 
Senior Center 
Vanessa Joyner 
 
Overall:  We had a good month of activities for April.  The seniors are coming on a regular 
basis.   They enjoy coming and participating in our events. 
Senior Games Practice – April 3, 2023 – The seniors were outside practicing for the senior 
games with football toss, softball throw and discus throw. 
Fitness Workout – April 3, 2023 – Martha Carter teaches fitness workout in the evenings.  This 
class is more cardio than the chair exercise class.  The class is really growing.  The participants 
really like the class. 
Senior Games – April 4, 2023 – We carried the seniors to opening day of the Senior Games. We 
had twenty-three (23) seniors to attend.  They had a lot of fun and brought back many medals.  I 
am so proud of them. 
Beginner’s Line Dance – April 4, 2023 – Linda Brannon teaches beginner’s line dance.  This is 
a fun class.  We are practicing for participant in the Senior Games Showcase. 
Senior Games Celebration – April 5, 2023 – All the seniors came back with their medals and 
we celebrated their success.   We served cake and ice cream.  We took a group picture with their 
medals.   
Sewing with Geraldine – April 5, 2023 – Ms. Davenport is teaching the seniors to make 
different items.   They are working on making a skirt from neckties.  It is different and very 
attractive.   



 

Inspirational Studies – April 5, 2023 – Teresa McNair comes and share great information with 
the seniors.   This is one of our largest activity.  She is doing a great job.   
Craft with Sandra – April 5, 2023 – Sandra Lee comes on Wednesday and provide a craft for 
the seniors to make.  She comes up with so many brilliant ideas for them to make.  They enjoy 
the crafts with Sandra. 
Pickle Ball – April 5, 2023 – We go to Recreation’s Gym to play pickle ball.   We have 6-8 
seniors that participate.  They really enjoy pickle ball.  
Bridge – April 5, 2023 – We have of group of seniors that love to play bridge.   They come 
every week to play.   
Chair Exercise – April 6, 2023 – Maria Johnson teaches chair exercise.  They use bands, 
weights, do some walking and cardio.   
Line Dance with Linda – April 6, 2023 – This is for the more advanced line dancers.  The 
beginner line dancers are also coming and really doing a great job.   
Memory Games with Lois – April 11, 2023 – The seniors really look forward to Ms. Lois 
Davis and her group come to play games with them.   Ms. Davis comes up with unique games to 
play with them.  She also gives out prizes and they really love that. 
Hangman – April 12, 2023 – We have a computer program that we can play different games 
with the seniors.   They are getting better with these games.   
Movie Day – April 13, 2023 – We pick out a movie for the seniors to watch and pop popcorn to 
eat while watching the movie.  They like that a lot. 
Activity with Pre-K – April 18, 2023 – We carried the seniors to visit Pre-K students to read to 
them.  All the classes came together and the seniors read stories to the kids and interacted with 
them.  The children enjoyed the visit and the seniors did a great job reading to them.  It was so 
much fun. 
Chair volleyball – April 19, 2023 – We have an indoor volleyball net and use a beach ball to 
play volleyball.   They are sitting at the net.   They seniors can get very competitive with sports.   
They have fun playing. 
Bingo with Annette - April 20, 2023 – Ms. Annett Davis comes and play bingo with the 
seniors.   They seniors loves bingo.  That day has a large turnout as well. 
Bowling – April 25, 2023 – We carried the seniors to Williamston to bowl.  We sometimes do 
indoor bowling at the center.  They wanted to really bowl and they had a lot of fun.  They were 
better than I imagined. 
Coffee Break – April 27, 2023 – This is a time for the seniors to talk to the director and express 
their concerns and wishes.   We get ideas of what they want to do.   They come up with many 
things they want to do.   We try to accommodate as many of them as we can.   
Nutrition Presentation – April 27, 2023 – Martha Carter our Nutrition Site Manager gives the 
seniors different ideas of ways to cut back on certain foods or choose better foods that has less 
fat or less calories. 
 
Exercise Classes offered at the Center: 
Fitness Workout – Monday/Wednesday 5:30 – 6:30 cost $5.00 monthly 
Yoga – Monday 7:00 – 8:00 cost $5.00 monthly 
Chair Exercise – Tuesday/Thursday 1:00 – 2:00 cost $5.00 monthly 
Beginner’s Line Dance – Tuesday 5:30 – 6:30 cost $5.00 monthly 
Line Dance – Thursday 5:30 – 6:30 cost $5.00 monthly 
 
Classes after 4:00 are opened to all citizens regardless of age. 
 



 

Airport 
Knapp Brabble 
 

1. Replaced 2 runway lights  
2. Old woods mower ready for surplus, it was sold on govdeals and picked up on Friday the 

28th. 
3. QT POD working with good comments to date. 
4. Requirements to be branded by Phillips Aviation has been accomplished.  
5. Future Projects:   

 Replace Av/gas hose and jet fuel hose.                                                  
 Clean debris around perimeter of airport.                                                 
 Clean logging road overgrowth.                                                                                                                                                 

Replace fuel pump night light at fueling station, about 20’ tall.      
 Have to add fill dirt in spots around runway lights, and fixtures that has sunken in 

or washed away to meet FAA safety standards.  
 Runway: Need to put weed killer in cracks on runway and taxiway.    
 Need to cut grass north end, south end of runway, entire airport.                               

Need to cut around runway and taxiway lights.  
 Will have to remove trees north end and south end of runway RPZ zone to meet 

FAA safety standards. 
 Remove rocks/stones around taxiway to improve mowing and save wear and tear 

on airport equipment.                                                             
 Repair Beacon      
 Repair/replace PAPI lights (precision approach path indicator) 
 Repair/replace REIL (runway end identifier lights)                            
 Replace underground phone line to FMU at refueling station.      

 
And other items that are not on this list.                                

Facility Services 
Ricky Young 
 
Unfinished Business:  

• The 911 HVAC is to be installed the first week of June(weather permitting) 
• The Emergency Management Building is about 85% complete  

Maintenance: 
• The Courthouse and the Emergency Management Building parking lots have been 

restriped 
• Some signage around the Courthouse has been replaced  
• We have completed 95 out of 102 work order 

Upcoming Projects: 
• Continue with signage replacement 
• Complete undone work orders 
• Continue compiling the PM schedule  

 



 

MTW Health District 
Wes Gray 
 
No report submitted. 
 
 
Surplus Report 
Renee’ Collier 
 

Surplus Update for June 2023 BOC Meeting 
   

Currently At Auction or Advertising 
Asset List Price End Date 
Lot of Wooden Desks $9.00  02 Jun 2023 03:35 PM ET 
Proxima Projector PROAV9500 (condition unkown) $25.00  02 Jun 2023 12:50 PM ET 
Lot of 3 File Cabinets $15.00  02 Jun 2023 01:26 PM ET 
Lot of 11 Hexagonal Desks $55.00  02 Jun 2023 02:40 PM ET 
Lot of 3 File Cabinets $9.00  02 Jun 2023 08:34 AM ET 
Apple iPad 2 (working) $50.00  02 Jun 2023 01:40 PM ET 
Wooden desk $50.00  02 Jun 2023 02:06 PM ET 
PVC/Metal Easel $10.00  02 Jun 2023 02:28 PM ET 
1991 CAT D7H Dozer (NO TITLE AVAILABLE) $5,000.00  15 Jun 2023 03:12 PM ET 

   
Sold ( or pending sale) 

Asset Price Status 
2010 Ford Explorer ($1,500.00) SELLER ERROR- DID NOT PU 
ARGO Conquest 8x8 Customized $14,100.00  Awaiting Payment 
Surplus Lot Computers/Monitors/Printers, etc.- HDS 
removed- for parts $20.00  PU 
Small Book Shelf and Side Table $3.00  NPU 
20' Batwing Rotary Mower $3,850.00  PU 

   
Preparing to be Listed 

Asset Status   
Ford E350 Passenger Van Begins 6/5 
Single Metal Desk Begins 6/5 
Metal Desk with Separate Hutch (WITHOUT 
CREDENZA) Begins 6/5 
Medium Conference Table Begins 6/5 
Large Conference Table Begins 6/5 
Work Table Begins 6/5 
Lot of 6 Chairs (group 1) Begins 6/5 
Lot of 6 Chairs (group 2) Begins 6/5 
Lot of 6 Chairs (group 3) Begins 6/5 

https://www.govdeals.com/index.cfm?fa=Main.Item&acctid=949&itemid=106
https://www.govdeals.com/index.cfm?fa=Main.Item&acctid=949&itemid=107
https://www.govdeals.com/index.cfm?fa=Main.Item&acctid=949&itemid=108
https://www.govdeals.com/index.cfm?fa=Main.Item&acctid=949&itemid=110
https://www.govdeals.com/index.cfm?fa=Main.Item&acctid=949&itemid=111
https://www.govdeals.com/index.cfm?fa=Main.Item&acctid=949&itemid=139
https://www.govdeals.com/index.cfm?fa=Main.Item&acctid=949&itemid=140
https://www.govdeals.com/index.cfm?fa=Main.Item&acctid=949&itemid=141
https://www.govdeals.com/index.cfm?fa=Main.Item&acctid=949&itemid=142


 

Lot of 2 Chairs (group 1) Begins 6/5 
Lot of 2 Chairs (group 2) Begins 6/5 
Lot of 2 Chairs (group 3) Begins 6/5 
Lot of 2 Chairs (group 4) Begins 6/5 
Onan 150 KW Generator Begins 6/5 

 
 
DSS 
Clifton Hardison 
 



 

 
 



 

 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 
 



 

 
 

 



 

 

Reporting Period:   



DETENTION 
FY22-23

Incarcerations by County

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June Total (by
Gender)

Total
Incacera�ons

56 62 44 38 46 36 40 35 0 0 0 0
Male 217

258Female 41
Male 0

0Female 0
Male 0

0
Female 0
Male 0

0Female 0
Male 0

2Female 2
Male 0

0Female 0
Male 0

0Female 0
Male 95

95Female 0
2

Male 0
0Female 0

357 357

 Male

WASHINGTON

CHOWAN

HYDE

MARTIN

BEAUFORT

PITT

HERTFORD

SMCP

NORTHAMPTON                       

US PRISON TRANSPORT

40 42 29 22 29 19 21 15
3 4 4 5 6 6 4 9
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

12 15 11 11 11 11 14 10
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 2
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0

20

40

60

80

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Total Incarcera�ons  in FY
(includes all Coun�es)



EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES (EMS)
FY22-23

Washington County
July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD

Totals
1323
916
407

14
893
111
44

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD
Totals

531
365
166

2
0
2

WC Dispatched 138 134 130 151 144 166 151 146 163
WC Transported 98 101 91 106 98 104 113 95 110
WC Refusals 40 33 39 45 46 62 38 51 53

Hospital to Hospitals 6 2 3 1 1 0 0 1 0
SNF to Doctors 85 65 98 136 88 95 87 108 131
Hospital Discharges 10 21 12 19 10 6 14 7 12
EMS Back Up 1 6 6 3 1 7 10 3 7

TC Dispatched 60 61 69 71 54 50 62 49 55
TC Transported 49 41 48 44 36 38 43 25 41
TC Refusals 11 20 21 27 18 12 19 24 14

HC Dispatched 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0
HC Transported 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
HC Refusals 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0

                                                                

Transport Washington

Mutual Aid Hyde

Tyrrell County

407
15.6%

916
34.4%

1323
50.0%

EMS Pickups FY23



PLANNING AND ZONING
FY22-23

Inspec�ons and Fees

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals

Building
Zoning

Reinspect
SWUF

HO
Recovery

Fee
Total $1,805.00 $2,300.00 $3,524.54 $3,174.60 $1,490.00 $3,137.12 $2,813.24 $2,658.00 $2,320.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $23,222.50

$1,355.00 $3,014.54 $2,374.60 $1,130.00 $2,912.12 $2,638.24 $2,233.00 $2,145.00 $19,952.50
$ 75.00 $ 25.00 $ 100.00 $ 75.00 $ 175.00 $ 125.00 $ 100.00 $ 50.00 $725.00
$ 225.00 $ -   $ 150.00 $ 725.00 $ 175.00 $ -   $ 75.00 $ 375.00 $ 175.00 $1,900.00
$150.00 $ 125.00 $ 250.00 $ -   $ -   $ 100.00 $ -   $ -   $625.00

$0.00 $ 10.00 $ -   $ 10.00 $ -   $ -   $ -   $20.00

$ 2,150.00

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Building Zoning Reinspect SWUF HO Recovery Fee

Planning and Zoning Fees Collected (FY22-23)

85.9%

8.2%

Building

Zoning

Reinspect

SWUF

Fees Collected Percentages



SENIOR CENTER
FY22-23

July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June YTD Total
PARTICIPANT DATA 4207

768
9

1706
295
26

191
77
82

341
148
239
78

125
0

59
63

YTD Total
MEAL DATA 1013 1139 934 911 874 658 749 829 934 649 0 0 8690

1877
6813

0
YTD Total

CONTRIBUTION DATA $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $-   $-   $-   $
$ 708.53
$
$ 970.00
$ 875.00

438.50 532.19 379.05 169.65 886.90 1,070.0 289.00 310.85 532.39 4,608.53

2,055.00

Unduplicated A�endees 54 68 50 242 169 185
New Par�cpants 2 2 1 1 3
Center-Sponsored Events 265 261 105 224 303 548
Special Events 26 40 14 65 98 52
Caregiver's Support Group 5 5 4 4 4 4
Exercise Room 24 51 15 33 39 29
 Fitness Workout 6 15 26 30
Yoga 16 12 12 20 12 10
Chair Exercise 65 70 46 62 64 34
Beginner's Line Dance 14 21 18 39 39 17
Line Dance with Linda 27 31 37 40 62 42
Cra�s With Sandra Lee 14 12 12 14 15 11
Sewing with Geraldine 16 22 16 27 22 22
Drop-in Ac�vi�es
Computer Classes 29 30
Bridge 16 14 18 15

Congregate Meals Served 220 262 218 185 173 115 142 168 226 168
Home-Delivered Meals Served 793 877 716 726 701 543 607 661 708 481
Congregate Meals-Pick-Ups

Congregate Meals $ $132.19 $ 39.05 $ 54.65 $ 91.90 $129.00 $ 50.85 $ 62.39
Home-Delivered Meals $ $215.00 $270.00  225..00 $ $ $ 70.00 $ $
Ac�vity Fees $ $ 85.00 $ 70.00 $ $ $ 60.00 $ 90.00 $ $
Dona�ons $ 10.00 $100.00 $ $

148.50
155.00 125.00 810.00 145.00 265.00
125.00 115.00 105.00 115.00 205.00

565.00 200.00

0

250

500

750

1000

July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. March April May June

Congregate Meals Served Home-Delivered Meals Served

Meals Served (FY22-23)

49.7%

8.6%

5.6%

9.9%

4.3%

7.0%

3.6%

Center-Sponsored Events

Special Events

Caregiver's Support Group

Exercise Room

 Fitness Workout

Yoga

Chair Exercise

Beginner's Line Dance

Line Dance with Linda

Cra�s With Sandra Lee

Sewing with Geraldine

Computer Classes

Bridge

Senior Center Ac�vi�es (FY22-23)



TAX
FY22-23

July Aug. Sept. Oct.  Nov. Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD Totals
Collec�ons

Tax and Tag
Collec�ons
Solid Waste Fees

Drainage Fees -
Eddie Smith

Drainage Fees -
Other

Town Collec�ons

TOTAL TAX DEPOSIT

Amount*
Current Year Tax
Current Yr Discount
Current Year Penalty
Current Year Interest
Watershed Tax
Current Yr
Watershed Discount
Watershed Penalty
Watershed Interest
Prior Year Tax
Prior Year Penalty
Prior Year Interest
Prior Year Watershed
Prior Year WS Penalty
Prior Year WS Interest
Bad Checks
Prepayments

TOTAL

Ini�ated
Amount
Sa�sfied/Cancelled
Amount

Billed Current Yr
Collected Current Yr
Bad Checks

TOTAL

Billed Current Yr
Collected Current Yr
Prior Yrs Collected

Collected Current Yr

Creswell Levy

$ -  
$ 898,210.32 $ $ 404,187.42 $ $ $ $ $ 84,341.25 $ $ 94,596.54 $ 6,740,395.91
$ (16,983.97) $ (32,457.61) $ (600.68) $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ (50,042.26)
$ 107.78 $ 2,564.03 $ 516.33 $ 218.50 $ 127.82 $ 3,821.16 $ 1,645.99 $ 56.46 $ 405.62 $ 636.90 $ 10,100.59
$ -   $ -   $ -   $ 554.41 $ -   $ -   $ 3,831.19 $ 2,388.03 $ 6,412.70 $ 5,262.46 $ 18,448.79 Oct Int - Def Tax Pmt

$ 10,162.47 $ 27,388.25 $ 4,764.97 $ 2,666.75 $ 3,961.14 $ 13,162.78 $ 12,982.50 $ 1,017.57 $ 2,210.97 $ 1,436.01 $ 79,753.41
$ (203.16) $ (387.62) $ (7.00) $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ (597.78)
$ 1.24 $ 30.56 $ 6.09 $ 1.11 $ 1.17 $ 40.09 $ 18.08 $ 0.72 $ 4.20 $ 32.46 $ 135.72
$ -   $ -   $ -   $ 6.41 $ -   $ -   $ 40.19 $ 27.83 $ 75.75 $ 253.41 $ 403.59 Oct Int - Def Tax Pmt
$ 44,247.58 $ 89,391.99 $ 42,863.52 $ 33,593.45 $ 42,599.81 $ 25,468.87 $ 46,974.51 $ 28,359.63 $ 24,187.74 $ 22,462.54 $ 400,149.64
$ 154.44 $ 72.04 $ 12.85 $ 58.08 $ 33.73 $ 70.85 $ 1,149.64 $ 20.80 $ 95.82 $ 332.79 $ 2,001.04
$ 4,028.32 $ 8,724.90 $ 5,215.11 $ 3,961.82 $ 13,239.58 $ 3,192.96 $ 6,444.00 $ 7,351.02 $ 4,600.13 $ 4,352.45 $ 61,110.29
$ 378.70 $ 590.37 $ 306.97 $ 265.82 $ 245.71 $ 111.99 $ 460.53 $ 194.44 $ 253.03 $ 210.12 $ 3,017.68
$ 1.69 $ 0.91 $ 0.33 $ 0.88 $ 0.44 $ 0.53 $ 1.72 $ 0.27 $ 1.20 $ 4.18 $ 12.15
$ 333.37 $ 468.29 $ 271.88 $ 289.19 $ 364.36 $ 177.76 $ 390.63 $ 311.07 $ 397.52 $ 295.03 $ 3,299.10
$ -   $ -   $ (538.54) $ (1,425.85) $ -   $ -   $ (16,503.95) $ -   $ (1,651.31) $ (447.56) $ (20,567.21)
$ 520.18 $ 3,572.47 $ 3,255.73 $ 3,081.94 $ 2,834.72 $ 2,578.00 $ 4,024.04 $ 6,213.21 $ 10,096.17 $ 6,519.65 $ 42,696.11

$ 7,290,316.78

1 5 0 9 10 0 0 0 36 61
$ 1,338.48 $ 3,763.76 $ -   $ 4,187.72 $ 8,832.11 $ -   $ -   $0 $252,195 $ 268,978.37

0 0 0 2 7 0 0 0 5 14
$ -   $ -   $ -   $ 787.64 $ 4,174.69 $ -   $ -   $0 $74,761 $ 79,723.62

*

76,269.23 $ 93,475.19 $ 77,088.65 65,226.07 $76,396.96 72,306.44 75,682.14 $ 87,132.94 86,682.81 $ 710,260.43
 $ -  

$ $ 1,173,600.00
$ 171,230.20 $ 329,298.44 $ 73,561.83 $ 54,369.74 $ 69,541.33 $ 164,851.90 $ 105,240.78 $ 33,899.24 $ 65,839.69 $ 43,997.14 $ 1,111,830.29
$ -   $ -   $ (300.00) $ (340.00) $ -   $ -   $ (903.57) $ -   $ (300.00) $ (2.44) $ (1,846.01)
$ 171,230.20 $ 329,298.44 $ 73,261.83 $ 54,029.74 $ 69,541.33 $ 164,851.90 $ 104,337.21 $ 33,899.24 $ 65,539.69 $ 43,994.70 $ -   $ $ 1,109,984.28

$ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -  
$ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -  
$ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -   $ -  

$ 8,733.79 $ 62,366.75 $ 20,645.48 $ 11,311.92 $ 15,122.66 $ 47,021.58 $ 15,204.97 $ 1,106.23 $ 4,546.99 $ 1,064.37 $ 187,124.74

$ 3,564.64 $ 22,463.38 $ 14,258.93 $ 1,581.06 $ 3,605.24 $ 34,264.36 $ 21,193.34 $ 1,760.23 $ 1,910.01 $ 1,836.00

2,292,012.84 223,827.03 361,823.03 1,110,348.78 1,091,162.57 179,886.13

1,173,600.00

-  

$ 940,958.96 $ $ 460,254.98 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ -   $
Advalorem Garnishments

$ 106,437.19
$ $ $ 661,896.41 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ -   $-   $ 9,421,329.38

2,391,971.42 267,099.54 425,231.51 1,158,973.77 1,152,621.64 130,282.30 226,975.67 135,946.98 -  

1,124,487.59 2,899,575.18 411,110.91 578,726.81 1,481,508.57 1,365,663.60 242,730.14 386,105.30 269,524.86

Bank A�achments are usually in/out the same month - the bank either pays or sends a no�ce that no funds are available.



SHERRIFF
FY22-23

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE YTD
TOTALS

Total  Number of Dispatched Calls 0 1187 1165 1129 1039 1062 982 935 0 0 0 0 7499

Reported Incidents 62 54 50 52 57 47 45 34 21 28 450
Total Arrests 14 16 11 10 11 5 13 0 3 10 0 0 93

Total Papers Served 64 79 66 75 48 36 70 46 81 33 0 0 598

Total Papers Outstanding 15 27 32 16 20 16 53 40 34 24 0 0 277

Gun Permits Issued 196
Conceals Pending 8

Concealed Permits Issued 211

Law Enforcement 927 894 874 796 801 725 685
Animal Control 88 126 79 71 63 86 81

EMS 172 145 176 172 198 171 169

Misdemeanor Arrests 5 6 9 8 5 4 4 0 3 0
Felony Arrests 9 10 2 2 6 1 9 0 0 10

Criminal Papers Served 10 2 0 3 3 1 3 4 21 3
Civil Papers Served 54 77 66 72 45 35 67 42 60 30

Criminal Papers Outstanding 7 0 0 2 2 2 1 0 3 3
Civil Papers Outstanding 8 27 32 14 18 14 52 40 31 21

5702
594

1203

44
49

50
548

20
257

23 18 16 18 39 29 22 11 20

0 0 0 0 0 0 6 2 0 0

21 27 17 21 23 18 26 20 29 9

76.0%

7.9%

16.0%

Law Enforcement

Animal Control

EMS

Dispatched Calls (FY22-23)

0

10

20

30

JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE

Conceals Pending Concealed Permits Issued

Gun Permits (FY22-23)

450450

4444 4949 5050

548548

2020

257257

0

200

400

600

YTD TOTALS

Reported Incidents Misdemeanor Arrests Felony Arrests Criminal Papers Served Civil Papers Served Criminal Papers Outstanding Civil Papers Outstanding

Total Arrests & Papers Processed/Served (FY22-23)



WATER AND SOLID WASTE
FY22-23

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD
Totals

Water Billed FY 21-22

Water Billed  FY 22-23

Base Charges 

Water Pumped

Number of Customers
New taps

(in million gallons)

(in million gallons)

(in million gallons)

7656 7432 8508 6369 6257 6428 8930 7660 6210 7022 7477 8956

7707 7855
8266 6766 7766 7706 6657 6814 7014 6519

$ 65,364 $ 65,388 $ 65,292 $ 65,292 $65,268 $65,316 $65,099 $ 65,147 $ 65,219 $ 65,291
$ 48,516 $ 50,505 $ 55,159 $ 38,779 $48,932 $49,049 $37,856 $ 39,481 $ 41,171 $ 35,594
$ 1,785 $ 2,205 $ 1,645 $ 1,715 $ 1,470 $ 1,365 $ 1,785 $ 1,575 $ 1,435 $ 1,785

13.9 15.6
14.5 14.5 12 12 12 11 12

2657 2658 2654 2654 2653 2655 2652 2654 2657 2660
0 0 2 0 0 0 0 3 0 1

88,905

73,070

$ 652,676
Consump�on Charges $ 445,042
Reconnecton Charges $ 16,765

117.359

26,554
6

Water Billed to Roper
0

 Number of
Abatements 165

  Dollar Amount of
Abatements $ 20,858.50

13 21
23 21 14 15 27 8 9 14

$ $ 2,697
$ 3,146 $ 3,452 $ 1,794 $ 1,274 $ 3,874 $ 566 $ 1,092 $ 1,417

1,547.00

$ 4,844.65 $ $ $ $4,844.65 $4,844.65 $4,844.65 $4,844.65 $4,844.65 $ 4,844.65 $ 48,446.504,844.65 4,844.65 4,844.65

0

2500

5000

7500

10000

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Water Billed FY 21-22  (in million gallons) Water Billed  FY 22-23 (in million gallons)

FY Water Consump�on Comparison



LANDFILL  

FY 22-23

(in tons)

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June YTD
Limbs, Brush & Leaves 642.62
Inert Debris 202.95
Scrap Metal 15.62
C&D
Tires 53.46

1,732.7

58.36 57.92 62.47 59.7 80.46 77.68 106.63 69.86 69.54
10.77 11 35.74 11.96 12.35 4.35 113.24 0 3.54
5.27 5.97 0.77 0.96 0.13 0.13 0.80 0.22 1.37

155.3 150.13 38.92 101.80 31.55 21.43 214.27 890.59 128.8
2.9 2.90 4.54 4.18 8.6 5.68 12.19 5.43 7.04

0

250

500

750

1000

July Aug. Sept. Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Limbs, Brush & Leaves Inert Debris Scrap Metal C&D Tires

Landfill Collec�ons in Tons



 
WASHINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

 
 
 

       ITEM NO:   10 
   
       DATE:     June 5, 2023 
 
ITEM:        Closed Session 
  
SUMMARY EXPLANATION: 
 
 
A Closed Session has been scheduled pursuant to NCGS §143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-
client privilege) and NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel). 



DRAFT 

 

                       
 

May 1, 2023 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a regular meeting on Monday, 
May 1, 2023 at 6:00 PM in person and using ZOOM for Facebook Live Streaming in the 
Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, 
Ann C. Keyes, Carol V. Phelps, John C. Spruill and Julius Walker, Jr. were present.  Also 
present were County Manager/County Attorney Curtis Potter, Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett 
and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon. 
 

Chair Walker called the meeting to order. Commissioner Spruill gave the invocation and 
Commissioner Johnson led the pledge of allegiance. 
 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS:   
 
Commissioner Keyes made a motion to approve the Agenda for tonight’s meeting.  

Commissioner Johnson seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 

a) Approval of Minutes  
b) Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents  
c) Resolution 2023-014 Authorizing Surplus of Bulldozer 
d) Resolution 2023-015 Proclamation Designating Clerks’ Week 
e) Resolution 2023-016 Proclamation Designating EMS Week 
f) Revised Budget Calendar 

 
Commissioner  Johnson made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  

Commissioner Spruill seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
  
 PUBLIC FORUM:  Dr. Linda Carr, WCS Superintendent, 1611 Albemarle Beach Road, stated 
that on 3/2021, air quality of the school resulted in the closing of Pines School. The WC BOE had 4 
options of what to do.  They chose option 3 which was to consolidate schools. WCS was awarded two 
grants for $50M for a new school. The County needs to secure additional funds. She encouraged the 
public and the Commissioners to reach out to their representatives. (She handed out a list of their 
numbers.) WCS has moved from 111 to 107 (out of 115) in the state. Investing in education is smart and 
economic.  Thanks for your support for the loan to secure additional financing. 
   
 PUBLIC HEARING ON EDDIE SMITH DRAINAGE DISTRICT:    Mr. Curtis Potter, 
CM/CA & Mr. Cameron Birtcher,  LNFC &  Attorney David Gadd spoke to the Board.  Mr. 
Gadd works in Raleigh, 415 Hillsborough Street, and gave the board some background on how 
this came about.  
 

Commissioner  Johnson made a motion to open the public hearing.  Commissioner 
Keys seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  Mr. Guy Davenport, 53 White Road, Creswell, 
said he has been involved since the Eddie Smith Drainage District came into existence. It has 



DRAFT 

 

afforded the residents the means to recover from hurricanes and storms that cause bad drainage. 
He is glad to get this going again. 
 
 Mr. Bill Forbes, 22 Cypress Shores W, Roper, said he has contributed money to this 
district.  Without drainage you don’t have land for farming, timber, etc.  It costs a lot of money 
up front but is easier to maintain (such as mowing the banks). This is a big step in the right 
direction.  Need to send help to Scuppernong River also.   
 

 Commissioner  Keyes made a motion to close the public hearing.  
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
Commissioner  Keyes made a motion to approve RESO 2023-019 final assessment 

resolution for the Eddie Smith Special Assessment District.  Commissioner Phelps 
seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 



DRAFT 

 

Mr. Gadd said now that this is done the County needs to do an assessment roll, one for 
cleared land and one for wooded land. He will work with CMO staff and get with the Tax Office 
and get the roll prepared for the Board to review, get noticed and then have another public 
hearing at the  June 5th meeting.  He stated the rates would be 35 cents for cleared land and 12 
cents for wooded land. 

 
BOARD OF EQUALIZATION AND REVIEW: Ms. Bennett gave the oath to the 

Commissioners so they could convene as the Board of Equalization and Review. 
 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to convene as the Board of Equalization and 
Review.  Commissioner Spruill seconded, motion carried unanimously. 

 
 Ms. Bennett, Clerk to the Board noted that Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator 

was unable to attend tonight’s meeting but relayed that there were no appeals as of today. 
 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to recess the Board of Equalization & 
Review until May 15, 2023 at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, 
Plymouth and a livestreamed on the County’s Facebook page.  Commissioner Phelps 
seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 
 RURAL TRANSFORMATION GRANT:  Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA and Mr. Cameron Birtcher, 
LNFC, spoke to the Board regarding the information below. The original discussion was about using the 
funds jointly with the Skinnersville Civic Center Board to update their facility, but the grant would not 
allow it since the entity applying for the grant has to own the property. 
 
 Commissioner Johnson asked if there a match and Mr. Birtcher replied no there is not.  
Commissioner Keyes said she was appreciative of all the work he did on this. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill was excited that a Pickleball court was included! 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 

 
 

 



DRAFT 

 

 
 Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve the Rural Transformation Grant 
Resolution.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 PRE-K – 12 NEW SCHOOL LOAN VOTE:   Mr. Curtis Potter spoke to the Board on this 
subject.  [The attachments B – F referenced below will be attached herein and become incorporated as 
a part of these minutes.] Mr. Bob Jessup, Bond Counsel, Sanford Holshouser and Ted Cole, Davenport 
Financial were also in attendance. 
 
 Mr. Potter said he received some news this afternoon and the County is hoping to get 
additional funds from the legislature to cut the shortfall down so the Board would not have to raise 
taxes. However, because of the timing of getting the funds, the County may not be able to wait for those 
funds; however, we would not get a penalty for paying off early –10% ($2M) a year for the first 10 
years.  Pre-payment after that will not carry a penalty.  Also, it depends on stipulations that are placed on 
that money as to what the County can do with it, whether we can use it for pre-payment.  
 
 Commissioner Phelps asked if the Board votes to move forward with this loan will there be a 
tax increase.  Mr. Potter said if the Board doesn’t raise taxes, the County will eventually run out of 
money.  Mr. Potter said at this point he would recommend a tax increase in this year’s budget because 
the longer the County waits, the bigger the problem gets and less flexible the fund balance becomes.   
Commissioner Keyes said the Board has tried to find extra funds and the Board doesn’t want to raise 
taxes. Commissioner Keyes asked Mr. Potter if the extra money comes in, could the taxes be reduced.  
Mr. Potter said it would need to wait till next year’s budget is adopted.  Commissioner Johnson spoke 
about the LGC’s meeting tomorrow.  The County will know tomorrow if we are approved by the LGC 
to get this loan.  The County will have to continue moving forward. Commissioner Phelps said the  
Board could say that they are not raising taxes this year and hope to get the additional money and then if 
we don’t, we could raise them next year and asked if the County would be able to survive that.  Mr. 
Potter said it is possible. Mr. Potter said the County has pulled money back from utilities because of 
receiving ARPA funds ($500,000) and that would equate to the 4-cent tax increase so that might be 
possible.   Commissioner Spruill spoke about the funding agreement between Washington County and 
WCS and there were some possible amendments needed.  Mr. Potter said that has not been discussed.  
WCS is looking to gain funds for Phase II. Mr. Potter feels that WCS has not had time to run the 
possible amendments by their legal counsel to discuss them due to the advanced time table. 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve Resolution 2023-018 Providing Final 
Board Approval for Financing up to $20,500,000 for the New School Project.  Commissioner 
Keyes seconded.  Commissioners Johnson, Keyes and Walker voted yea.  Commissioners Phelps 
and Spruill voted nay.  Motion carried.   
 
 BOARDS & COMMITTEES:   
 
 ALBEMARLE COMMISSION:  WASHINGTON COUNTY JOINT ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE (CAC) 
 
The Albemarle Commission has requested that the Board re-appoint Ms. Gail Spiewak to the 
Washington County Joint Community Advisory Committee (CAC) for a three-year term. 
 
Ms. Spiewak has agreed to serve if re-appointed. 
 
 Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve the re-appointment of Ms. Gail Spiewak 
to the Albemarle Commission’s Washington County Joint Community Advisory Committee. 
Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 

FINANCE OFFICER’S REPORT:   Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers and budget 
amendments that were in the Commissioners’ Agenda Package. 

 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 



DRAFT 

 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 

Commissioner Johnson asked about BT #2023-140.  Ms. Dixon stated that various repairs 
were made 911, MTW, and the Strader Bldg. Some HVAC units will need to be replaced. 

 
Commissioner  Keyes made a motion to approve the budget transfers/amendments 

as presented.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 OTHER ITEMS BY CHAIR, COMMISSIONERS, COUNTY MANAGER/ COUNTY 
ATTORNEY OR CLERK:   

 
 Commissioner Johnson reminded the Commissioners of the District Meeting on May 4, 2023 – 
NCACC Districts 1 & 2 Meeting, 5:00 PM – 7:00 PM @ the Innovation Campus, 411 East Blvd., 
Williamston. She noted that it is a good time to network.  
 
 Commissioner Johnson also mentioned the May 23 – 24, 2023 – NCACC Advocacy Days, Raleigh 
Marriott City Center/Legislative Building. It is very useful talking to different legislators around the state 
to help our County legislators. 
 
 Commissioner Spruill noted that he is not opposed to having a new school, he just wishes both 
Boards were on the same page.  He attended the RC&D meeting in Dare County.  They discussed septic 
tank repairs on beach, booms and real estate on the beach.  He also mentioned the Livestock Show on 
Wednesday, May 3, and the dinner and sale afterwards. He also noted that the local fire department was 
having a pancake supper in Roper this Saturday from 7:00 – 11:00. 
 
 Commissioner Phelps referenced pg. 107, re: Phase II and said he would like to request that the 
Creswell School not be torn down till it can be offered up for sale and that money could be used against 
the new school.  He also asked everyone to please support the Livestock Show. 
 
 Commissioner Keyes also mentioned the Roper Fire Department Pancake Supper and Livestock 
show.  Everyone needs to support these events.  On May 31st she will be giving a presentation to other 
Commissioners and Randy Thompson of Brunswick County on EM prep for commissioners to teach them 
to stay in their lane. 
 
 Mr. Potter said the County has gotten a lot of questions regarding crushed asphalt at the school.  
Some 2,417 tons are being moved this week by trucks and being sold.  Mr. Potter also said that 
Congressmen Davis staff told us about a listening session regarding the farm bill.  One will be in Hertford 
County May 3 @ 8:00 am and one in Pitt County on May 4.  Mr. Potter also shared handouts from Dr. 
Carr regarding gang prevention and a list of state legislators on the Education Committee.  He also 
reminded the Commissioners that the Budget presentation will be on May 15 and the Public Hearing at the 
June 5th regular meeting. 
 
 Chair Walker thanked Dr. Carr for all her work on the new school project. 

 
 Commissioner Spruill made a motion to go into Closed Session pursuant to NCGS 
§143-318.11(a)(3) (attorney-client privilege) and  §143-318.11(a)(6) (personnel).  Commissioner 
Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 

 



DRAFT 

 

Back in Open Session, with no further business to discuss, Commissioner Keyes made a 
motion to recess to May 15, 2023 @ 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room.  Commissioner 
Spruill seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 

 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
             Julius Walker, Jr.          Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

          Chair              Clerk to the Board 
 
 



DRAFT 

                       
 

May 15, 2023 
 

 The Washington County Board of Commissioners met in a recessed meeting on Monday, 
May 15, 2023 at 6:00 PM in person and using ZOOM for Facebook Live Streaming in the 
Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, Plymouth, NC.  Commissioners Tracey A. Johnson, 
Ann C. Keyes and Carol V. Phelps were present.  Also present were County Manager/County 
Attorney Curtis Potter and Clerk to the Board Julie J. Bennett. Commissioners John C. Spruill 
and Julius Walker, Jr., and County Finance Officer Missy Dixon were unable to attend. 
 

Vice-Chair Keyes called the meeting to order.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 

a) Auditor Contact 
b) MTW Contact 

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  

Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
BOARD OF EQUALIZATION AND REVIEW:  

 
Commissioner Johnson made a motion to re-convene as the Board of Equalization 

and Review.  Commissioner Phelps seconded, motion carried unanimously. 
 
Ms. Sherri Wilkins, Tax Administrator told the Board that there were no appeals as 

of today. 
 

Commissioner Johnson made a motion to recess the Board of Equalization & 
Review until June 5, 2023 at 6:00 PM in the Commissioners’ Room, 116 Adams Street, 
Plymouth and a livestreamed on the County’s Facebook page.  Commissioner Phelps 
seconded.  Motion carried unanimously.  
 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS & TRANSFERS:  Ms. Dixon went over the budget transfers 
and budget amendments that were in the Commissioners’ Agenda Package. 

 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

Commissioner  Phelps made a motion to approve the budget transfers/amendments 
as presented.  Commissioner Johnson seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 WASHINGTON COUNTY FY24 RECOMMENDED BUDGET PRESENTATION & BUDGET 
MESSAGE:   Mr. Curtis Potter, CM/CA read the budget message below. 

 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 



DRAFT 

 
 



DRAFT 

 
 
 
 
 

 Commissioner Keyes thanked Mr. Potter and staff for all the hard work on the Budget. 



DRAFT 

 
 Commissioner Johnson stated she feels that the Board should also receive a COLA.  Does 
the Board qualify for a COLA?  This Board has not received a COLA since 2009.  Mr. Potter 
said he has staff gathering information from comparable counties on Commissioner pay.  He can 
bring the information back to the Board. 

 
With no further business to discuss, Commissioner Johnson made a motion to 

adjourn.  Commissioner Phelps seconded.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
             Ann C. Keyes          Julie J. Bennett, MMC, NCMCC 

   Vice-Chair              Clerk to the Board 
 
  


	Cover page  for Commissioner booklets with window 6.4
	Agenda June 5, 2023
	6-5-2023 Item 1 Consent Agenda
	Tax Refunds, Releases & Insolvents for May 2023
	Washington County  JCPC Certification 23-24
	Riverlight Transit Title VI Policy
	Title VI and Related Authorities
	5.0 procedures to ensure nondiscriminatory administration of programs and services
	We are committed to nondiscriminatory administration of our programs and services, organization wide. Riverlight Transit will remind employees of Title VI nondiscrimination obligations through staff training and use of the Annual Education and Acknowl...
	6.0 Contract Administration
	6.1 Contract language

	Contractor’s Initials
	6.2   Nondiscrimination Notice to Prospective Bidders
	7.0   External Discrimination Complaint Procedures
	FILING OF COMPLAINTS

	Discrimination Complaint Form

	INVESTIGATIVE GUIDANCE
	8.0 Service Area Population Characteristics
	To ensure that Title VI reporting requirements are met, we will collect and maintain population data on potential and actual beneficiaries of our programs and services. This section contains relevant population data for our overall service area. This ...
	8.1 Race and Ethnicity
	The following table was completed using data from Census Table QT-P3, Race and Hispanic or Latino Origin: 2020:
	8.2 Age & Sex
	The following table was completed using data from Census Table QT-P1, Age Groups and Sex: 2020:
	8.3   Disability
	The following table was completed using data from Census Table S1810, Disability Characteristics:
	8.4  POVERTY
	The following table was completed using data from Census Table S1701, Poverty Status in the Past 12 Months:
	8.5  Household Income
	The following table was completed using data from Census Table S1901, Income in the Past 12 Months (In 2013 Inflation-Adjusted Dollars):
	8.6 Limited English Proficiency Populations
	8.7 Population Locations
	Federal-aid recipients are required to identify the characteristics and locations of populations they serve, particularly by race/ethnicity, poverty and limited English proficiency. We will document this narratively or through maps that overlay bounda...
	9.0   Title VI Equity Analyses (and Environmental Justice Assessments)

	Public Relations and Outreach
	Public Meetings
	Small Group Meetings
	Community Surveying
	Four Factor Analysis
	Project-Specific LEP Outreach
	Monitoring and Updating the LAP
	Compliance Reviews
	Complaint Investigations
	Appendix A

	Letter of Support for Harvest Beam Grant for 20230605 mtg
	Letter of Support for Roper Volunteer Fire Department USDA Fnding for 20230605 mtg
	BOCC Memo re Pea Ridge Expansion Engineering Agreement for 20230605 mtg w attach reduced
	TTA BYLAWS - RESTATED (2023)
	6-5-2023 Item 2 (public forum)
	6-5-2023 Item 3 Employee of the Quarter
	6-5-2023 Item 4 Board of E&R
	6-5-2023 Item 5 Public Hearing Eddie Smith
	BOCC Memo re Approval of Prelim Assessment Roll Eddie Smith for 20230605 mtg w attach reduced
	6-5-2023 Item 6 Public Hearing  Washington County FY 24 Budget Recommendation
	BOCC Memo re FY24 Budget Ordinance for 20230605 mtg w attach
	6-5-2023 Item 7 Boards & Committees
	6-5-2023 Item 8 Finance Officer's Report & Reso for removing obsolete GF bal desig
	Budget Amendements  Transfers
	RESO 2023-020 removing fund balance designations
	May 30 2023 Finance Report
	6-5-2023 Item 9 Other Items
	Reports for 6-5-2023 BoC Meeting
	Stat Report Cover Sheet
	June 2023 BOC Meeting Statistics
	6-5-2023 Item 10 Closed Session
	5-1-2023 minutes
	5-15-2023 minutes for Recessed Mtg



